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Chairman’s Overview
I am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Health and Social Care Board for 2013/14. This
report highlights the key achievements over the past year including the Board’s commitment in
progressing reform across Health and Social Care in Northern Ireland while ensuring that the
patient, service user and the family are at the centre of all care.
2013/14 has seen significant change across Health and Social Care as the Board moves forward in
earnest with the implementation of Transforming Your Care. Whilst our system has served us really
well over many years, we know that it won’t continue to survive unless there are significant changes.
That is why the direction set under Transforming Your Care is so important and it is vital that change
is delivered in a planned and thorough way and is clinically led. A key development this year has
been the establishment of Integrated Care Partnerships. They will play a pivotal role in delivering
changes by bringing together doctors, nurses, pharmacists, social workers, hospital specialists, the
community and voluntary sector and service users to reconfigure and coordinate local health and
social care services that will ultimately benefit patients and service users.
This year we also developed a ‘Choose Well’ advertising campaign aimed at raising public
awareness on the wide range of health care available, how and when to use these services
appropriately. Choosing the service that best meets the patient’s symptoms will help ensure that the
patient receives the appropriate care in a more timely manner. The campaign will also help ease the
pressure on finite health and social care resources.
March 2014 saw the retirement of our Chief Executive John Compton CBE after 40 years of
dedicated service to Health and Social Care in Northern Ireland. On behalf of the Board, I would like
to pay tribute to the huge contribution John has made to health and care in Northern Ireland.
During his career, John has been at the forefront of shaping health and social care, in driving forward
change and making a difference in people’s lives. Most recently, he was the driving force behind the
Transforming Your Care Review which is one of the most significant reforms of Health and Social
Care in decades, aimed at ensuring Northern Ireland has safe, high quality, patient and client centred
health and social care into the future.
Looking ahead, 2014/15 will bring many fresh challenges for the Board and I look forward to
working with a new Chief Executive and the wider team to deliver high quality, safe health and
social care services to the population of Northern Ireland.

Dr Ian Clements
Chairman
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Chief Executive’s Overview
This annual report for the financial year 2013/14 provides an overview of the key achievements
delivered by the Health and Social Care Board in our role as the commissioner of health and social
care services for the population of Northern Ireland.
This year has seen the implementation of Transforming Your Care progress at pace as we work to
improve how health and social care is delivered both now and into the future.
The establishment of Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) is reshaping how and where care is
delivered. They are focussing on new ways of professionals from primary care, hospital and social
care working together to improve outcomes for individuals with diabetes, respiratory problems,
stroke patients and frail elderly patients. These partnerships will enhance patient and client outcomes
and experience, especially for those most in need of early intervention, care, treatment and support.
Across Northern Ireland, Local Commissioning Groups (LCGs) have been continuing to ensure the
Board connects with communities so that we understand the health and social care needs of the local
population when commissioning services. The Director of Commissioning’s report in this document
highlights specific examples of the work of taken forward by Local Commissioning Groups.
There have also been a number of initiatives to help improve patient care and provide services where
they are most needed. For example, the announcement of two new purpose built health and care
centres in Lisburn and Newry will enable people to receive specialist and diagnostic care locally
instead of travelling to hospital. Also, the introduction of new ways of working will reduce pressures
on Outpatient and Emergency Departments. Work is also progressing to enable General Practitioners
(GPs) in a number of areas to directly admit patients to certain wards which will help avoid the need
for some of our frailest and most vulnerable patients having to be admitted through an Emergency
Department.
In the past year around £30m financial efficiencies were gained through increased use of generic
medicines and a reduction in waste which allowed us to invest much needed resources in essential
services for our patients. Significant funding was invested to further reduce hospital admissions and
increase early discharge. This included £2m to enhance re-ablement services and £1m in memory
services which resulted in appointments of additional staff and better management of a backlog of
review cases.
Other investment was made to establish the primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention (pPCI)
service which now means that patients in the East of the Province having a heart attack are taken to a
catheterisation laboratory centre in Belfast that is capable of undertaking the procedure 24 hours a
day, seven days a week. This seven day working pattern has transformed outcomes for many patients.
A second service in the West is expected to be in place later this year.
Other changes well underway include the resettlement of people with learning disabilities from long
stay hospitals and the increasing use of technology to support people with long term conditions at
home such as those with diabetes and chronic lung disease.
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This year has also seen consideration of and action on a number of high profile issues including: the
location of acute mental health inpatient services in the west; the provision of Paediatric Congenital
Cardiac Surgery; the future of Statutory Residential Care Homes; and the performance of Emergency
Departments. The Board will continue to help inform community decisions and seek improvement in
these services. A key component of this work will be listening to patients, clients, families and carers
on taking these forward.
As Interim Chief Executive of the Health and Social Care Board, I would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere thanks to staff, both at the Board and across the wider Health and Social Care
system. I also wish to pay tribute to John Compton with whom I have enjoyed the privilege of
working and who made an outstanding contribution to changing health and social care for the better.
No doubt the year ahead will bring more challenges for health and social care. I am confident the new
Chief Executive will provide strong leadership in continuing to drive forward the changes necessary
to ensure high quality, safe health and social care.

Fionnuala McAndrew
Interim Chief Executive
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Membership of the Health and Social Care Board
The Board of the Health and Social Care Board is made up of five Executive Directors, including the
Chief Executive, a Non Executive Chair and seven Non Executive Directors.
The Chief Executive is directly accountable to the Chair and Non Executive Directors for ensuring
that Board decisions are implemented, that the organisation works effectively in accordance with
government policy and public service values, and for the maintenance of proper financial
stewardship.
Executive directors are senior members of its full time staff who have been appointed to lead each of
the Board’s major professional and corporate functions.
The Non Executive Chair is responsible for leading the Board and for ensuring that it successfully
discharges its overall responsibility for the organisation as a whole. The Chair is accountable to the
Minister for Health, Social Services and Public Safety.
Non Executive directors are appointed by the Health Minister in accordance with the Code of
Practice issued by the Commissioner for Public Appointments for Northern Ireland. All appointments
are made following open competition, governed by the overriding principle of selection based solely
on merit. The Non Executive Directors are independent and reflect wider outside and community
interests in the decision making of the Board.
The Board comprised the following directors during the year 1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014:
Non Executive Directors

Dr Ian Clements
Chairman

Mr Robert Gilmore

Mr Stephen Leach

Dr Melissa
McCullough

Mr Brendan
McKeever

Mr John Mone

Dr Robert Thompson

Mrs Stephanie
Lowry1

Mrs Stephanie Lowry was appointed as a Non Executive Director with effect from 15 April 2013.
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Executive Directors

Mr John Compton2
Chief Executive

Mr Paul Cummings
Director of Finance3

Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew
Director of Social Care and
Children4

Mr Dean Sullivan
Director of Commissioning

Mr Michael Bloomfield
Director of Performance and
Corporate Services5

Mr Owen Harkin
Acting Director of Finance
(with effect from 22 May
2013)

A number of officers from the Board’s Senior Management Team also attend its meetings, and these
individuals are as follows:
Dr Sloan Harper

Director of Integrated Care, Health and Social Care Board

Mrs Pamela McCreedy

Director of Transforming Your Care, Health and Social Care Board

Mr Sean Donaghy

Director of eHealth and External Collaboration

Dr Carolyn Harper

Executive Medical Director/Director of Public Health, Public
Health Agency
Acting Director of Nursing and Allied Health Professionals, Public
Health Agency

Mrs Pat Cullen

In addition, meetings of the Board are also attended by the chairpersons of each of the Board’s five
Local Commissioning Groups and by representatives of the Patient and Client Council.
Mr John Compton retired as Chief Executive on 31 March 2014.
Mr Paul Cummings, Director of Finance, has been seconded to the Northern Trust from 22 May 2013 until 2 June 2014.
During this period, Mr Owen Harkin has discharged the Executive Director role.
Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew was appointed Interim Chief Executive on 31 March 2014.
Ms Louise McMahon, Director of Performance Management and Services Improvement, accepted an 18 month
secondment to the Leadership Centre with effect from 1 November 2012. During this period, Mr Michael Bloomfield has
discharged the Executive Director role.

7

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
The role of the Health and Social Care Board
The Health and Social Care Board is a non-profit making statutory body responsible for the
commissioning of health and social care services for the population of Northern Ireland. The role of
the Health and Social Care Board is broadly contained in three functions:
1. To arrange or ‘commission’ a comprehensive range of modern and effective health and social
services for the 1.8 million people who live in Northern Ireland.
2. To performance manage Health and Social Care Trusts that directly provide services to
people and support service improvements in pursuit of optimal quality and value for money,
in line with relevant government targets.
3. To effectively deploy and manage its annual funding from the Northern Ireland Executive –
currently around £4 billion – to ensure that this is targeted upon need and reflects the
aspirations of local communities and their representatives.
The Board is accountable to the Health Minister for translating his vision for health and social care
into a range of services that deliver high quality and safe outcomes for users, good value for the
taxpayer and compliance with statutory obligations.
The work of the Board has the potential to reach everyone at some point in their lives – its
expenditure amounts to around £10 million on every single day of the year – as it strives to ensure
that services provided daily to people in their homes, by their GP, or in hospital deliver what is
expected of them.
Each year the Board is required by statute to prepare and publish a Commissioning Plan setting out
the range of services to be commissioned and the associated costs of delivering these. The Board
prepares the annual Commissioning Plan in partnership with the Public Health Agency (PHA) and
publishes it on the website www.hscboard.hscni.net.
The Board and PHA take forward the regional commissioning agenda through a series of integrated
service teams. The Board’s commissioning processes are underpinned by the five Local
Commissioning Groups which are committees of the Board, and are responsible for ensuring that the
health and social care needs of local populations across Northern Ireland are addressed. The groups
are geographically coterminous with each of the five Health and Social Care Trusts that directly
provide services to the community. The Local Commissioning Groups incorporate a range of
professional interests such as GPs, nurses, dentists, pharmacists and social workers, as well as
voluntary and elected representatives, to ensure that the work of the Board has genuine sensitivity
and influence at a local level.
All of the service teams responsible for commissioning services are comprised of Board and PHA
staff, demonstrating the common agenda shared by both organisations and the close working with
one another. The PHA is also represented on each of the five Local Commissioning Groups.
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The Board also commissions services from voluntary and community organisations. This feeds
directly into local economies and is responsive to local demands. The Board is also exploring
opportunities to procure provision from Social Enterprises and to encourage and build social capital
through community development opportunities. These approaches are underpinned by effective
stakeholder engagement and Personal and Public Involvement. The Board is committed to
embedding Personal and Public Involvement into its culture and practice. It is currently
implementing a joint Health and Social Care Board and PHA Personal and Public Involvement
strategy (available online at www.hscboard.hscni.net/publications ). This strategy aims to ensure that
service users, carers and the public influence the planning commissioning and delivery of health and
social care services in ways that are meaningful to them.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORTS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMISSIONING
Dean Sullivan is the Board’s Director of Commissioning. The role of the Board’s Directorate of
Commissioning is to consider the needs of the entire population of Northern Ireland and to plan and
arrange for health and social care services to meet those needs.
Regional Commissioning
A key success for the Commissioning Directorate this year has been the significant investment in a
primary Percutaneous Cardiac Intervention (pPCI) service which means that patients having a heart
attack can now be taken to a catheterisation laboratory centre that is capable of undertaking the
procedure 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year. The first of two regional centres
opened at the Royal Victoria Hospital in September 2013. The second centre, which will serve the
West of the Province, will be in place in Altnagelvin Hospital in Autumn 2014.
More generally, this year the Commissioning Directorate has also:
•

•
•
•
•

Completed the review of Paediatric Congenital Cardiac Surgery; the review is now with the
Minister and the Commissioner is working with Belfast Health and Social Care Trust and
providers in the Republic of Ireland to ensure appropriate interim arrangements are in place
for the provision of surgery in Belfast pending the latest external review and a final decision
regarding the future delivery of the service.
Expanded critical care road transport services for neonates (new borns) and children from a
Monday to Friday day time service to 24/7 cover.
Commissioned the most successful live donor transplant programme in the United Kingdom
achieving in excess of 50 live transplants every year for the last three years.
Streamlined and refined the procurement of social care from voluntary sector providers in line
with EU regulations.
Put in place processes to improve risk management and contract governance with independent
sector providers.

Local Commissioning Groups
The five Local Commissioning Groups (LCGs) of the Board cover the same geographical areas as
those served by the five Health and Social Care Trusts. The Local Commissioning Groups’ role, as
committees of the Board, is to ensure that services are commissioned at a local level, are sensitive to
the needs of social and community issues, and are influenced by the involvement of both professional
practitioners and local representatives. The five Local Commissioning Groups have all worked this
year to further develop the health and social services in their respective areas. Below are some
examples of the kinds of outcomes being delivered through local commissioning.
Belfast Local Commissioning Group
This year Belfast Local Commissioning Group has worked with a wide range of partners to transform
eye services. This has resulted in the development of a new ‘One Stop Clinic’ for patients with
glaucoma. Glaucoma is a serious eye disease - the treatment and care of which requires close
cooperation between community optometrists, secondary care teams and voluntary organisations.
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Service users were consulted and came up with a proposal for a one stop service where patients could
have their diagnostic tests, assessment, treatment and practical advice and support all on the same
visit. The new service has been designed with input from Royal National Institute of Blind People
Northern Ireland (RNIB NI), Guide Dogs for the Blind and Optometry Northern Ireland, while the
Belfast Trust has led on implementation. Services across Belfast have been moved out of hospital
and brought together in Shankill Well Being and Treatment Centre. Specialist consultants work
alongside nurses, optometrists, technicians and eye care liaison officers using the very latest
technology, which is the envy of other services in the United Kingdom. Further developments will
include recruitment of high street optometrists to train in the clinic and eventually provide local
services with telelinks to the Shankill, and providing grant aid for state of the art equipment for high
street services so that patients can have a more accurate diagnosis, reducing the need for many people
to attend the specialist service.
The Belfast Local Commissioning Group, in conjunction with West Belfast Integrated Care
Partnership (ICP), also commissioned an Integrated Eye Care Service which replaces the
Ophthalmology Integrated Clinical Assessment and Treatment Services, shifting provision from
hospital to the Beech Hall Well Being and Treatment Centre. This substantially increased the
capacity to assess and treat suitable patients in the community, thereby reducing the numbers who
need to be seen by a consultant. The developments in eye services also included the launch of a new
referral form for cataracts in agreement with the British Medical Association (BMA) Northern
Ireland General Practitioners Committee. This will enable GPs to take into account the impact of the
disease on the patient’s quality of life as well as their clinical condition.
The Belfast Local Commissioning Group, PHA and West Belfast Integrated Care Partnership worked
closely with the Belfast Trust to improve the pathway of care for acutely-ill children, introducing
paediatric consultant of the week. Following a successful pilot, GPs are now able to speak
immediately and directly to a consultant about a child at home who would otherwise be sent to the
Emergency Department. The pilot also showed that having a consultant to make decisions about
admissions and discharges ensured a more rapid exit from the Emergency Department. This will be
further enhanced by the development of a Short Stay Ward/Paediatric Assessment Unit which will to
help avoid longer stays than necessary, making more inpatient beds available and strengthening links
with primary care.
Northern Local Commissioning Group
This year Northern Local Commissioning Group successfully developed a community pathway for
deep vein thrombosis, which is a life threatening condition with treatment difficulties. The new
pathway allows GPs to get same day diagnostic results (Doppler test) completed through direct
access to radiology. On a positive test result, warfarin is initiated by GPs, thus avoiding the need for
an Emergency Department (ED) attendance, as would previously have been the case. Approximately
50 people per month are sent straight to radiology avoiding ED.
Warfarin is also used to treat atrial fibrillation, which places people at a higher risk for stroke and
requires early diagnosis. Again, through the development of a community pathway for atrial
fibrillation which allows GPs direct access to radiology for same day tests including
electrocardiogram (ECG), GPs in the Northern area are now in a position to initiate warfarin in the
community, thereby avoiding the need for patients to be referred to outpatients and allowing patients
to be treated more promptly. 69% of patients with atrial fibrillation have used this pathway and 168
patients with atrial fibrillation have had warfarin initiated by their GP and managed in the
community.
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Southern Local Commissioning Group
This year the Southern Local Commissioning Group invested in nurses to support a local inpatient
eating disorder service. The dedicated nursing posts supervise the re-feeding and treatment of
inpatients with eating disorders so that patients with eating disorders are now successfully cared for
locally. No patients from the southern area have had to be treated outside Northern Ireland since the
nurse posts were established. The local service enables families to visit frequently, which can be an
important aid to recovery.
In addition, the Southern Local Commissioning Group invested in additional community children’s
nursing support for children with complex healthcare needs. This investment has secured extended
evening hours since spring 2013, a weekend on call service since May 2013, and has delivered 93
intravenous antibiotic doses and 29 nasogastric tube replacements in its first few months of operation.
These interventions have prevented the need for hospital admission and facilitated earlier discharge
for a number of children.
The Southern Local Commissioning Group has also been running a one year cataract referrals pilot to
improve the quality of referrals and reduce the number of patients that are referred but who do not
proceed to surgery (approximately 25% of initial referrals), thereby releasing ophthalmology
outpatient appointments for other patients. The pilot will run for one year with optometric practices
in southern area before being evaluated.
Western Local Commissioning Group
Building on the successful Rapid Response Nursing Team, the Western Local Commissioning Group
invested in the first Clinical Intervention Centre. Opened by the Western Trust in Omagh in July
2013, the CIC seeks to maximise specialist nurse time by providing a service to ambulatory patients
who receive acute care at home. Up to six patients at any time can attend the Clinical Intervention
Centre for a range of treatments, including blood transfusions, intravenous antibiotics and palliative
care. The Local Commissioning Group is committed to supporting the Trust to develop further
centres in the next year in Derry/Londonderry, Enniskillen and Strabane and plans to include a
Clinical Intervention Centre in each of the planned Primary Care Hubs in the West.
The extended GP minor surgery scheme continues to provide high quality, accessible services to
patients across the western area who are with a GP practice which does not provide minor surgery.
The Western Local Commissioning Group initiative, which prevents referrals to hospital for minor
surgery, is provided by a network of GP minor surgeons. In 2013/14, over 500 procedures were
carried out within six weeks of referral which would otherwise have been referred for general surgery
outpatient appointment and treatment.
During 2013/14, the Western Local Commissioning Group also invested in the introduction of
Specialist Adult Protection Teams which will put in place a gateway model in dealing with adult
safeguarding referrals. The Safeguarding Service will be a single point of contact for referrals;
investigating, as necessary and within eight weeks; and putting in place Adult Protection Plans, as
required.
In a drive to reduce pseudohyperkalaemia due to artificial elevation of potassium levels in blood
samples due to delayed lab analysis, the Western Local Commissioning Group is funding the
introduction of blood centrifuges in every GP practice across the Western area with the support of the
Western Trust.
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Severe hyperkalaemia is a life-threatening condition which can cause cardiac arrest and is identified
through potassium levels in blood, leading to emergency referral to hospital. Delays in transporting
blood samples can be overcome through centrifugation (‘spinning’ blood samples) which will reduce
artificial elevation readings and, in turn, overcome unnecessary emergency attendances and
admissions to hospital.
South Eastern Local Commissioning Group
This year the South Eastern Local Commissioning Group invested in the roll out to the rest of the
Local Commissioning Group area of its Asymptomatic Sexually Transmitted Infection testing
project, which was successfully piloted in the North Down ICP locality in 2012/13. The North Down
pilot put in place a comprehensive care pathway with dedicated community health advisor support
for a new model of STI testing with close liaison between primary care and South Eastern Trust
secondary care Genito-Urinary Medicine services. Evaluation showed that the pilot provided locally
accessible, cost-effect sexual health care within a framework of robust clinical governance and
demonstrated a high level of patient satisfaction. The service, which offers testing for chlamydia,
gonorrhoea, HIV and syphilis is now being rolled out to GP practices in the Lisburn Integrated Care
Partnership locality in the first instance and is then expected to be implemented in the remainder of
the Local Commissioning Group area in 2014/15.
A primary care based dermatology initiative designed to improve access and quality of dermatology
provision started in the Down Integrated Care Partnership locality in April 2013. The service is being
led by a provider GP practice which provides clinics for patients at their practice. This initiative
involves close liaison between the providing practice and consultant dermatologists in the South
Eastern Trust. The initiative has been underpinned by the development of enhanced dermatology
skills by GPs in the locality through a series of training programmes funded by the Local
Commissioning Group. The service has proven popular with patients and GPs have expressed higher
confidence levels in the appropriateness of their referrals both to the provider GP practice and to
secondary care.
GP practices in North Down and Ards currently have direct access to DEXA scanning in Musgrave
Park hospital in Belfast for patients with suspected osteoporosis. The Medicines Management and
Prescribing Committee of the South Eastern Local Commissioning Group recently agreed protocols
with the South Eastern Trust that will allow GPs in the North Down and Ards localities to directly
refer patients with suspected osteoporosis for DEXA scanning to the scanning facility in the North
Down community hospital. The Local Commissioning Group is funding additional radiographer
input to provide extra DEXA scanning sessions. Currently referral to DEXA scanning is available
through consultant referral only. This new service will enable GP direct access to DEXA scanning in
Bangor hospital for the first time. The service will be fully underway on a pilot basis from the start of
2014/15 and it is hoped to provide a similar direct access service for practices in the Lisburn and
Down localities in the Lagan Valley Hospital in the future.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PERFORMANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE IMPROVEMENT
Michael Bloomfield is the Director of Performance and Corporate Services. The Board’s Directorate
of Performance Management and Service Improvement is responsible for supporting Trusts to
achieve the targets and standards set by the Minister and any additional requirements set by the
Board. It also supports organisations to improve the delivery of services by improving practice and
by identifying innovative and efficient ways of working.
Overview of service performance
Good progress has been made across a range of standards and targets during 2013/14 including:
•

•
•
•
•
•

A significant reduction in the number of patients waiting longer than 12 hours in Emergency
Departments (ED) compared with 2012/13 – however, work is ongoing to further improve ED
waiting times.
A reduction in the number of patients waiting longer than nine weeks for a range of
diagnostic tests.
A high level of performance in the 31 day cancer pathway standard.
Reducing the incidence of C. difficile.
Reductions in the waiting times for commencement of National Institute for Clinical
Excellence (NICE) approved specialist drug therapies for arthritis and psoriasis.
A high level of performance in the waiting times for assessment and completion of the main
care need components of people with continuing care needs.

However, continuing performance challenges include:
•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•

The need for further significant improvement in Emergency Department waiting times. The
Board continues to meet regularly with all Trusts, focussing on a range of issues which
support the effective and timely flow of patients and improved 4-hour performance.
The need for further improvement in scheduled care waiting times. The Board has
commissioned additional activity as required and there have been reductions in treatment
waiting times. The Board will continue to closely monitor the position through regularly
meetings with the Trusts.
Waiting times from referral to commencement of Allied Health Professionals (AHP)
treatment. Trusts have reported an increase in demand as a contributing factor to the increased
waiting times and a regional review of AHP demand and capacity is being undertaken by the
PHA and the Board.
Waiting times in relation to 62 day cancer standard. The Board is working with Trusts and
GPs to understand the increase in red flag referrals and to develop a plan to address it.
Waiting times in relation to 14 day breast cancer. The Board is working with relevant Trusts
regarding solutions to the current performance difficulties.
The need for a reduction in the incidence of MRSA.
Waiting times for psychological therapy services for which actions and additional investment
have been agreed with Trusts.
Making improved progress in mental health and learning disability resettlement programmes
so that these are completed by 2015. Trusts have submitted action plans which aim to ensure
achievement of the resettlement programme by 31 March 2015.
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Service Improvements in ‘Scheduled Care’
Scheduled Care describes pre-arranged services for patients such as hospital treatment, diagnostic
tests or surgery. Service improvement work seeks to improve the patient pathway so that patients are
seen in a timely manner and the services they receive are the key ones for the most effective
diagnosis and treatment. Examples of this work include:
•
•

•
•
•

Commenced a regional review of Vascular Services to ensure a sustainable model for
Vascular Services and ensure achievement of Vascular Society National Standards.
Commenced a review of the Effective Use of Resources Policy to support the consistent
application and monitoring of specified commissioning criteria for a range of agreed
specialties.
Working with South Eastern Trust to expand fracture capacity in the Ulster hospital which
has improved fracture waiting times.
Established the Modernising Radiology Clinical Network and work to progress the
Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority Radiology Report recommendations.
Developed a regional capacity plan for MRI including the planning for additional scanners to
ensure the introduction of extended day and 7-day access to MRI scanning across the region

Service Improvements in ‘Unscheduled Care’
Unscheduled Care describes those services that patients use unexpectedly or in times of emergency.
In the year 2013/14 there has been a significant improvement regionally in relation to the number of
patients having to wait longer than 12 hours for admission to a bed following attendance at the
Emergency Department.
A key focus during 2013/14 has been working with Trusts to develop sustainable improvements in
performance and quality, in relation to both the 12 hour and the 4 hour performance standards.
To identify further opportunities for improvement, the Board’s Service Improvement Team has
undertaken audits in Trusts in relation to implementation of agreed key actions to improve the
unscheduled care pathway, and the outcome of these have been shared with Trusts.
The Service Improvement Team also continues to carry out audits on the use of non-acute beds
across Trusts. This will help identify opportunities to use these resources more efficiently and help
inform future planning.
The Unscheduled Care Service Improvement Team has also worked with the Northern Ireland
Ambulance Service (NIAS) to develop a dashboard of nine key indicators that will facilitate NIAS to
more effectively manage demand particularly during times of system wide pressures.
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Information Management
The Information Management team provides an information and analysis service that supports the
performance management, service improvement and delivery, commissioning and financial
management work of the Board.
Over the past year, the team’s work has included:
•

Continued development and improvement on the scope, timeliness, accuracy and availability
of management information and analysis in order to support key decision-making.

•

Supporting the continued regular performance monitoring and reporting of over 70 key
performance targets, standards and indicators.

•

Development and expansion of the scope of service data across emergency care, radiology
and theatre services available via the regional data warehouse. This has included the
development of a real-time dashboard displaying information around key emergency
pressures indicators.

•

Continued development and maintenance of improved levels of data standards, data quality
and clinical coding across Health and Social Care services to improve the consistency and
quality of management information.

•

Implementation of effective information monitoring systems and processes during all the
major events of 2013 (G8 summit, World Police and Fire Games and Fleadh Cheoil na
hÉireann) to help ensure that information on the impact on health services could be quickly
accessed and assessed.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF INTEGRATED CARE
Dr Sloan Harper is the Director of Integrated Care. The Directorate of Integrated Care is responsible
for commissioning and managing General Medical, Dental, Optometric and Pharmacy services. It is
also responsible for the development of Integrated Care Partnerships and the Health and Care Centre
Development Programme.
Addressing the needs of older people and the growing prevalence of long term conditions demands
improvements in the coordination of care between multiple providers of health and social care in the
community. As regional commissioning organisations, the Board along with the Public Health
Agency are ideally placed to use the commissioning process to reflect the need for greater
integration.
Integrated Care Partnerships
During the pre-strategy consultation for Transforming Your Care (TYC), there was a very clear
message from the public, and from elected representatives, that we make every effort to ensure that
the care of older people and the vulnerable in our society is the best it can be, and that we coordinate
the contributions of providers to deliver reliable and consistently high standards of care within a more
joined up service.
The development of Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) is a key enabler for the service
improvements described in the Transforming Your Care vision and their development has been
endorsed by Health Minister Edwin Poots through a policy framework and the availability of
transitional funding. Integrated Care Partnerships recognise the essential roles of Trusts, primary care
contractors, the voluntary and community sector and users and carers in ensuring continuity in the
delivery of health and social care. Numbering seventeen, each Partnership covers a population of
around 100,000 people.
Obstacles to continuity of care are systemic and complex. Integrated Care Partnerships will be
supported in addressing issues such as the volume of work, ordinary routines that govern the working
day (and night), the culture of care both in organisations and in teams, levels of training and skills
and the values of staff.
At present, the clinical priorities of Integrated Care Partnerships focus on the care of older people,
respiratory, diabetic and stroke care, and end of life care as it relates to these areas. Integrated Care
Partnerships are embedded in the delivery system and use the power of networks to create shared
understanding and better coordinate the input of multiple sectors to: identify patients and clients at
risk; agree clinical and care protocols; develop individual care plans and use improvements in
technology, such as the Electronic Care Record, to share clinical and care information between those
working in both the hospital and community settings.
Significant progress has been made in taking forward the ICP programme in 2013/14:
The Policy Implementation Framework published by the Department of Health, Social Services and
Public Safety (DHSSPS) in May 2013 provided a sound basis for the establishment of Integrated
Care Partnerships and significant progress has been made since then.
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Project management arrangements have been established to oversee the development of Integrated
Care Partnerships, including a Regional Integrated Care Partnerships Project Board, Integrated Care
Partnerships Project Team, a Stakeholder Reference Group and a clinical and business support
structure has been established.
Seventeen Integrated Care Partnerships have been in place since June 2013 and all now have
representation from the full range of providers including third sector organisations and service users
and carers. Partnership committee meetings have been held on a quarterly basis since June and
elections of a chairperson for each committee have recently concluded, with those elected including
both a third sector representative and a service user representative.
The Integrated Care Partnership Clinical Leadership Development Programme was launched in
September 2013 to develop senior leadership capability and capacity within Integrated Care
Partnerships with approximately fifty participants including GPs, community pharmacists and
hospital consultants. In 2014/15, Integrated Care Partnerships development programmes will also be
delivered to support Integrated Care Partnership committees and their chairpersons, including
dedicated support to third sector and service user and carer representatives.
Each Integrated Care Partnership is continuing work to map current patient pathways for the agreed
clinical condition areas and to develop more integrated pathways for the future. Some local service
improvement initiatives have been identified for funding in year and work is ongoing to seek
approval from the Board’s Senior Management Team to release transitional funds. Progress has also
been made in developing a regional approach to risk stratification and proactive care planning which
is central to the work of Integrated Care Partnerships.
Ultimately, the success of Integrated Care Partnerships will depend on people and their ability to lead
through making agreements and finding accommodations which recognise the needs of other sectors,
but keep the patient and client at the heart of everything they do. We must all be relentless in pursuit
of that goal.
Family Practitioner Services
The Board’s Directorate of Integrated Care manages the contracts which the Board holds with over
1,500 independent contractors - GPs, dentists, community pharmacists and optometrists. The
significant resource related to these services (in excess of £800m) includes the funding for the supply
of medicines by GPs and community pharmacists. Linked to contract management, the Directorate
also manages processes related to clinical governance and service improvement for Family
Practitioner Services.
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Pharmacy and Medicines Management
Medicines are the most commonly used intervention in modern health care and the Board continues
to provide leadership to raise standards of safety, quality, efficacy and efficiency of medicines used
across Northern Ireland. Rather than focus on any one discipline or part of the service, the Board has
been working in a holistic approach from prescriber to pharmacy to carer/patient. Objectives
delivered in 2013/14 include:
•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Completion and launch of the Northern Ireland Formulary for Medicines which is guiding
prescribing choice in primary and secondary care. The maintenance and further development
of the formulary will ensure high standards of prescribing quality for patients and facilitate
efficiencies for reinvestment in patient and client care.
The Board monitors a range of prescribing quality indicators and these evidence the drive for
improvement by prescribers.
The Board has developed a mechanism to ensure that clinically and cost effective medicines
are available throughout Health and Social Care based upon up-to-date, independent and
evaluated evidence.
The Board has commissioned the delivery of improved systems for the administration of
prescriptions resulting in quicker payments for community pharmacy and more timely
information for monitoring process we recognise the commitment of the Business Services
Organisation (BSO) and community pharmacists in delivery of this project given the
requirement to handle thirty eight million paper based prescriptions per year handled through
largely manual systems.
In 2013/14 the Board developed plans to link community pharmacies to the Health and Social
Care network, improving communications. It is expected that these will be developed further
in 2014/15.
Community pharmacy services have been enhanced in 2013/14 through the commissioning of
a Medicines Use Review service, targeting patients with respiratory conditions. This service
will be extended into other therapy areas in 2014/15.
The Board has been working closely with PHA in the development of the Health and
Pharmacy concept. It aims to enhance health improvement opportunities through community
pharmacy.
Medicines safety continues to be a focus of activity. Initiatives being taken forward include:
improving the reporting and follow up of incidents; support tools to improve prescribing and
administration of medicines; and learning points specifically tailored to improve medicines
use.
The Board developed a number of initiatives aimed to improve medicines use by patients. The
issue of non-compliance with medicines is significant, leading to less than optimal outcomes
for patients and increased waste and inefficiencies. The Board commissioned work to identify
solutions to this problem and has encouraged greater patient involvement in the medicines use
process through the Choice and Medications website. It targets medicines for mental health
(http://www.choiceandmedication.org/hscni/); and through the implementation of patient
information tools such as the Pain Tool Kit (http://www.paintoolkit.org/). Further work is
planned to engage with patients and service users in 2014/15 to enhance patient and client
involvement in how they manage their own medicines.
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General Medical (GP) Services
The changes to the General Medical Services Contract for 2013/14 were successfully negotiated and
agreed between the DHSSPS and the Board.
The GP Practice continues to be central to delivering enhanced care to those with long term
conditions, including care of older people and patients with mental health problems. During 2013/14
the Board, through mechanisms offered by the GP contract, invested in services to identify patients
most at risk from their illness and enable a joint response from GP and community nursing teams.
Participation in Integrated Care Partnerships has created the potential for collaborative working with
community as well as hospital clinicians, building on the existing model of integrated Health and
Social Care. Improving how these teams work together for the benefit of patients and service users
will mean challenging existing systems and processes to meet the future demands for the provision of
healthcare.
Medical revalidation, introduced by the General Medical Council in 2012, has completed the first
year of a five year cycle to ensure that all doctors in general practice undertake revalidation
requirements. Approximately 310 doctors have now successfully revalidated.
The rollout of the Emergency Care Summary across all Northern Ireland GP practices means that GP
Out of Hours services, Emergency Departments and hospital pharmacies can accurately assess a
patient’s medication and allergies.
A new computer system has been introduced to make it easier for health care staff to get the
information they need to look after patients, even if patient treatment is in a different hospital or
another part of the service. The new system is called the Northern Ireland Electronic Care Record
(NIECR). NIECR contains information from existing electronic record systems from hospitals and
clinics throughout Northern Ireland and includes lab tests, x-rays, appointments, discharge letters,
medications and any allergies shared by a GP through the Emergency Care Summary.
General Dental Services
In 2013/14 the Board piloted a new primary care oral surgery contract in the Southern Local
Commissioning Group area. The pilot introduced a pro forma referral form for General Dental
Practitioners, electronic transfer of radiographs between referrers and specialist oral surgery
providers, and an independent triage unit to determine whether patients should be seen in primary or
secondary care. A mid-term evaluation of the pilot has been produced and the final evaluation report
is due at the end of March 2014.
Significant progress was also made this year on the new General Dental Services contract. A contact
framework has been agreed and plans for two waves of pilots are at an advanced stage. The Board
expects to issue a call for expressions of interest in the pilots during 2014/15.
This year, to ensure optimum usage of resources and best care for patients, considerable effort has
been made to produce referral guidelines and referral proformas for various Trust-provided specialist
dental services.
A comprehensive oral medicine referral package was developed and distributed to all General
Medical and Dental Practitioners in November 2013 and arrangements are underway to provide
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complementary training. Referral guidelines have also been developed for orthodontic services with
guidelines for other dental specialisms in development.
Optometry Services
Following launch of DHSSPS policy document “Developing Eyecare Partnerships” in 2012, the
Board and PHA continue to develop strategies to implement the twelve objectives of that plan. These
include improving contractual arrangements with optometrists, and commissioning patient-centred
pathway models to diagnose and treat long-term ophthalmic conditions such as glaucoma, diabetic
retinopathy and macular degeneration, many of which can affect our frail elderly population.
Progress has also been made on rolling out secure electronic communications between optometrists,
GPs and Trusts, allowing secure two-way communication channels and improving patient journeys.
Health and Care Centre Development
Investment in infrastructure is a key requirement to modernise our health care service and facilitate
the implementation of Transforming Your Care. Transforming Your Care will see further integration
of services, bringing together clinical and care professionals and addressing the need to provide a
broader range of services to patients closer to their homes. The Health Infrastructure Board is driving
forward the programme for investment in health and care centres across the region through a “hub
and spoke” configuration. The two key pathfinder projects, Newry and Lisburn primary and
community care centres, will see the development of two new facilities funded through the ‘Third
Party Development’ model. Both projects are currently in procurement, with a view to contract award
early to mid-2015.
Extensive engagement with key stakeholders has been ongoing over recent months to identify and
prioritise the future tranches of major hub projects and the investment requirements for the associated
spokes. Innovative options are being considered to fund these projects through potential use of
Financial Transactions Capital loan/equity scheme. The Regional Strategic Implementation Plan,
which is currently being drafted, will set out the proposals for the overall programme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL CARE AND CHILDREN
Fionnuala McAndrew is the Director of Social Care and Children. The role of the Board’s
Directorate of Social Care and Children is to commission social work and social care services for
people with different individual needs who require support to live life fully and as independently as
possible, and to protect the interests of children and adults at risk of abuse. During the year, a
number of initiatives and developments were progressed across the following service areas.
Services for Adults
•

Development and launch of a public consultation exercise regarding statutory residential care
for older people. The outcome of this consultation will quality assure Trust proposals for
future service reform and ensure that a transparent and consistent regional approach is in
place for this important piece of work.

•

New service developments for dementia services. Significant additional funding has been put
in place to support the delivery of key actions to enhance services for people with dementia;
with memory services the priority.

•

Regional implementation of the electronic Northern Ireland Single Assessment Tool (eNISAT) is underway to support the single assessment tool. The electronic version of NISAT
is being used in over 50% of Integrated Care Teams. Preparatory work has been undertaken to
implement e-NISAT within Physical and Sensory Disability programmes of care.

•

Provision of improved support for carers through increased access to carer assessments and
use of ‘short break’ respite options.

•

Implementation of the Physical and Sensory Disability Action Plan has progressed in
partnership with key stakeholders from the DHSSPS, PHA and the Community and Voluntary
Sector.

•

Launch of the Northern Ireland Adult Safeguarding Partnership Plan 2013 – 18. A
commitment by all the organisations working with the Northern Ireland Adult Safeguarding
Partnership (NIASP) and Local Adult Safeguarding Partnerships to work together to
continually improve services to safeguard adults at risk in Northern Ireland. The Plan sets out
a vision for adult safeguarding services over the next 5 years.

•

Reablement - in 2014 approximately 4750 older people benefitted from reablement, which
has supported them to live independently at home, with 45% of those able to be discharged
with no statutory service required.
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Services for Children and Families
•

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services have received additional funding to support
ongoing development of crisis resolution and home treatment and primary mental health
services. This has led to improvements in waiting times for specialist services.

•

A review of residential children’s homes has been completed and plans for the re-design of
this service will be developed in 2014/15.

•

The Joint Protocol for Joint Investigation of alleged or suspected cases of child abuse was
revised in partnership with the Police Service of Northern Ireland and came into force in
September 2013.

•

The Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership has continued to support five
outcomes groups, one in each Trust area. These groups have, through the Health and Social
Care Trusts, secured £3m funding for family support / early intervention services in their area.

•

Family Support Hubs have been identified as a signature project by the Office of the First
Minister and Deputy First Minister (OFMDFM) under the policy Delivering Social Change.
Three new Family Support Hubs have been developed in 2013/14 bringing the total to18.

•

A new Intensive Family Support Service has been procured as a pilot in the Belfast Trust,
with an investment of £5.7m.

•

Minimum standards for child-minding and day-care have been implemented leading to a more
consistent approach to registration and inspection.

•

A survey of adopters of looked after children has been completed in partnership with
Adoption UK and this work will inform the development of adoption services in light of the
forthcoming new legislation.

Services for people with a Learning Disability
•

The evaluation of the Directed Enhanced Service for physical health checks recommends
continuation of this service. The outcome to date is that 69% of adults with a learning
disability have at least one check in first 2 years of schemes operation.

•

Resettlement of long-stay patients continues and will be completed by 2015. Individual needs
continue to be matched with the most appropriate community placement.

•

Short break/respite services were increased in Trusts.

•

A Day Opportunities model was subject to consultation with a view to providing individuals
with more opportunities to participate in community based activities.

•

Accommodation and support needs of older people with a learning disability has been the
subject of a needs assessment. A plan to meet these needs will be developed in partnership
with the Northern Ireland Housing Executive.
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Services for people with Mental Health issues
•

Primary Care Psychological Therapy Hub commenced as pilots in each Trust.

•

Personality Disorder Team has been established in each Trust area.

•

The reduction in waiting times for a mental health response in Emergency Departments is an
important target and is being achieved through specific investment in psychological
medicine/liaison psychiatry.

•

Resettlement of long stay patients continues and will be completed by 2015. Individual needs
continue to be matched with the most appropriate community placement.

•

Adult specific services for Autism Spectrum Disorder have received new investment and each
Trust has a service in place.

•

A training programme has been provided to staff promoting recovery approaches
(Implementing Recovery through Organisational Change - IMROC) and was launched in
partnership with service users and carers. This will help to improve the experience of people
with mental health difficulties.

•

A new framework for addiction services has been launched following public consultation and
a separate consultation has been undertaken on the future of impatient services.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PERFORMANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES
CORPORATE SERVICES
Michael Bloomfield is the Director of Performance and Corporate Services. The Board’s Corporate
Services department provides business and organisational support across a range of functions that
play an important part in ensuring the effectiveness of the organisation. These provide for the
monitoring and maintenance of internal governance, the management and protection of business
information, the provision of an effective communications service, and support in responding to
major incidents and emergencies. Work to discharge this range of functions has included the
following:
Governance and Information Management
In order to ensure a sound system of internal control, effective internal governance arrangements
continued to remain a priority task for the Board this year, alongside the implementation of an
effective Information Governance framework.
Within Governance, work has focused on maintaining the overarching Governance Framework
which encompasses a robust Assurance Framework, a fully functioning Risk Register and continued
compliance with relevant Controls Assurance Standards.
The Board has continued to monitor the reporting and follow up of Serious Adverse Incidents (SAIs).
In October 2013, following consultation with relevant stakeholders, a revised procedure for the
reporting and follow up of SAIs was issued to the HSC. To support the full implementation of the
revised procedure by 1 April 2014, the Board and PHA provided Significant Event Audit and Root
Cause Analysis training programmes to staff across Health and Social Care. In conjunction with
revised SAI processes, arrangements are in place for the implementation and assurance of safety
alerts and related correspondence.
Freedom of Information and Subject Access Requests
During the year the Board received and responded to a number of Freedom of Information (FOI)
requests as follows:
•
•
•

FOI requests received from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 = 118
In addition the Board received and responded to seven Subject Access Requests during the
period.
No major personal data protection incidents occurred during 2013/14.

Corporate Business
During 2013/14 Corporate Business staff continued to provide secretarial services to the Board and
its twelve committees, five of which are Local Commissioning Groups, and also supported public
meetings of the Board and Local Commissioning Groups held in venues throughout Northern Ireland.
Throughout 2013/14, Corporate Business facilitated a public recruitment exercise for the
appointment of Chairs and a number of Members for each of the five Local Commissioning Groups.
Corporate Business undertook the annual review of Board’s Standing Orders, reserved and delegated
powers which, together with Standing Financial Instructions, provide a comprehensive business
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framework to enable the organisation to discharge its functions. An annual review of the Board’s
Register of Interests for Directors, Local Commissioning Groups and Committee members who are
not members of the Board was also completed.
“Managing Public Money Northern Ireland” requires all public bodies to devise and implement an
appropriate asset management strategy to define how it acquires, maintains, tracks, deploys and
disposes of the various assets it uses. Corporate Business produced the Board’s first Property Asset
Management Plan for the period 2013/14 – 2018/19 for submission to DHSSPS. The plan will be
updated annually by 1 April each year and the plan for 2014/15 has been approved by the Senior
Management Team.
Sustainability
The Board has a commitment to Sustainability, Environmental, Social and Community issues and to
support this a number of key policies and documents were produced in line with Controls Assurance
Standards. The principles are also embedded within the business of the Board and highlighted
throughout this document.
A Space Utilisation Survey was undertaken in the Board’s four main offices during 2013/14, the
recommendations of which will help inform the Board’s Property Asset Management Plan.
A range of initiatives were taken forward during the year to support the implementation of the
Board’s Environmental Management Policy and complementary Waste Management Policy which
included a boiler replacement scheme in the western and eastern offices, an energy audit of the
western office, a number of low energy lighting schemes in the eastern office and a number of
recycling initiatives in the southern and northern offices.
Equality, Human Resources and Diversity
During 2013/14 the Board continued its work to equality screen new and revised policies and develop
staff capacity through training. Equality, human rights, good relations and diversity objectives were
included in the Board’s Corporate Plan. The Board’s Equality Action Plan was completed and
published in July 2013. Work was also progressed in accordance with the commitments outlined in
year one of the Disability Action Plan 2013-2018. A Disability Working Group was established in
the Board, working in close collaboration with the Equality Unit in the Business Services
Organisation and other health and social care organisations. The Board has also been working to
identify, provide and promote opportunities for more engagement for people with a disability in key
work areas.
Human Resources
The Human Resources service is provided to the Board by staff in the Business Services
Organisation. It manages a wide portfolio of policy and procedural matters that relate to staff
management, workforce planning, employee relations, training and development and liaison with
staff-side and trade union organisations.
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The Human Resources, Payroll, Travel and Subsistence (HRPTS) portal was introduced in March
2013. It is a self-service portal for employees and managers to complete human resources, payroll
and travel related tasks. This has changed how the majority of processes are completed and
employees and managers are adapting well.
Sickness Absence
The percentage figure for sickness absence during the financial year was 3.36%.
Complaints
The Board has responsibility for the monitoring and performance management of health and social
care complaints. Through agreed mechanisms, the Board has oversight of all Health and Social Care
complaints raised at Trust and Family Practitioner Service level. The analysed information is shared
with relevant professionals and is considered by the Regional Complaints Subgroup of the Quality
and Experience Group, which meets on a monthly basis. The Board has produced its fourth Annual
Report on Complaints which is available on its website (www.hscb.hscni.net/publications).
During 2013/14, as part of the continued implementation of the recommendations from the
Evaluation of ‘Complaints in Health and Social Care’, the Board held two service user focus groups
to gain direct feedback from complainants on what works well within the complaints process, what
improvements are required, and what the perceived barriers are to making a complaint. Feedback
indicated that there is still a lack of general public awareness as to how to make a complaint,
communication between Health and Social Care organisations and complainants should be enhanced
during the process, that there was limited support available to those who wished to make a complaint,
there was not enough feedback about learning or changes to policy or practice as a result of
complaints and that there is a fear of complaining in case doing so may impact upon their treatment
and care, or that of their relative.
The Board is working with the DHSSPS, Trusts, the Patient and Client Council, and Family
Practitioner Service Practice Managers and service users in relation to addressing these issues.
To enhance the effectiveness of regional learning from complaints, the Board has worked with Trusts
and this year developed and implemented a learning template, in which detail of any significant
learning is notified to the Board so it may be determined if there are any regional learning
implications for dissemination to the wider HSC. The information from the learning templates is
shared with the Regional Complaints Subgroup for consideration and any further actions or
dissemination is considered by the Quality Safety and Experience Group.
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
The Board adheres to the DHSSPS Emergency Planning Controls Assurance Standards which state
“All Health and Social Care organisations should have detailed emergency preparedness plans in
place, which are reviewed annually and which are part of an annual programme for testing and
validating plans.”
The Board, PHA and BSO work collaboratively to continually review and enhance emergency
preparedness arrangements. A Flu, Weather and Major Events Group was established last year to
further enhance emergency and wider Health and Social Care preparedness and to oversee the coordination of planning for major events and preparation for adverse events.
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This year saw Health and Social Care organisations prepare for three major events - the G8 in June
2013, the World, Police and Fire Games in August 2013 and Fleadh Cheoil na hÉireann as part of the
Londonderry City of Culture celebrations, also in August 2013. Effective planning enabled these
events to pass off successfully and without any major impact upon health and social care services.
Part of the preparation for these events included a Health and Social Care wide test of emergency
plans in May 2013.
The Board’s Business Continuity Plan which is aligned to the British Standards Institution BS25999
standard will be further refined to take account of learning from the annual test of the plan held in
September 2013.
Communications
In 2013/14, the Board’s communications department implemented a comprehensive communications
strategy which will shape the Health and Social Care Board’s communications over the next three
years. This strategy outlines the approach the Board will take to inform internal and external
stakeholders and the wider public about the role and work of the Board.
Throughout the year, communications staff worked closely with Board colleagues to provide media
management and communications support for a range of high profile issues including Transforming
Your Care, the consultation on statutory residential homes, child sexual exploitation, and the future
of children’s heart surgery. This involved arranging interviews, providing briefings, preparing
communications plans, issuing statements and press releases, and supporting public meetings and
focus groups.
Communications staff also focused on improving the Board’s online presence. Work commenced on
developing a new corporate website and intranet site which will include more modern features. The
Department also piloted use of digital channels such as social media and e-zines to connect and
engage with stakeholders.
2013/14 also saw the development and implementation of Choose Well - a regional public
information campaign which aims to raise awareness of the health services available in local areas
and educate people about when to use each service. The campaign, developed by the Board’s
Communications Department, is supported by the Health Minister and Health and Social Care
organisations across Northern Ireland. It includes TV, leaflets, posters, press, online and outdoor
advertising to ensure the message reaches target audiences effectively.
Effective partnership working also featured highly throughout 2013/14 as the Communications
Department worked closely with a range of organisations to ensure safe and successful major events
including G8, World Police and Fire Games and Fleadh Cheoil na hÉireann 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF TRANSFORMING YOUR CARE
Pamela McCreedy is the Director of Transforming Your Care. Following the publication of the
Review of Health and Social Care in Northern Ireland – Transforming Your Care (TYC) in December
2011, the Health and Social Care Board has been moving forward with investment in, and
implementation of, new models of care in line with the vision set out in Transforming Your Care.
Against a backdrop of an ageing population, and advances in technology, treatments and care models,
Transforming Your Care sets out a vision for major change across our health and social care system
with the aim of more prevention and early intervention to stop people becoming ill in the first place,
and being more joined up in how we care for people when they are ill. In particular, how we care for
people who have long term or chronic conditions, such as diabetes or asthma, needs to change.
Transforming Your Care highlighted that managed, thoughtful and planned change is needed now to
ensure that we can meet everyone’s needs in the future. The shift from hospital and institutional care
to home-based, community care is inherent in Transforming Your Care, and is expected to be
supported through a 5% shift in resources within the Health and Social Care budget over the next two
years.
As we moved into the 2013/14 year, the Transforming Your Care proposals had received widespread
endorsement through the public consultation on the Vision to Action document with over 97% of
respondents to the consultation agreeing with the need for change.
Upon this basis, significant progress has been made and some of the major achievements this year
have been:
1. Investing in new models of care and our capacity to deliver: The Transforming Your Care
Programme secured £9.4m from the Northern Ireland Executive this year to invest in
Transforming Your Care, over and above the investment in reform from existing Board funding
sources.
This demonstrates a real commitment across government to achieving change in health and social
care, and by making transitional funding available it means that new or different services can be
in place and working well before we change other parts of the service.
Some of the priority areas receiving this investment have been:
•

•
•
•
•

Integrated Care Partnerships including the set-up of the new collaborative networks, design
of new care pathways for the clinical priorities (frail elderly, stroke, diabetes and respiratory),
and invest in new projects in their areas.
Support to backfill clinical and frontline staff across Trusts and Local Commissioning Groups
to release them for change activities, and leading local Transforming Your Care initiatives.
Self Directed Support which will increase the choice and control that users have over the
social care budget and services they receive.
Specialist Foster Carers to support prevention and early intervention through a community
based approach for ‘looked after children’ who need placements outside their families.
Stroke Services to improve quality of care to patients through providing 24/7 thrombolysis,
making best use of dedicated acute stroke / hyperacute units, and increasing the emphasis on
early intervention, rehabilitation, and self-management in the community.
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•

New Ambulance Response models enabling paramedics to provide assessment and treatment
at the scene, and only those who need more or specialist treatment will be transported to
hospital.

2. Ensuring Transforming Your Care projects are up and running: Transforming Your Care has been
described as the biggest change in health and social care in Northern Ireland in a generation, and
it brings together changes across the vast range of services provided in our health and social care
system, which spends some £4bn per year.
One of the major priorities for the Transforming Your Care Programme this year has been
establishing the programme of projects which will bring about this change in a planned and
integrated way.
Some of these already existed and have been aligned with Transforming Your Care, others have
been started this year. All are making real changes which benefit patients, users and carers. An
illustrative sample of some of the important projects Transforming Your Care is supporting are:
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Integrated Care Partnerships – seventeen Integrated Care Partnerships have been established
bringing together Trusts, primary care contractors, the voluntary and community sector and
users and carers with the aim of improving patient and client outcomes and experience,
especially for those most in need of early intervention, care, treatment and support. The ICPs
are making significant progress [as described in the Director of Integrated Care’s Report in
this Annual Report].
Statutory Residential Homes – the first stage of public consultation on how we meet the
accommodation needs of older people in the future [as described in the Director of Social
Care and Children’s Report in this Annual Report].
Reablement – these are services for people who have suffered from a health or social care
crisis, those who are recovering from an illness or injury and have become frail as a result.
Reablement is at the heart of the vision in Transforming Your Care - to help people stay
independent and continue to live in their own homes. This new service is now fully
operational across most of Northern Ireland with further expansion planned elsewhere.
Self-Referral Physiotherapy - patients will be able to refer themselves to a physiotherapist
without having to see a GP or a healthcare professional, meaning easier and swifter access to
the care they need. The early implementer site has been established in the south eastern area,
with full roll-out anticipated next year.
Delivering Choices – a partnership project has been developed between the Board and Marie
Curie Cancer Care to transform people’s care at the end of their life so that more people can
die in the place of their choice. An engaging and inclusive process this year has brought
forward innovations and new ideas which will be implemented in 2014.
Primary Percutaneous Cardiac Intervention (pPCI) – this important service, for people who
have a certain type of heart attack, leads to reduced mortality and significantly improved
outcomes, and has been expanded this year at the Royal Victoria Hospital. This means that
more people are getting the right care in the right place leading to better outcomes.
Health and Care Centres – investment in our local health facilities is critical to the successful
delivery of care closer to home, and this year has seen significant progress, including start of
building work in Banbridge and Ballymena, to add to work ongoing at the local enhanced
hospital in Omagh and the other centres already in place, such as Portadown, Kilkeel and the
seven centres in Belfast. New pathfinder centres are being planned for Newry and Lisburn,
and a prioritised list of investment in other health and care centres across Northern Ireland is
being developed.
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Sharing knowledge, and building capacity and innovation: Critical to the success of Transforming
Your Care is the involvement of everyone, supporting our workforce in terms of capacity and skills,
and the development of innovative solutions to the challenges we face.
Some of the ways the Transforming Your Care Programme has supported this in 2013/14 are:
•

•

•

•

•

Workforce and service planning – to meet the challenge of workforce/service remodelling
presented by Transforming Your Care, a regional workforce/service planning tool is planned,
which will enable Health and Social Care organisations to match and align finance, activity
(service) and workforce data to support service planning.
Web Portal – access to information is critical if we want to support people to make the right
decisions about their health and wellbeing, and where to get help when they need it. TYC is
supporting the development of a web portal which will bring together information about all
health and social care services in Northern Ireland, based on engagement with citizens about
their information needs.
The Health and Social Care Knowledge Exchange – in partnership with the Health and Social
Care Leadership Centre, Transforming Your Care has launched a new initiative which
provides access to best practice, supports knowledge and ideas sharing, and provides a place
for debate for all those involved in providing health and social care services.
Investing in skills and development – a range of training and development initiatives are in
place to support Transforming Your Care including Integrated Care Partnerships Leadership
Development and programmes to equip staff to lead and manage change in their areas. There
is investment in nursing and midwifery re-skilling and development to support the shift into
more community / primary care settings.
Communication and engagement about Transforming Your Care – we continue to engage
widely about Transforming Your Care, and use feedback we get through those engagements
to inform the development of projects and initiatives. This includes our website and social
media channels, as well as a regular email magazine.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EHEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE AND EXTERNAL
ENGAGEMENT
Sean Donaghy is the Director of eHealth and Social Care and External Engagement.
The World Health Organisation defines eHealth as ‘the use of information and communication
technologies (ICT) for health.’
Northern Ireland has the particular advantage of integrated health and social care, and the descriptor
has therefore been extended to include social care. This broad definition encompasses all aspects of
technology and information management, including remote telecommunications to support patients
and clients. Following the appointment of a Director of eHealth and External Collaboration, DHSSPS
has agreed the need to devise a new 5-year strategy for eHealth and Care. The development of the
strategy is being led by the Board and PHA, supported by other Health and Social Care organisations.
In progressing external collaboration, the objective of engaging with Europe and further afield is to
secure support for the adoption of best practice and the development of innovative solutions to meet
our current service challenges. In addition to these benefits, in pursuing European engagement the
health service should aim to attract additional funding from European competitive funding streams.
The strategies to be pursued are set out in Transforming Your Care (TYC), Quality 2020, and other
regional policies and strategies; these strategies are broadly consistent with key European strategies
including the European Innovation Partnership for Active and Healthy Ageing. The Board and PHA
will support the development of partnerships across Europe, and promote an integrated response from
the health service in Northern Ireland to maximise the opportunity for success in bidding, and the
impact of those successes by promoting alignment with the agenda set out in Transforming Your
Care and Quality 2020.
The Board’s eHealth and Social Care team oversees the strategic development of Information and
Communication Technologies (ICT) services across the region. During the past year the Board
continued to invest in eHealth and Social Care systems and services to support transformational
change. Achievements in 2013/14 include:
•

The formal launch of the Northern Ireland Electronic Care Record (NIECR) in June 2013.
The NIECR is now regularly used by around 6,000 clinical staff, with usage growing on an
ongoing basis.

•

Provided guidance and assistance to the Western HSC Trust during the successful
development of its business case for a Community Information System, and then assisted with
the successful procurement of a Community Information System for the Trust. The eHealth
team is represented on the Trust’s Community Information System implementation project
board.

•

Provided guidance and assistance to the Northern Ireland Cancer Network (NICaN) during
the successful development of a business case for a new Regional Information System for
Oncology and Haematology, and then assisted in the procurement of a new ICT system. The
eHealth team is represented on the regional implementation project board.

•

Provided guidance and assistance to BSO during the development of a business case for the
upgrading of the GP data network. The eHealth team is represented on the project board for
this project.
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•

Leading on a project to improve the uptake of the Clinical Communications Gateway.
Clinical Communications Gateway provides an electronic means for referring patients. The
eHealth team has also led on work to electronically link Clinical Communications Gateway
with the NIECR and Trust Patient Administration Systems.

•

Carried out a review of the Health and Social Care ICT Security policy with a particular focus
on the use of mobile devices.

•

Carried out extensive consultation with a broad range of stakeholders on the development of a
new eHealth Strategy.

In addition the eHealth and Social Care team is also supporting the development of business cases
for:
•
•
•

Data Quality in Practice (DQiP)
Key Information Summary (KIS)
Electronic prescribing in hospitals
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Reports from the Board’s Committees
The Board has a number of Committees to scrutinise important aspects of its work. These cover the
following:
•
•
•
•
•

Reference
Governance
Audit
Pharmacy Practices
Remuneration and Terms of Service

A report now follows from each of these Committees on their work during the past year.
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Report of the Board’s Reference Committee
The role of the Board’s Reference Committee is to ensure that the highest quality of health and social
care is maintained in Northern Ireland. Primarily this is achieved by monitoring the professional
standards of family care practitioners – GPs, dentists, pharmacists and opticians, considering
complaints and feedback about any relevant matters, and referring any such cases for further
investigation. Depending on the nature of each case, subsequent investigation can involve the Board,
other agencies or relevant professional bodies such as the General Dental Council, the General
Medical Council, the General Ophthalmic Council or the Pharmaceutical Society of Northern Ireland.
The work of the Committee is supported by professional officers and their staff.
The Reference Committee met on five occasions during 2013/14 and received regular updates on
cases throughout the year. The Committee has established processes to ensure that any cases coming
before it are considered in a fair and confidential manner and, with Board professional leads,
regularly reviews the operation of these processes to ensure they are fit for purpose. Occasionally
concerns over relevant strategic issues are raised with the Health and Social Care Board.
Cases that can require consideration by the Reference Committee can relate to:
• Failings in professional standards
• Serious Adverse Incidents involving a practitioner, particularly when an incident puts the
public at risk
• Matters referred by the police, the Coroner, or other legal entities
In overall terms, the Committee remains of the view that the quality of care and clinical standards
provided by family practitioners across Northern Ireland remains of a very high standard. Any such
failings remain as rare events, and the Committee acknowledges that much work continues to
maintain and develop standards. This process is being actively pursued with the input and assistance
of practitioners and their representative organisations.
Mr Brendan McKeever
Chair of the Board Reference Committee
Membership of the Reference Committee:
Mr Brendan McKeever, Chair
Dr Melissa McCullough, Non Executive Director
Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew OBE, Executive Director/Director of Social Care and Children’s Services
In attendance:
Dr Sloan Harper, Director of Integrated Care - professional advice
Mrs Carol Mooney, Corporate Secretariat Manager
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Report of the Board’s Governance Committee
The Governance Committee is made up of four Non Executive Directors: Stephen Leach (Chair), Dr
Melissa McCullough, Dr Robert Thompson and John Mone. To ensure an integrated understanding
of risks across the organisation, the Non Executive membership of the Governance and Audit
Committees is broadly the same. However, the Governance Committee includes a Non Executive
member with a professional nursing background.
In addition, the Board’s Senior Management Team is in attendance at all meetings of the Governance
Committee. During the 2013/14 financial year, the Governance Committee met on three occasions:
on 6 June 2013; 26 September 2013 and 30 January 2014. In addition to these scheduled Committee
meetings, a joint meeting of the Governance and Audit Committees was held on 15 October 2013 to
consider the mid-year Assurance Statement.
The Governance Committee provides assurance to the Board across a broad area, including:
• Management of corporate risk
• Quality, safety and standards in health and social care
• Social Care Delegated Statutory Functions Controls assurance and internal control
• Serious adverse incident management
• Complaints management
• Litigation management
• Maintenance of the reputation, image and integrity of the Health and Social Care Board
• Professional regulation
• Information governance
During the 2013/14, the Committee considered a range of important issues, including the Board’s
Corporate Risk Register, Learning Reports from Serious Adverse Incidents (SAIs), Medicines
Prescribing Guidance and Formulary Process, Northern Ireland Adult Safeguarding Report and the
Corporate Parenting Report. The Committee also receives briefings on Case Management Reviews as
well as reports from professional leads.
Once approved by the Committee, minutes of Governance Committee meetings are brought to the
attention of the full Board at the subsequent public Board meeting.
Stephen Leach
Chair of the Governance Committee

36

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Report of the Board’s Audit Committee
Within the 2013/14 financial year six meetings of the Audit Committee were held, along with a joint
meeting with the Governance Committee to consider the mid-year Assurance Statement.
The Audit Committee advises the Board and Accounting Officer on the following:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

The strategic processes for risk, control, financial governance and the Governance Statement.
The accounting policies, the accounts, and the annual report of the Board, including the
process for the preparation and review of the accounts prior to submission for audit, levels of
error identified and management’s letter of representation to the external auditors.
The planned activity and results of both internal and external audit.
The scope and effectiveness of the system of internal control.
Adequacy of management response to issues identified by audit activity, including external
audit’s management letter and implementation of actions to address the audit findings.
Assurances relating to the corporate governance requirements for the organisation.
Anti-fraud policies, whistle-blowing processes and arrangements for special investigations

During 2013/14, the range of matters considered by the Committee included the impact on Board
operations of the implementation of the Business Services Transformation Project (BSTP) by the
Business Services Organisation (BSO), audit and governance arrangements for Cooperation and
Working Together (CAWT), procurement and management of contracts, the Board's Standing
Financial Instructions, and counter-fraud arrangements.
Current membership of the Audit Committee:
Mr Stephen Leach (Chair)
Dr Robert Thompson
Mr Robert Gilmore
Ms Stephanie Lowry
In addition, the Board’s Director of Finance of attends all meetings along with the Internal and
External Auditors. Once approved by the Committee, minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
brought to the attention of the full Board at the subsequent public Board meeting.
Stephen Leach
Chair of the Audit Committee
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Report of the Pharmacy Practices Committee
The Board is required under The Pharmaceutical Services (Northern Ireland) Regulations 1997 to
maintain the list of pharmaceutical and appliance contractors.
It exercises this duty through the Pharmacy Practices Committee (PPC) which deals with applications
to:
•
•
•
•

Join the pharmaceutical list (to open a community pharmacy)
Provide domiciliary oxygen services
Non-minor relocations (where the proposed relocation of the pharmacy is in a different
neighbourhood)
Change opening hours

In order to facilitate those making applications, the Pharmacy Practices Committee decided to
introduce the provision for applicants and objectors to use audio-visual materials in their
presentations on a trial basis in 2012/13. While no-one took up this option, the Pharmacy Practices
Committee has continued to allow this facility in 2013/14 and there has been only one applicant
availing of this facility in the current year. It is intended to carry out an evaluation around the end of
the year to determine if this facility will be provided on an ongoing basis to persons attending
Pharmacy Practices Committee.
As the Committee is required to define the neighbourhood which a proposed pharmacy would serve
and consider the adequacy of pharmaceutical services within that neighbourhood, the Board has
constituted the Committee under the Chair and Vice-Chair into four panels. The service provided by
the members of the committee is greatly appreciated.
Separate to the work of the Pharmacy Practices Committee, the DHSSPS and Board has initiated a
needs assessment process which will support Pharmacy Practices Committee decision making and
inform future arrangements for managing the deployment of pharmaceutical service provision.
For the period 2013/14, the Pharmacy Practices Committee dealt with the following applications:
Full applications: 1 (1 refused)
Oxygen applications: 3 (3 approved)
Change of hours: 4 (4 approved)
Mr John Mone
Chair of the Pharmacy Practices Committee
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Remuneration Report - Report of the Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee
A Committee of Non-Executive Board members exists to advise the full Board on the remuneration
and terms and conditions of service for Senior Executives employed by the Health and Social Care
Board.
While the salary structure and the terms and conditions of service for Senior Executives is
determined by the Department of Health Social Services and Public Safety (DHSSPS), the
Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee has a key role in assessing the performance of
Senior Executives and, where permitted by DHSSPS, agreeing the discretionary level of
performance related pay. A circular on the 2013/14 Senior Executive pay award was received from
the DHSSPS on 14 May 2014, related payments have not been made to Executive Directors and are
therefore not included in the tables which follow.
The salary, pension entitlement and the value of any taxable benefits in kind paid to both Executive
and Non-Executive Directors is set out overleaf. It should be noted that Non- Executive Directors do
not receive pensionable remuneration and therefore there will be no entries in respect of pensions for
Non-Executive members.
The HSCB are required to disclose whether there were any staff or public sector appointees
contracted through employment agencies or self-employed with a total cost of over £58,200 during
the financial year, which were not paid through the HSCB Payroll. In 2013/14 and 2012/13 there
were no such ‘off-payroll’ engagements.
Early Retirement and Other Compensation Schemes
There were no early retirements or payments of compensation for other departures relating to Senior
Executives during 2013/14.
Membership of the Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee:
Dr Ian Clements (Chair)
Dr Melissa McCullough
Mr Robert Gilmore
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Senior Management Remuneration (Table Audited)
The salary, pension entitlements, and the value of any taxable benefits in kind of the most senior
members of the HSCB were as follows:
2013/14

Name
Non-Executive
Members
I Clements
S J Leach
M McCullough
R Gilmore
B McKeever
J Mone
W R Thompson
Stephanie Lowry
(Started 15/4/2013)
E Kerr (left 19/7/2012)
Executive Members
J Compton
P Cummings
(Seconded to NHSCT
22/05/13)
F E McAndrew

(1)

Salary
£000s

Benefits in
Kind
(Rounded
to nearest
£100)

Pension
Benefits
(to nearest
£1000)

Salary
£000s

Benefits in
Kind
(Rounded
to nearest
£100)

Pension
Benefits
(to
nearest
£1000)

Total
£'000

Total
£'000

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

400
200
0
300
300
600
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

200
100
100
200
100
300
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

5-10

0

0

5-10

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0-5

0

0

0-5

145150

100

0

145150

145150

0

0

145150

15-20

300

-

15-20

105 110

1,100

5,000

115120

80-85
115120
100105

400

6,000

5,000

(1,000)

900

(7,000)

500

6,000

80-85
115120
100105

0

500

90-95
115120
110115

800

23,000

85-90

300

63,000

150155

80-85

0

14,000

95100

70-75

0

22,000

95-100

65-70

0

-

65-70

75-80

1,600

-

75-80

-

-

-

-

110115

500

5,000

115120

0

0

-

-

-

-

-

-

60-65

100

-

60-65

(2)

S Harper
D Sullivan

2012/13

(3)

M Bloomfield
(Head of Corporate
Services & Acting Dir of
(4)
PMSI 19/11/12)
P McCready
(Appointed 01/05/12) (5)
Owen Harkin
(Acting Dir 22/05/13) (6)
Sean Donaghy
(Commenced 13/05/13)
L McMahon (01/04/1231/10/12 - seconded to
the Leadership Centre
(7)
01/11/12)
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For notes (1-7) relating to Senior Management Remuneration please see notes below Pensions of
Senior Management below.
Median Salary (Table Audited)
The relationship between remuneration of the most highly paid director and the median remuneration
of the workforce is set out below. There has been no significant change to the ratio when compared to
2013/14.

Highest Earner’s Total
Remuneration (band)
Median Salary

2014
£000’s

2013
£000’s

145-150
31,768

145-150
31,206

4.6

4.7

Median Total Remuneration Ratio
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Pensions of Senior Management (Table Audited)
2013/14
Real increase in
pension and
Total accrued
Real
related lump sum pension at age 60 CETV at CETV at increase
and related lump 31/03/13 31/03/14 in CETV
at age 60
£000s
sum
£000s £000s
£000s
£000s

Name
Executive Members

0

70-75 pension
200-205 lump sum

0

0

0

-

-

-

-

-

F E McAndrew

0-2.5 pension
0-2.5 lump sum

15-20 pension
55-60 lump sum

391

430

39

S Harper

0-2.5 pension
45-50 pension
0-2.5 lump sum 135-140 lump sum

815

884

69

J Compton
P Cummings
(Seconded to NHSCT on
22/05/13)

D Sullivan

(1)

(2)

(3)

0-2.5 pension

40-45 pension

462

494

32

M Bloomfield (Head of
Corporate Services & Acting
Dir of PMSI since 19/11/12)

30-35 pension
90-95 lump sum

390

484

94

(4)

2.5-5.0 pension
5.0-10.0 lump
sum

P McCready (Appointed
01/05/12)

(5)

0-2.5 pension

5-10 pension

42

59

17

O Harkin
(Acting Director 22/05/13)

(6)

2.5-5.0 pension

40-45 pension

419

488

69

741

793

52

-

-

-

Sean Donaghy
(Commenced 13 May 2013)
L McMahon
(01/04/12-31/10/12 - seconded
to the Leadership Centre from
01/11/12)
(7)

0-2.5 pension
40-45 pension
0-2.5 lump sum 120-125 lump sum

-

-

(1) Contributions ceased in 2010/11, therefore there is no Pension Benefit, Real Increase in Pension or CETV after 31/03/11
(2) No pension benefit or real increase shown as these are annual calculations, postholder was employed by NHSCT at 31/03/14.
(3) Additional service added to HSC scheme in 2013/14.
(4) The pension benefit shown for 2013/14 is a combination of the postholder's substantive Director post and a temporary acting up
benefit, which will be shown as a negative value in the year after the temporary acting up ceases.
(5) Figures for pension benefit (2012/13) are not applicable as postholder commenced during 2012/13.
(6) This is a temporary acting up post, therefore the annual calculation of pension benefit would not be applicable.
(7) Prior year figures for Pension Benefit are not available as postholder was on secondment.
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A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are a
member’s accrued benefits in any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is
a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension
scheme or arrangement when a member leaves the scheme or chooses to transfer their benefits
accrued in their former scheme. The Pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual
has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service
in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures include the value of any pension
benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the HSS Pension
Scheme. They also include any additional pension benefits accrued to the member as a result of their
purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated
within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real increase in CETV – this reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It
takes account of the increase of accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and
uses column market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew
Interim Chief Executive
Date
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Health and Social Care Board Expenditure
The Board received a Revenue Spending Limit from the DHSSPS in 2013/14 of £4,106,563K
(excluding non-cash of £6,481k). In addition to this the Board also receives income from other
sources, which in 2013/14 was calculated as £53,019k.
Health and Social Care Board Funding 2013/14
The Board’s expenditure falls into three main areas as seen below.
HSCB Expenditure 2013/14 (£m)
£70m
£783m
Commissioning
Family Health Services
Board Administration

£3,260m

Commissioning
The Board commissions most of its services from local Trusts with a small amount being delivered
by other providers, as seen below:
Commissioning Gross Expenditure 2013/14

Belfast HSC Trust

£66m
£60m

South Eastern HSC Trust
£1,117m

Southern HSC Trust

£490m

Northern HSC Trust
£559m

Western HSC Trust
NIAS HSC Trust
£494m

£503m
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Programmes of care
Commissioning resources are deployed across nine Programmes of Care and Family Health Services
as follows:
Programmes of Care 2013/14*

3%

Acute Services

3%

7%

Maternity & Child Health

5%
43%

8%

Family & Child Care
Elderly Care

20%
7%

Mental Health

4%

Learning Disability
Physical and Sensory Disability
Health Promotion
Primary Health & Adult Community

*Source of data Strategic Resource Framework 2013/14

Family Health Services
The Health and Social Care Board spent £805m on Family Health Services in 2013/14 to meet the
health and social care needs of local populations. The breakdown by service area is shown below.
FHS Expenditure 2013/14

£22m
General Medical Services

£234m
General Dental Services

£425m

General Pharmaceutical Services

£124m

General Ophthalmic Services

45

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Health and Social Care Board Management Costs
At the centre of the Health and Social Care Board are the staff who manage the delivery of these high
quality services. The percentage breakdown by Directorate of the Health and Social Care Board’s
staff costs including goods and services is shown below.
HSCB Management costs 2013/14

Corporate Services

2%

1%

Integrated Care
Commissioning

6%

15%
Finance

15%
27%

11%
8%

Performance Management and Service
Improvement
Social Services

15%
Transforming Your Care
E-Health & External Collaboration
CE & Board Members
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Public Sector Payment Policy – Measure of Compliance
The Department requires that the Health and Social Care Board pays their non Health and Social
Care trade creditors in accordance with the Confederation of British Industry (CBI) Prompt Payment
Policy and Government Accounting Rules. The Board’s payment policy is consistent with the CBI
prompt payment codes and Government Accounting Rules and its measure of compliance can be
found within note 15 of the Annual Accounts within this combined document.
Related Party Transactions
The Health and Social Care Board is an arm’s length body of the Department of Health, Social
Services and Public Safety and as such the Department is a related Party with which the HSC body
has had various material transactions during the year.
Ms Fionnuala McAndrew OBE (HSCB Executive Director of Social Care & Children and HSCB
Interim Chief Executive) is a Board Member of Children in Northern Ireland (CiNI), which may be
likely to do business with the HSC in future.
Mr Sheelin McKeagney (Chairman of the Southern LCG) is a Board Member of Community
Development & Health Network, which may be likely to do business with the HSC in future.
During the year, none of the board members, members of the key management staff or other related
parties has undertaken any material transactions with the HSCB.
Register of Interests
The Health and Social Care Board Register of Interests records formal declarations of interests,
including details of all Directorships by Executive and Non Executive Directors and Local
Commissioning Group Chairs. A Register of Interests is in place for each of the five Local
Commissioning Groups. These Registers are posted on the Board’s website and a copy available at
each public Board or Local Commissioning Group meeting. A Register of Interests has also been
established and maintained in respect of the Pharmacy Practices Committee which includes persons
who are not members of the Health and Social Care Board. The Registers are updated throughout the
year with an annual review undertaken to ensure that any changes to interests declared during the
preceding twelve months are incorporated. A copy is available on the Board’s website
www.hscb.hscni.net
Charitable Donations
The Health and Social Care Board did not make any charitable donations during the financial year.
Audit Services
The Health and Social Care Board’s statutory audit was performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
on behalf of the Northern Ireland Audit Office and the notional cost of the audit for the year ended 31
March 2014 which pertained solely to the audit of the accounts was £65,500.
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Audit Disclosure
The Accounting Officer and directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the
auditor has not been made aware. The Accounting Officer has taken all necessary steps to ensure that
all relevant audit information of which she is aware has been passed to the external auditors
Staff Numbers
The Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2014 are contained within this combined
document, please refer to note 3 for details.
Pension Liabilities
Information may be found within notes to the accounts within this combined document.
Governance Statement
The Governance Statement can be found in full within this combined document.

Preparation of Accounts
The Health and Social Care Board has prepared a set of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014
and these can be found within this combined document.

Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew
Interim Chief Executive

Date
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is made up of a non executive Chairman, seven non executive directors, the
chief executive and four executive directors. Executive directors are employees of the Health and
Social Care Board. Non Executive directors are those appointed to their roles by the Minister.
Chairman, Dr Ian Clements
Dr Clements lives in Newtownards, where he had practised as a GP for 27 years. Throughout his GP
career, Dr Clements has continually sought to improve health and care services for patients through
his involvement in the commissioning process. He also contributed his expertise as a doctor over
many years, to a wide array of leading health and care organisations.
Chief Executive, Mr John Compton CBE
Mr Compton was appointed Chief Executive Designate of the Health and Social Care Board in
January 2009, before taking on the full and substantive role in April of that year. He trained as a
social worker and was educated at Queen’s University Belfast and the University of Ulster, before
going on to lead a number of health and care social bodies in Northern Ireland at the highest
management level. He was awarded the CBE for services to healthcare in Northern Ireland in the
2013 Queen’s Birthday Honours list.
Mr Robert Gilmore OBE, Non Executive Director
Mr Gilmore lives in County Down and is a Public Sector Advisor and former Local Authority Chief
Executive. He is Non Executive Director of a Local Enterprise Agency and an Associate with
SOLACE Enterprises.
Mr Stephen Leach CB, Non Executive Director
Mr Leach lives in North Down. He is a retired senior civil servant and was Chair of the Northern
Ireland Criminal Justice Board from 2000 – 2009. He was appointed as a Parole Commissioner in
November 2009 and is a lay member of the National Security Certificate Appeals Tribunal for
Northern Ireland.
Mrs Stephanie Lowry, Non Executive Director
Mrs Lowry has 20 years’ experience working in both the private and public sector throughout her
career. She has held several public appointments in a variety of areas, including Independent Board
Member with the Department of Culture, Arts and Leisure, deputy Chair of the Health and Safety
Executive and is currently a member of the Office of the First Minister and Deputy First Minister
(OFMFDM) Audit Committee and an Independent Assessor for Public Appointments.
Dr Melissa McCullough, Non Executive Director
Dr McCullough lives in Belfast and is a Lecturer in the School of Medicine, Centre for Medical
Education in Medical Ethics and Law at Queen’s University, Belfast. She is a Lay Member of the
Clinical Ethics Committee, Belfast Trust and a Member of Research Ethics Committee, Queen’s
School of Medicine, Dentistry and Biomedical Science and works with local voluntary bodies.

Mr Brendan McKeever, Non Executive Director
Mr McKeever is a User Consultant at Queen’s University and the University of Ulster and has
undertaken work to support projects to improve the care of people with disabilities. He has written
widely on these matters and continues to assist organisations that provide and develop services for
users and carers.
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Mr John Mone, Non Executive Director
Mr Mone lives in Co Armagh. Until his retirement in 2007, Mr Mone had been Executive Director of
Nursing at the former Craigavon Area Hospital Health and Social Services Trust and former Director
of Healthcare and Nursing and Executive Director on the Trust Board of the former Armagh and
Dungannon HSS Trust. He has also served on the Board of Governors of St John’s Primary School;
member of the NI Research Ethics Committee and Middletown and District Community
Development Association.
Dr Robert Thompson, Non Executive Director
Dr Thompson lives near Craigavon. After qualifying in medicine at Queen’s University Belfast, he
worked for some 20 years as a GP in Lurgan, Co Armagh. He later served the former Southern
Health and Social Services Board in a senior capacity where he assisted with the development of
many services provided to patients by GPs.
Acting Director of Finance, Mr Owen Harkin
Mr Harkin was appointed to the post of Acting Director of Finance with the Health and Social Care
Board in May 2013. A graduate of the University of Ulster, Owen began his career in the Finance
Department of the Western Health and Social Services Board in 1988. He progressed through a series
of financial management posts within the public sector before joining the Health and Social Care
Board in April 2010 as Assistant Director of Finance.
Director of Social Care and Children, Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew OBE
Mrs McAndrew was appointed to her post when the Health and Social Care Board was established in
April 2009, and previously trained and practised as a social worker. She afterwards led the
management and development of many aspects of social care in Northern Ireland. She is a Board
Member of the charity Children in Northern Ireland (CiNI).
Director of Commissioning, Mr Dean Sullivan
Mr Sullivan trained as an accountant with the National Audit Office in London. He later worked as a
management consultant with PriceWaterhouse and PA Consulting Group. In 2003 he joined the
Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety (DHSSPS) initially as Director of
Secondary Care and then Director of Performance and Planning. He joined the Health and Social
Care Board in 2010.
Director of Performance and Corporate Services, Mr Michael Bloomfield
Mr Bloomfield joined the Health and Social Care Board when it was established in April 2009 as
Assistant Director of Performance Management, following over 20 years in the Northern Ireland
Civil Service. From 1998 to 2009 he held a number of posts in the Department of Health, Social
Services and Public Safety, latterly as Head of Performance Management in the Service Delivery
Unit. Michael was appointed Head of Corporate Services in the Board in March 2011 and in
November 2012 also took on the role of Acting Director of Performance Management and Service
Improvement.
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Glossary of Terms
Bamford Report – a major study commissioned by the Department of Health, Social Services and
Public Safety in Northern Ireland to provide a long term strategic plan for the development of mental
health services. It takes its name from its former Chairman, the late Professor David Bamford of the
University of Ulster.
BSO – Business Services Organisation
Chronic conditions – illnesses such as diabetes or heart disease that can affect people over long
periods of their lives and need regular treatment and medication.
DEXA scan - a DEXA scan is a special type of X-ray that measures bone density and is most
commonly used to diagnose osteoporosis.
DHSSPS – Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety
ECG - electrocardiogram
ED – Emergency Department
E-Health and Social Care – the use of information and communication technologies (ICT) for
health.
Evidence based commissioning – the provision of health and social care services based upon proven
evidence of their value.
GP – General Practitioner
Health inequalities – the differences in health and the rates of illness across different sections of the
population and different areas where people live. For instance, we know that in areas of social and
economic deprivation, more people tend to suffer from illnesses such as heart disease.
HRPTS – Human Resources, Payroll, Travel and Subsistence
HSC – Health and Social Care
IMROC - Implementing Recovery through Organisational Change
Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) – collaborative network for local health and social care
professionals, working as part of a multi-disciplinary team to come together and work in a more
integrated way to provide care and support on a more complete range of services.
ICATS – Integrated Clinical Assessment and Treatment Services
Local Commissioning Groups – committees of the regional Health and Social Care Board that are
comprised of GPs, professional health and social care staff such as dentists and social workers and
community and elected representatives. Their role is to help the Board arrange or commission health
and social care services at a local level.
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Locum doctors – doctors whose work is based upon short term or temporary contracts.
Managed clinical networks – the provision of clinical services to patients through expert, closely
linked and effective teams of staff.
MRI – Magnetic Resonance Imaging
National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) – an expert organisation based in London that
guides health care organisations across the UK on the effectiveness of new treatments, new drugs and
other innovations.
NIAS – Northern Ireland Ambulance Service
NIASP - Northern Ireland Adult Safeguarding Partnership
NISAT - Northern Ireland Single Assessment Tool
OFMDFM - Office of the First Minister and Deputy First Minister
Palliative care – services for people who are terminally ill and who suffer from conditions such as
advanced cancer.
PHA – Public Health Agency
PPI – Patient and public involvement
Primary care – the care services that people receive while living at home in the community from
people such as their GP, district nurse, physiotherapist or social worker.
Public and stakeholder engagement – the process of meeting, discussing and consulting with
people and communities who use health and social services.
Reablement – programme of support to assist people in getting back to independent living.
RQIA - Regulation and Quality Improvement Authority
Quality Outcomes Framework – a system under which the effectiveness of schemes and measures
to improve health is measured against a set of agreed targets.
Trusts – organisations that directly provide care to patients and clients through such facilities as
hospitals and social services centres.
TYC – Transforming Your Care
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FOREWORD
These interim accounts for the period ended 31 March 2014 have been prepared in a form determined
by the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety (DHSSPS) based on guidance from the
Department of Finance and Personnel’s Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and in accordance with
the requirements of the Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Ireland) 2009.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES
Under the Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Ireland) 2009, the Department of Health,
Social Services and Public Safety has directed the Public Health Agency to prepare for each
financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction.
The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must provide a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Health & Social Care Board, of its income and expenditure, changes in
taxpayers equity and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the financial statements the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and in particular to:
-

observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department of Health, Social Services
and Public Safety including relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply
suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis.

-

make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis.

-

state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in FReM have been followed,
and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements.

-

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Health & Social Care Board will continue in operation.

-

keep proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Health & Social Care Board.

-

pursue and demonstrate value for money in the services the Health & Social Care
Board provides and in its use of public assets and the resources it controls.

The Permanent Secretary of the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety as
Accounting Officer for health and personal social services resources in Northern Ireland has designated
Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew of the Health & Social Care Board as the Interim Accounting Officer for
the HSCB. The responsibilities of an Accounting Officer, including his responsibility for the propriety
and regularity of the public finances for which the Accounting Officer is answerable, for keeping
proper records and for safeguarding the HSCB’s assets, are set out in the Accountable Officer
Memorandum, issued by the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety.
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CERTIFICATES
EXECUTIVE

OF

DIRECTOR

OF

FINANCE,

CHAIRMAN

AND

CHIEF

I certify that the annual accounts set out in the financial statements and notes to the accounts
(pages 97 to 138) which I am required to prepare on behalf of the Health And Social Care Board
have been compiled from and are in accordance with the accounts and financial records maintained
by the (name of HSC body) and with the accounting standards and policies for HSC bodies
approved by the DHSSPS.

Paul Cummings

Director of Finance

Date

I certify that the annual accounts set out in the financial statements and notes to the accounts
(pages 97 to 138) as prepared in accordance with the above requirements have been submitted to
and duly approved by the Board.

Ian Clements

Chairman

Date

Fionnuala McAndrew

Interim Chief Executive

Date
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
1.
Introduction / Scope of Responsibility
The Board of the Health and Social Care Board (HSCB) is accountable for internal control. As
Accounting Officer and Chief Executive of the Board, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal governance that supports the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am responsible in accordance
with the responsibilities assigned to me by the Department of Health, Social Services and Public
Safety (DHSSPS).
Processes in place by which the HSCB works with partner organisations
• Public Health Agency (PHA)
Under Section 8 of the Reform Act, the HSCB is required to produce an annual Commissioning
Plan in accordance with the Commissioning Direction as issued by the DHSSPS, and in full
consultation and agreement with the PHA. In practice the employees of the HSCB and PHA work
in fully integrated/multi-disciplinary teams to support the commissioning process at both local and
regional levels.
• Business Services Organisation (BSO)
The BSO provides a broad range of support functions for the HSCB under a service level agreement
between the two organisations. Functions include: financial services; human resource
management; training; equality and human rights; information technology; procurement of goods
and services; legal services; internal audit and fraud prevention.
• Health and Social Care (HSC) Trusts
HSC Trusts provide services in response to the Commissioning Plan and must meet the standards
and targets set by the Minister. In order that these obligations are met, service and budget
agreements (SBAs) between HSC Trusts and the HSCB are established setting out the range,
quantity and quality of services to be provided, linking volumes and outcomes to cost.
Working in close collaboration with the PHA, the HSCB has in place a robust performance
management framework. The framework provides the mechanism for managing and monitoring the
achievement by HSC Trusts of agreed objectives and targets and also provides a process whereby
the HSCB and PHA can work closely in supporting HSC Trusts to improve performance and
achieve desired outcomes.
Inter-relationship with DHSSPS and HSCB.
The HSCB engage in a collaborative relationship with the DHSSPS to ensure that progress towards
the achievement of all objectives is fully communicated.
The HSCB provide the DHSSPS with prescriptive monthly financial monitoring returns
highlighting financial performance and reporting progress towards the achievement of the statutory
duty to break-even.
The HSCB provide the DHSSPS with quarterly (or as required) assessments of the progress being
made in the delivery of DHSSPS strategic objectives and relevant targets in the current Programme
for Government, Public Service Agreements (PSAs) and Commissioning Directions, demonstrating
how resources are being used to achieve these objectives.
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Senior HSCB officers attend bi-annual accountability reviews, with senior departmental officials, to
discuss the HSCB's operational and financial performance; policy developments and corporate
control issues.
2.
Compliance with Corporate Governance Best Practice
The HSCB applies the principles of good practice in Corporate Governance and continues to further
strengthen its governance arrangements. The HSCB does this by undertaking continuous assessment
of its compliance with Corporate Governance best practice by having in place the following:
Standing Orders
The Standing Orders, reserved and delegated powers and Standing Financial Instructions provide a
comprehensive business framework for the HSCB and enables the organisation to discharge its
functions. They reflect the following: Framework Document (September 2011); Management
Statement/Financial Memorandum; Code of Conduct and Code of Accountability (2012) 7 Nolan
Principles; Public Service Values and the Code of Practice on Openness.
The HSCB Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions are reviewed on an annual basis,
considered by the HSCB Audit Committee and approved at the subsequent public Board Meeting.
Section 6 of the Standing Orders relates to the Conduct of Board Business and includes, amongst
others, potential conflicts of interest. This section also applies to the conduct of public meetings of
the Local Commissioning Groups (LCGs).
During the period there were four conflict of interests declared at Board meetings; one on 13 June
2013, one on 14 January 2014, two on 13 March 2014. On review of the minutes, appropriate action
was taken in accordance with the Code of Conduct. There were abstentions or dissentions from
voting on a number of occasions and these are recorded in the Board public minutes.
Register of Interests
The HSCB has in place a Register of Interests for the following groups:
•

Directors: These are reviewed annually and where relevant throughout the year. They are noted
at public Board meetings and published on HSCB website.

•

Committee Members: There is a Register of Interests for each of the 5 LCGs which are also
subject to annual review and if relevant throughout the year. These are noted at public LCG
meetings and also published on HSCB website.

•

There is a Register of Interests for those involved in Board Committees who are not HSCB
Officers and relates solely to those who participate in the Pharmacy Practices Committee. This
Register is also reviewed annually.

•

Staff: A Register of Staff Interests, for those who are included in the Scheme of Delegated
Authority, is reviewed annually. From 1 April 2014, the staff interest register will be rolled out
to every member of staff.
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Gifts and Hospitality Policy
The HSCB Gifts and Hospitality Policy was published in April 2012 and is based on DAO (DFP)
19/09. A nominated Officer in each HSCB Directorate maintains a log with a periodic report
reviewed by the Governance Committee. During the reporting period, the Committee received
reports at its meetings on 6 June 2013, 26 September 2013 and 30 January 2014.
Performance Appraisal System
During 2013/14 a Staff Appraisal Scheme was implemented for all staff. In addition, the DHSSPS
carried out its annual appraisal with the HSCB Chair who in turn carried out an annual assessment
of each Non-Executive Director. A recruitment process was undertaken in 2013/14 for the 5 LCG
Chair posts, following which 4 Chairs were confirmed in post with an interim Chair in place in the
Northern LCG. A formal annual assessment was not undertaken in 2013/14, but this will be carried
out with each LCG Chair in the 2014/15 year.
Training
“Essential Skills” refresher training was provided on 16 September 2013 to Non-Executive
Directors.
Self Assessment
•

The Audit Committee completes a National Audit Office self-assessment checklist each year
which is submitted to DHSSPS (June 2013).

•

A Board Governance Self-Assessment Tool was approved by the Board at its meeting on 10
April 2014 and subsequently submitted to the DHSSPS on 15 April 2014.

The completion of the self-assessment evaluation in 2013/14 is primarily intended to facilitate the
Board in establishing a baseline position and to identify its development/support needs
3.
Governance Framework
The Board exercises strategic control over the operation of the organisation through a system of
corporate governance, which includes:
•

A schedule of matters reserved for Board decisions, some of which may have been delegated to
Committees.

•

A scheme of delegation, which devolved decision making authority within set parameters to the
Chief Executive and other officers.

•

Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions, which set out the HSCB’s governance
regulations; (referred to above).

•

The operation of a Governance Committee and an Audit Committee (comprised of Non
Executive Directors) to assure adherence to those regulations (as above).
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•

The adoption of a Governance Framework which consists of a suite of documents that provides
the Board with the necessary assurances that the organisation is discharging its functions in a
way which ensures that risks are managed as effectively and efficiently as possible to acceptable
standards of quality. The objective being to protect the organisation against loss, the threat of
loss and the consequent of loss, whilst at the same time having a framework in place that
highlights the roles, responsibilities, reporting and monitoring mechanisms that are necessary to
ensure commissioning and delivery of high quality health and social care.

The following describe in more detail the role of the Board, its Committee structure and attendance
during the reporting period.
The Board
The Board of Directors is comprised of a Non Executive Chair, seven Non Executive Directors, the
Chief Executive and four Executive Directors.
The five Executive Directors: Chief Executive, Director of Finance, Director of Commissioning,
Director of Social Care and Children’s and Director of Performance Management and Service
Improvement are employees of the HSCB. A number of Directors from the Boards Senior
Management Team also attend Board meetings; Director of Integrated Care, Regional Director of
eHealth and External Collaboration, Director of Transforming Your Care, Executive Medical
Director/Director of Public Health (PHA) and the Director of Nursing and AHPs (PHA).
In addition, meetings of the Board are also attended by the Chairperson of each of the Boards’ five
Local Commissioning Groups and by representative/s of the Patient Client Council.
The HSCB has three main functions:
•
•
•

to commission a comprehensive range of modern and effective health and social care for the 1.8
million people who live in Northern Ireland;
to performance manage the delivery by HSC Trusts of care services to ensure that these achieve
optimal quality and value for money, in line with relevant government targets;
to effectively deploy and manage its annual funding from the Northern Ireland Executive to
ensure that this is targeted upon need and reflects the aspirations of local communities and their
representatives.

In the 2013/14 year, the Board met on 15 occasions and in accordance with the Board’s Standing
Orders were quorate for each meeting. During this period there was 100% attendance at 8
meetings; 92% attendance at 3 meetings; 85% at 2 meetings and 77% at 2 meetings. There were
four unscheduled Special Board meetings on 25 April 2013, 18 June 2013, 29 October 2013 and 28
November 2013.
During the reporting period the following changes occurred with regard to Executive Board
membership:
•

The second term of office for the Chair and Non-Executive Members has been staggered for a
period of between 2-4 years to ensure a range of skills, knowledge and expertise.
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•

The continued secondment of the Director of Performance Management and Service
Improvement, an Executive Director, as Programme Director for the development of a Clinical
Leadership programme within HSCNI.

•

The Head of Corporate Services continued as Acting Executive Director of Performance
Management and Service Improvement during this period.

•

The Director of Finance, an Executive Director, was seconded to the Northern Trust from May
2013, with the Executive Director role carried out by an Acting Director of Finance until 2 June
2014.

•

With effect from 31 March 2014 an Interim Chief Executive was appointed from within the
existing Executive Directors up until 30 June 2014.

The HSC Board is currently completing a Governance Self-Assessment Tool in respect of the
2013/14 financial year. The Self-Assessment covered five areas: Board composition and
commitment; Board evaluation, development and learning; Board insight and foresight, Board
engagement and involvement and the completion of a Board Impact Case Study. A Board
workshop attended by Non-Executive Board Directors was held on 25 March 2014 the completed
template was approved at the Board meeting on 10 April 2014.
Role of the Audit Committee
The DHSSPS has the right to be represented at any meeting of the Audit Committee. The
Department’s policy is to be represented at one meeting per year, and a DHSSPS observer will
accordingly attend the Committee meeting on 5 June 2014. The Audit Committee comprises four
Non Executive Directors. The Director of Finance has a standing invitation to attend, with the
exception of the annual meeting with the External Auditor, and the Committee is also attended by
other relevant Finance and Internal Audit staff. The External Auditor is invited to attend any
meeting of the Committee.
The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the Good Practice
Principles contained within HM Treasury Audit Committee Handbook (March 2007, reissued
March 2014) and are kept under review in light of any emerging or changing accountability
arrangements for the HSCB. The Code of Good Practice (NI) 2013 clarifies the composition and
role of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee which is reflected in the HSCB Standing Orders
for the Audit and Governance Committees.
Since 2011/12 the Board has had separate Governance and Audit Committees. This ensures that
equal weight is afforded to all of the governance domains including financial, organisational and
clinical and social care, thereby allowing the Board to ensure a balanced and proportionate
consideration of the full range of its corporate governance responsibilities, particularly those
concerning safety and quality.
During the 2013/14 financial year, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held and the average
attendance by members was 100 %. A Non-Executive Director Financial member was appointed
on 15 April 2013.
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During the year the Audit Committee advised the Board and Accounting Officer on the following:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

The strategic processes for risk, control and governance and the Governance Statement.
The accounting policies, the accounts, and the annual report of the Board, including the process
for the preparation and review of the accounts prior to submission for audit, levels of error
identified and management’s letter of representation to the external auditors.
The planned activity and results of both internal and external audit.
The scope and effectiveness of the system of internal control.
Adequacy of management response to issues identified by audit activity, including external
audit’s management letter and implementation of actions to address the audit findings.
Assurances relating to the corporate governance requirements for the organisation.
Anti-fraud policies, whistle-blowing processes and arrangements for special investigations.

The Board’s Audit Committee has completed their annual self-assessment using the National Audit
Office’s Checklist to assess performance. An action plan has been devised to address any gaps in
compliance with the application of best practice, as required by the HM Treasury’s Audit
Committee Handbook.
Role of the Governance Committee
The Governance Committee comprises of four Non Executive Directors, two of which are from a
nursing and medical background. The HSCB’s SMT are in attendance at all meetings.
The Governance Committee supports the Board in all aspects of corporate and clinical and social
care governance by:
•
•
•
•
•

•

seeking assurances and advising the Board on the scope and effectiveness of the system of
internal control.
ensuring an assurance framework is in place for the organisation relating to the corporate and
clinical and social care governance, and that it is both effective and robust.
seeking assurances and advising the Board on the strategic processes in place for managing risk.
reviewing the content of the annual Governance and mid-year assurance statements.
approving the Governance Framework, Governance Strategy and other governance related
policies and procedures; reviewing Board officers’ responses and actions in relation to regional
procedures in respect of the management and follow up of serious adverse incidents and
complaints, where the HSCB has a regional responsibility.
seeking assurances and advising the Board on protocols in respect of the HSCB’s social care
statutory responsibilities.
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In the 2013/14 year the Governance Committee met on five occasions; there was 100% attendance
at three meetings and; 75% attendance at two meetings. During the year the Governance
Committee considered the following:
-

Management of corporate risk.
Quality, safety and standards in health and social care.
Progress on implementation of Safety and Quality Alerts and RQIA recommendations.
Social Care Delegated Statutory Functions.
Controls assurance and internal control.
Serious Adverse Incident management.
Complaints management.
Identification of Regional Learning from SAIs and Complaints.
Litigation management.
Maintenance of the reputation, image and integrity of the HSCB.
Professional regulation.
Information governance.
Other matters, excluding finance that pertains to good corporate governance.

In addition to the overarching Governance and Audit Committees, the HSCB has a range of other
organisational structures in place to support corporate governance arrangements. Key components
of this structure include:
•

The operation of an Assessment Panel, to consider and determine, where the Board has rejected
a closure notice, whether a GMS contractor should be permitted to close his list of patients, and
if so, the terms on which he should be permitted to do so and to consider where the Board
wishes to assign new patients to contractors which have closed their lists of patients. The
Assessment Panel has not been required to meet during the reporting period.

•

The operation of four Disciplinary Committees embracing Dental, Optometry and Pharmacy
plus a Joint Committee. Each Committee is comprised of members of the geographical area
covered by each of the four local offices. Three laypersons are appointed by the Board for each
local office as well as a representative from each of the three professions. During the period the
Disciplinary Committee were not required to meet.

•

The operation of a Governance Officer Group. This is a multi-disciplinary team who are
accountable to the HSCB Senior Management Team for the operational implementation of
governance activities across the HSCB. One of the functions of this group is to consider and
agree any issues that require to be brought to the attention of the Governance Committee

•

The operation of five LCG) to exercise the Board’s function under Section 9 of the Health and
Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Ireland) 2009. In accordance with HSCB Standing Orders,
LCGs have met at least nine times during 2013/14 and all meetings were quorate.

•

The operation of a Pharmacy Practices Committee to exercise the functions of the Board under
Regulation 6 (9) the Pharmaceutical Services Regulations (NI) 1997, on behalf of the Board and
in accordance with Schedule 4 of the same Regulations. The Pharmacy Practices Committee
has held 2 meetings during 2013/14 and has been quorate on each occasion.
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•

The operation of a Reference Committee to exercise the HSCB’s function under the
Disciplinary Procedures Regulations (NI) 1996 with respect to the referral of disciplinary
matters relating to Family Practitioner Services. During 2013/14, the Reference Committee
held six meetings and was quorate on all occasions.

•

The operation of a Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee (also comprised of Non
Executive Directors) to advise the Board about appropriate remuneration and terms of service
for the Chief Executive and other Senior Executives and Consultants within Departmental
policy. In accordance with HSCB Standing Orders, the Remuneration and Terms of Service
Committee met on one occasion.

•

The operation of a Review Panel, to conduct oral hearings in relation to removal from the
Primary Medical Performers List other than in circumstances where the HSCB is obliged to
remove a performers name or in relation to suspension of a performance or in review
proceedings. The Review Panel has met on one occasion during the reporting period.

•

An extraordinary meeting of a Joint Audit & Governance Committee is convened to consider
and approve the Board’s Mid Year Assurance Statement enabling the Chief Executive, as
Accountable Officer for the HSCB, to attest to the continuing robustness of the organisation’s
system of internal control. The Audit & Governance Committees have met on one occasion
during the reporting period.

4.
Framework for Business Planning and Risk Management
Business planning and risk management is at the heart of governance arrangements to ensure that
statutory obligations and ministerial priorities are properly reflected in the management of business
at all levels within the organisation.
Business Planning
The Board has a range of statutory duties and shall, as a corporate body, exercise the functions
assigned to it by the DHSSPS, including those set out in Article 8 (1-7) of the Health and Social
Care Reform Act (NI) 2009 and any other statutory provision deemed by the Department to be the
functions of the Board, including the Governance Resources and Accounts Act (NI) 2001.
Commissioning Plan
In line with the above statute, the Board is required to prepare and publish an Annual
Commissioning Plan setting out the health and social care services to be commissioned and the
associated costs of delivery. The preparation of the Commissioning Plan is done in partnership with
the PHA and is implemented through a series of integrated service teams. It takes full account of the
financial parameters set by the Executive and the DHSSPS, and is consistent with the direction and
priorities set out in the Minister’s Commissioning Plan Direction. It encompasses all of the relevant
Transforming Your Care (TYC) recommendations and provides the means through which those
elements of TYC is planned and delivered.
Corporate Plan
Many of the Board’s objectives and responsibilities for the period to 2015/16 are reflected in the
Commissioning Plan. The Corporate Plan does not seek to duplicate the detailed objectives and
activities set out in the Commissioning Plan, but rather to outline the key objectives for the
organisation in addition to those associated with the Commissioning Plan, and those that will
support its delivery.
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As such, the Corporate Plan includes objectives that primarily relate to how the HSCB will seek to
commission the delivery of high quality health and social care services for the population of
Northern Ireland, and how it conducts its business and ensures that its organisational arrangements
are fit for purpose. Taken together with the Commissioning Plan and policies for the effective and
efficient management of resources, the Corporate Plan will provide an overarching planning
framework for the work of the HSCB.
The key objectives for the focal year 2013/14 are subject to bi-annual review. The first of these
reviews was carried out as at 30 September 2013 and was approved by the Governance Committee
at its meeting on 29 November 2013. The second of these reviews was carried out as at 31 March
2014 and was approved by SMT prior to being approved by the Governance Committee at its
meeting on 5 June 2014.
In taking forward key business planning objectives for 2014/15, the HSCB held a corporate
planning workshop on 15 November 2013, which was attended by approximately 100 staff
representing all levels of the organisation, directorates and locations from the HSCB. The event
was also supported with relevant staff from the Public Health Agency and the Business Services
Organisation. The purpose of the workshop was to agree the key business planning priorities for
2014/15 and beyond.
The business requirements specified by the DHSSPS to be delivered by the HSCB during 2014/15
have been included as an Annex to the Corporate Plan. Progress on these, together with all of the
objectives contained in the Corporate Plan will be monitored in September 2014 and March 2015.
In order to successfully meet the business planning priorities for 2014/15 the HSCB will continue to
ensure effective user engagement by implementing its Personal and Public Involvement (PPI)
strategy, promote equality, human rights and diversity in all its functions, and fully contribute to the
implementation of regional policies and initiatives including the Quality 2020 strategy.
Business Continuity Plan
The Board has in place a corporate Business Continuity Plan, which meets the BS25999 Standard.
The Plan identifies the HSCB functions deemed as ‘critical’, which must continue to be delivered
during an interruption to normal business. Each directorate undertook a risk analysis and developed
strategies and tactics to detail how the critical functions would be delivered during an interruption.
The Plan is on the HSCB intranet site, along with guidance for staff .
As part of the annual business continuity planning cycle, the plan was tested in September 2013, on
this occasion jointly with the PHA, and is being reviewed and revised accordingly.
Risk Management
The HSCB recognise risk management is a key component of the Governance Framework and it is
therefore essential that systems and processes are in place to identify and manage all risks as far as
reasonably possible.
The purpose of risk management is not to remove all risk but to ensure that risks are recognised and
their potential to cause loss fully understood. Based on this information, action can be taken to
direct appropriate levels of resource at controlling the risk or minimising the effect of potential loss.
The HSCB has recognised the need to adopt such an approach and has put in place an
independently assured risk management system that conforms to the principles contained in the
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Australian/New Zealand AS/NZS 4360:2004, standard (adopted by DHSSPS) and which ensures
there is a systematic and unified process for the management of risks across all areas of the Board’s
activity. The process for the management of Board wide risks is part of the HSCB’s overarching
Governance Framework. It includes a step by step process from the initial identification of a risk,
risk grading, how the risk should be managed and escalation/de-escalation of grading to and from
directorate to corporate registers. The implementation of this process has led to a fully functioning
risk register at both directorate and corporate levels.
Risk Appetite
•

Categorisation of Risk

All risks do not carry the same likelihood of occurrence or degree of consequence in terms of actual
or potential impact on service users, patients, staff, visitors, the organisation, or its reputation or
assets.
Once the organisation’s objectives have been approved and a consensus on principal risks reached it
is important to ensure a consistent and uniform approach is taken in categorising risks in terms of
their level of priority in order that appropriate action is taken at the appropriate level of the
organisation.
During 2013/14, the HSCB worked collaboratively with other HSC organisations in establishing a
new regional risk matrix. The matrix, is used to categorise potential risks, and incidents, and
facilitates the prioritisation of risk in terms of likelihood and consequence. In doing so, this will
help identify the nature and degree of action required and levels of accountability for ensuring such
action is taken. The new matrix has been adopted by HSCB and aligned to both corporate and
directorate risk registers.
•

Acceptable Risk

The HSCB recognises that it is impossible and not always desirable to eliminate all risks and that
systems of control should not be so rigid that they stifle innovation and imaginative use of limited
resources in order to achieve health and social care benefits for the local population.
From time to time the HSCB may be willing to accept a certain level of risk. For example:
promoting independence for individuals; or in order to take advantage of a new and innovative
service; or due to the high costs of eliminating a risk in comparison with the potential threat. In
these circumstances the risk will continue to remain on the risk register and will be monitored and
reviewed at regular intervals.
However, as a general principle the HSCB will seek to eliminate and control all risks which have
the potential to:
- harm staff, service users, patients, visitors and other stakeholders.
- have a high potential for incidents to occur; would result in loss of public confidence in the
HSCB and/or its partner agencies or would have severe financial consequences and which
would prevent the HSCB from carrying out its functions on behalf of the population.
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Risk Activity
As part of the board-led system of risk management, the Corporate Register is presented to the
Governance Committee for discussion and approval at each of its meetings and annually to the
Board. The Board is also informed of significant risks by way of the annual Governance and MidYear Assurance statements.
Quarterly reviews for 2013/14 have now been completed for both directorate and corporate
registers. Each review reflects additions/amendments in respect of:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Identification/removal of risk
De-escalation/escalation of risk
Existing controls
Internal and external assurances
Gaps in controls and assurances
Action being taken forward

A Risk and Governance Workshop, attended by Directorate Governance Leads and Senior
Governance Staff, was held on 24 July 2013. The workshop provided an opportunity to introduce
the new HSC Risk Matrix, action the recommendations from the Internal Audit Risk Management
Audit 2012/13 and provide guidance on completing risk register reviews.
Stakeholder Risk
•

Serious Adverse Incidents (SAIs)

On 1 May 2010 the responsibility for the management and follow up of SAIs transferred from
DHSSPS to HSCB working jointly with PHA and collaboratively with RQIA. In response, the
HSCB issued the Procedure for the Reporting and Follow up of SAIs.
During 2012/13 the HSCB, working with the PHA, undertook a review of the procedure issued in
2010 with a final version being issued in September 2013 for implementation 1 October 2013, and
with full operational implementation on 1 April 2014.
•

Notable changes to revised procedure
SAI criteria
o An additional criterion has been included - “any death of a child in receipt of HSC
Services (up to eighteenth birthday).
o SAIs involving a service user known to/referred to mental health services has been
reduced from 24 months to 12 months.
Investigation levels
The single investigation process for all SAIs has been replaced by three levels of
investigation to reflect the complexity of the incident and to ensure the timely identification
of learning.
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Timescales
Timescales for conducting investigations have been revised in line with the level of
investigation to be undertaken. However to date there have been a number of investigation
reports that are outstanding beyond their submission date. This has been raised during
2013/14 with Trusts at Director level meetings and further steps are being taken to improve
the timeliness of these reports.
•

Main Aim of Procedure
Provide a mechanism to effectively share learning in a meaningful way, with a focus on
safety and quality, ultimately leading to service improvement for service users.
Provide a coherent approach to what constitutes a SAI.
Clarify the roles, responsibilities and processes relating to the reporting, investigation,
dissemination and implementation of learning arising from SAIs.
Ensure the process works simultaneously with all other statutory and regulatory
organisations.
Keep the process for the reporting and review of SAIs under review to ensure it is fit for
purpose and minimises unnecessary duplication.
Provide a culture of openness and transparency that encourages the reporting of SAIs.
Ensure trends, best practice and learning is identified, disseminated and implemented in a
timely manner, in order to prevent recurrence.
Maintain a high quality of information and documentation within a time bound process.

• Training to support procedure
In order to ensure organisations are equipped to commence the full operational implementation of
the procedure, a number of regional training programmes took place during 2013/14:
•

Regional SEA Training (sessions during December 2013)
DRO Workshop – December 2013
Regional RCA Training (sessions during January/February 2014)

Service User/Family Involvement in SAIs

The Procedure for the Reporting and Follow up of SAIs (revised October 2013) makes clear the
need for and importance of appropriate communication and involvement of service users, relatives
and carers. However, in light of recent communications with DHSSPS and in order to further assist
Trusts, the HSCB and PHA have reviewed the SAI Notification Form and developed a SAI
Investigation Report Checklist which should accompany all SAI Investigation Reports regardless of
the investigation level. These have been issued to all ALBs and Special Agencies to be
implemented with immediate effect for all newly reported SAIs and for ongoing SAIs for which
investigations have not yet been completed. In addition, and in line with DHSSPS communication,
the HSCB and PHA will work with the Patient Client Council and RQIA to develop guidance for
HSC organisations when involving service users/families throughout the relevant stages of the SAI
process.
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Current operational arrangements for managing SAIs reported to the HSCB/PHA
•
•

•
•

Regional reporting system to the HSCB/PHA for all SAIs, all of which are recorded on a
central risk management database (DATIX).
The nomination of a DRO: a senior professional/officer within the HSCB/ PHA who has a
key role in the implementation of the SAI process i.e. SAI Review Group meetings to
consider reports, identify themes and learning.
Overarching HSCB-PHA Quality Safety and Experience (QSE) Group to consider the issues
identified by the SAI Review Group and agree actions.
Safety and Quality Alerts team provide assurance mechanism for any actions to be taken
forward as a result of regional learning.

In addition, the HSCB Senior Management Team receives and considers all SAIs on a weekly basis.
Learning from SAIs
HSCB/PHA will ensure that themes and learning from SAIs are identified and disseminated for
implementation in a timely manner; this will be done via:
•
Learning letters (identified by SAI Review Group, approved by QSE; issued and assurance
provided by SQAT)
•
Learning newsletter (SAI articles identified by SAI Review Group) latest issue 1 December
2013
•
Thematic reviews (identified by SAI review Group; approved by QSE; assurance on any
actions provided by SQAT)
•
Bi-annual learning report (produced by SAI Review Group / approved by QSE/SMT and
ultimately Board) – most recent issued in December 2013 for 6 months 1 April – 30
September 2013.
•

HSCB/PHA Quality, Safety and Experience Group

The HSCB and PHA receive information and intelligence from a wide range of sources in relation
to safety, quality and patient experience. In order to further strengthen existing arrangements, an
overarching Quality and Safety Experience Group was established in November 2013.
The main aim of this group is to:
-

To streamline and further enhance current arrangements in relation to Safety, Quality and
Patient Experience.
To consider learning, patterns, themes or areas of concern from all sources of information and to
agree appropriate actions to be taken, and follow up of agreed actions.
To provide an assurance to SMT, the Governance Committee and Board, that the QSE Group
has an overview of all sources of information in relation to the safety, quality and patient
experience of services and is co-ordinating appropriate action in response.
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•

Safety and Quality Alerts Team

In 2012/13 the HSCB/PHA established a Safety and Quality Alerts Team who are responsible for
the implementation and assurance of Regional Safety and Quality Alerts/Letters/Guidance issued by
DHSSPS and HSCB/PHA.
The work of this group is closely aligned to the Quality, Safety and Experience Group, Regional
SAI Review Sub-Group and Regional Complaints Sub-Group to ensure there is a fully integrated
approach in relation to dissemination of learning.
During the reporting period further refinements were made to the process under Task 1 of the
Quality 20/20 Strategy implementation arrangements to ensure liaison between DHSSPS and
HSCB/PHA prior to issuing of Alerts that include assurance requirements. The HSCB/PHA Safety
and Quality Alerts Protocol was subsequently endorsed by the DHSSPS and formally adopted in
August 2013.
The Implementation of the Safety Quality Alerts Protocol is carried out by the Safety and Quality
Alerts Team which meets fortnightly and is chaired by the Medical Director/Director of Public
Health. The team ‘closes’ an Alert when it is assured that an Alert has been implemented, or there
is an existing robust system in place to ensure implementation.
•

Complaints

‘Complaints in Health and Social Care’ advises that the HSCB should have oversight of all HSC
complaints; is responsible for the monitoring of complaints and processes and for the identification
and dissemination of learning from complaints. The establishment of an overarching Quality,
Safety and Experience group in the reporting period has led to the reconfiguration of the Group
which reviews the information in relation to complaints received from HSC Trusts and Family
Practitioner Services Practices. The Regional Complaints Sub-Group, which is attended by
professionals from the HSCB and the PHA, meets on a monthly basis and highlights, if required,
any areas of concern, patterns or trends to the Quality Safety and Experience Group for any
necessary action.
This year the Board has managed and overseen the implementation of the 14 recommendations
emanating from the Evaluation of ‘Complaints in HSC’. This has included the enhancement of
information flows regarding learning from complaints. A template has been developed to enable
Trusts to communicate learning from individual complaints to the Board on a more timely basis and
provide the detail required to enable consideration of any regional implications which may require
to be disseminated to the wider HSC. A number of these learning examples have featured in the
newly developed ‘Learning Matters’ HSCB/PHA Newsletter.
Service user focus groups held during the reporting period highlighted the need to further enhance
awareness of the HSC complaints procedure. The Board, working collaboratively with the HSC
Trusts and the Patient Client Council are planning an awareness campaign during a ‘complaints
month’ which is scheduled for June 2014. The complaints month will also include a further service
user focus group and an annual ‘learning from complaints’ event.
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•

Medical Negligence Cases

The Board is responsible for the management of outstanding medical negligence cases which predate Trust status (pre-1996). A Preliminary Advisory Group meets regularly to review activity on
cases and in particular those listed for hearing during the financial year, which require specific
authorities. This Group is attended by the Assistant Director of Legal Services, Public Health
Consultants from the Public Health Agency, the Complaints/Litigation Manager and a
representative from the Finance Directorate. The number of pre-Trust cases being managed have
reduced from over 300 in 2009 to just over 80 cases.
•

Emergency Preparedness

A joint PHA/HSCB/BSO Emergency Response Plan has been developed since 2009/10. The plan
is reviewed and updated following each activation or test.
As part of the planning and preparations of HSC organisations for the major events held in Northern
Ireland during 2013, a joint HSC test of emergency plans was held in May 2013. This tested the
information flows to and from ‘HSC Silver’ and enabled enhancements of this process to be
effected prior to the G8 summit in June 2013, the World Police and Fire Games in August 2013 and
the All Ireland Fleadh also in August 2013.
To further enhance oversight of HSC preparedness arrangements for major events, along with
overview of risks associated with annual seasonal flu and potential adverse weather, a Flu, Weather
and Major Events Group was established which is chaired by the Director of Public Health
(Medical Director PHA) and the Director of Performance and Corporate Services.
The Group
seeks assurance from the wider HSC on an annual basis in relation to preparedness for seasonal flu
and plans in place to deal with wider service continuity implications.
An Annual Report which provides an overview of HSC Emergency Preparedness is prepared by the
PHA/HSCB and BSO and submitted to the DHSSPS each year.
During 2014, the HSC will again prepare for a number of major events, most markedly the Giro
d’Italia road cycle race during May 2014.
Risk Management Leadership
As stated in section 3.0, the Board exercises strategic control through a system of corporate
governance; by which the organisation is directed and controlled, at its most senior levels, in order
to achieve its objectives and meet the necessary standards of accountability, probity and openness.
The adoption of an overarching Governance Framework has ensured the HSCB has the basic
building blocks in place for good governance; to lead, direct and control its functions in order to
achieve organisational objectives and by which it relates to its partners and the wider community.
The Framework highlights the key components that underpin a sound system of governance and
internal control, and embraces the structure and process for managing and leading risk throughout
the organisation.
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An e-learning risk management awareness programme was developed and was implemented during
2012/13. This training is mandatory for all HSCB staff and includes a short multiple choice
assessment with an agreed pass mark. Training in this programme continued to be rolled out during
2013/14 and will subsequently form part of the HSCB’s overarching corporate induction
programme moving forward into 2014/15.
5.

Information Risk

The HSCB has structures and processes in place to facilitate the identification, management,
monitoring and where necessary the escalation of information risks.
Structures include the roles of Senior Information Risk Owner, Personal Data Guardian and
Information Asset Owners which are supported by an Information Governance Team. Escalation is
facilitated via a range of forums across all levels of the organisation examples include the Records
Management Working Group, Information Governance Steering Group, SMT and the Board’s
Governance Committee.
Processes in place to identify and manage information risks include the development and
maintenance of an Information Asset Register, the mapping of data flows and the completion of risk
assessments to identify and rate information risks. The development of treatment plans to address
identified risks which are subsequently agreed with Information Asset Owners who in turn provide
regular assurance to the Senior Information Risk Owner on progress. Where necessary, identified
information risks are added to the relevant HSCB Directorate/Corporate Risk Registers.
The Accounting Officer and Board receive assurances on information risk via formal reporting
mechanisms. The Information Governance Steering Group, chaired by the Senior Information Risk
Owner, meets bi-monthly and receives updates at each meeting. Quarterly reports to SMT and six
monthly reports to the HSCB Governance Committee are provided from the Senior Information
Risk Owner who sits on both groups. Further assurances are sought via the self assessment of
relevant Controls Assurance Standards and by inclusion of Information Governance as part of the
rolling Audit Programme.
6.

Public Stakeholder Involvement

The HSCB working collaboratively with the PHA recognise that Personal and Public Involvement
(PPI) is core to the effective and efficient commissioning, design, delivery and evaluation of HSC
services. PPI is the active and meaningful involvement of service users, carers and the public in
those processes. As Commissioners we are committed to embedding PPI into our culture and
practice. All commissioning teams and Local Commissioning Groups actively consider PPI in all
aspects of their work, ensuring that the input of service users and carers underpins the identification
of commissioning priorities and in the development of service models and service planning, and in
the evaluation and monitoring of service changes or improvements. Some examples of good
practice include:
•
•

Recruitment of service users and carers onto Integrated Care Partnerships.
Involvement of 40 young people in the design and content of new web site for Children and
Young Peoples’ Strategic Partnership.
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•

•

•
•
•

Promoting the needs of looked after children through the active participation of young
people and carers of looked after young people in the development of a personal health
journal called ‘About Me’.
NI Formulary Pharmacy and Medicines Management public workshops which have shaped
the production of a number of patient leaflets aimed at improving medicines safety and
compliance, and reducing waste.
Personalisation – service user and carer input into how services are delivered. Self-directed
Support and Direct Payments are the main vehicles to enable this to happen.
A Service User Recognition Day, attended by service users and carers, which celebrated the
valuable contribution made by service users and carers.
Engagement of service users, patients and staff in relation to TYC reforms.

The HSCB continues to work with the PHA in the delivery of the Personal and Public Involvement
Joint Strategy, and progressing with the Action Plan of key deliverables for 2014/2015. A Personal
and Public Involvement Core Group, chaired by the Director of Social Care and Children and which
has representative leads from each Directorate, meets on a monthly basis to ensure these key actions
are driven within each directorate.
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7.

Assurance

Assurance Framework
As part of the overarching Governance Framework, the HSCB established a two year Assurance
Framework (Framework). The Framework, which operates to maintain and help provide reasonable
assurance of the effectiveness of controls, was approved by SMT and the Governance Committee in
December 2011 and has been in place since 2011/12, with bi-annual progress reports to SMT on the
2nd and 4th quarters. Minutes of Governance Committee meetings are available to further attest to
this.
The Framework has been compiled in conjunction with all directorates and provides the systematic
assurances required by the Board of Directors on the effectiveness of the system of internal control,
by highlighting the reporting and monitoring mechanisms that are necessary to ensure the
achievement of corporate objectives and the commissioning and delivery of high quality health and
social care.
The Framework provides a clear, concise structure for reporting key information to the Board,
Committees of the Board, SMT and other groups/forums. It will also identify which of the
organisation’s objectives are at risk because of any inadequacies in the operation of controls, or
where the board has insufficient assurance about them. In conjunction with the Board’s Corporate
Risk Register and Corporate and Commissioning Plans it also provides structured assurance about
how risks are managed effectively to deliver agreed objectives.
In line with DHSSPS business planning requirements for 2013/14, the HSCB was required by
September 2013, to undertake a review of its Assurance Framework against Departmental guidance
issued in April 2009. As a consequence, a comprehensive review of the Framework was
undertaken as at 31 March 2013. Meetings were held with governance leads in all directorates to
ensure the update reflected not only progress updates, but where necessary the addition of any new
assurance processes and removal of any assurances that are no longer relevant. The review also
reflected aspects of DHSSPS business planning requirements that are not contained within the
HSCB 2013/14 Corporate Plan. The March 2013 review of the HSCB Assurance Framework was
approved by the Governance Committee at its meeting on 6 June 2013.
As part of its bi-annual review, the Framework was reviewed and updated by each directorate at 30
September 2013 to contain a total of 96 Assurances relating to the following domains:
•

DOMAIN 1 - Corporate Control i.e. the arrangements by which the HSCB directs and
controls functions and relates to stakeholders.

•

DOMAIN 2 - Safety and Quality i.e. the arrangements for ensuring that health and social
care services are safe and effective and meet patients’ needs.

•

DOMAIN 3 - Finance i.e. the arrangements for ensuring the financial stability of the HSC,
for ensuring value for money and for ensuring that resources allocated by the
Minister/Department are deployed fully in achievement of agreed outcomes.
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•

DOMAIN 4 - Operational Performance and Service Improvement i.e. the arrangements for
ensuring the delivery of Government and Ministerial targets and required service
improvements.

On 31 March 2014 as part of the bi-annual review of the Framework, the 96 Assurances were
reviewed and indicated the following:
-

71 assurance functions have been achieved;
12 assurances are either partially achieved, or are work in progress towards achievement and
will be reported on in the next review;
8 assurances were not applicable at the time of the review;
1 assurance function had not been achieved; and
4 assurances are no longer relevant.

The review will be considered by the Governance Committee. Further development of the
Framework will be progressed during the 1st and 2nd quarters of 2014/15 in line with the HSCB
Corporate Plan and as per DHSSPS business planning requirements.
Quality of Board Papers
Section 3.4 of the Governance Self-Assessment tool refers to the ‘Quality of Board papers and
timeliness of information’. Board members gave this a ‘green’ rating and indicated their
satisfaction with the information received quoting evidence to support as follows:
-

documented information requirements (standing agenda items);
evidence of challenge e.g., from Board minutes;
Board Meeting timetable;
process for submitting and issuing Board papers;
content of Board papers; and
data quality updates (performance reports).

Delegated Statutory Functions
HSC Trusts submit an annual monitoring report on the delivery of statutory functions with a
midyear return on Corporate Parenting. This is analysed by HSCB and an overview report on
findings was considered by the Board at its meeting in September and submitted to DHSSPS. HSC
Trusts have developed action plans where remedial action was required. The quality of supporting
data has continued to improve and together with regular monitoring meetings, ensure that this area
is kept under constant review.
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Controls Assurance Standards
The HSCB assessed its compliance with the applicable Controls Assurance Standards which were
defined by the Department and against which a degree of progress is expected in 2013/14.
The HSCB achieved the following levels of compliance for 2013/14.
Standard

DHSS&PS Expected
Level of Compliance

HSCB Level of
Compliance

Buildings, land, plant and
non-medical equipment
Decontamination of medical
devices
Emergency Planning
Environmental Cleanliness
Environment Management
Financial
Management
(Core Standard)
Fire safety
Fleet
and
Transport
Management
Food Hygiene
Governance (Core Standard)
Health & Safety
Human Resources
Infection Control
Information Communication
Technology
Management of Purchasing
Medical
Devices
and
Equipment Management
Medicines Management
Information Management

75% - 99% (Substantive)

84%

Audited by
Internal
Audit
-

75% - 99% (Substantive)

Not Applicable

-

75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)

94%
Not Applicable
77%
85%

BSO IA
BSO IA

75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)

93%
Not Applicable

-

75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)

Not Applicable
91%
89%
85%
Not Applicable
85%

BSO IA
-

75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)

81%
Not Applicable

BSO IA
-

75% - 99% (Substantive)
40% - 74% (Moderate)

Not Applicable
72%

-

75% - 99% (Substantive )
(Core 75% - 99% (Substantive)

Not Applicable
90%

BSO IA

87%
85%

-

Research Governance
Risk Management
Standard)
Security Management
Waste Management

75% - 99% (Substantive)
75% - 99% (Substantive)
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8.

Sources of Independent Assurance

The HSCB obtains Independent Assurance from the following sources:
•
•

Internal Audit
Northern Ireland Audit Office

Internal Audit
The HSCB has an internal audit function which operates to defined standards and whose work is
informed by an analysis of risk to which the body is exposed and annual audit plans are based on
this analysis.
In 2013/14 Internal Audit reviewed the following systems:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Financial Review.
General Ledger.
Management of Contracts.
Management of Voluntary Contracts, including Visits to Organisations.
Transforming Your Care.
Performance Management – Trusts, Resettlement.
Family Practitioner Services (General Medical Services, Out of Hours and General Dental
Services).
Risk Management.
Board Effectiveness.
Commissioning - Use of Independent Sector, Waiting List Initiative
Regional ICT Governance.
Family Practitioner Assurance Mapping*.
Co-operation and Working Together (CAWT) follow up review on implementation of
previous recommendations*.

(* denotes reports not subject to categorisation)
All received a satisfactory level of assurance*, with the exception of Waiting List Initiatives
(Management of the Independent Sector Work), and the element of the Family Practitioner Services
relating to Management of Out of Hours services, the recommendations relating to these reports are
highlighted in detail below.
In her annual report the Internal Auditor reported that there is a satisfactory system of internal
control designed to meet the HSCB’s objectives. However, 11 weaknesses in control (priority 1)
were identified in:
•
•
•
•

Management of Contracts.
Management of Voluntary Contracts, including Visits to Organisations.
Family Practitioner Services (General Medical Services, Out of Hours and General Dental
Services).
Commissioning - Use of Independent Sector, Waiting List Initiative;
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•

Recommendations to address these control weaknesses have been or are being implemented
and are specifically highlighted in the following section.

Management of Contracts
•

Contract prices could not be found for 2 contracts examined by Internal Audit.
Subsequently 1 telephony contract has been replaced on 7 March 2014 and now includes
tariff charges. The second for Oil had formal pricing included at the time of ordering when
drawing from the contract since November 2013, although the contract has subsequently
been terminated in March 2014, due to conversion to an alternative energy supply.

Management of Voluntary Contracts, including Visits to Organisations
•

•
•

Signed SLAs for some Voluntary Sector providers were not issued and signed in a timely
manner, management have reviewed the plan which is expected to address this
recommendation for 2014/15.
8 payments had been made prior to full review of monitoring returns from Organisations.
Management has made additional support available to ensure that this is fully implemented.
Internal Audit noted that one Organisation being funded by HSCB had a performance
monitoring system which did not adequately report contracted activity. The Voluntary
Organisation has accepted that this will be addressed in order to accurately report the
position for the HSCB.

Family Practitioner Services (General Medical Services, Out of Hours and General Dental Services)
The HSCB contract directly with Out of Hours Service providers in two LCG areas (commissioning
HSC Trusts to provide the service in the other three LCG areas).
•

•

•

•

Internal Audit reviewed the financial monitoring arrangements of these two Providers and
made recommendations for improvements.
Management have accepted these
recommendations and have embarked on a process of implementing the recommendations
made.
Internal Audit also reviewed the governance arrangements and made recommendations for
improvements. Management have accepted these recommendations and have embarked on a
process of implementing the recommendations made.
A recommendation was made that HSCB should consider whether the service should now
be subject to a competitive procurement process. Management have agreed to consider this
recommendation further and explore the options going forward in conjunction with
appropriate professional, legal and procurement advice and support.
It was recommended that the HSCB should review specific performance payments and
benefits awarded to provider Senior Staff. Management have agreed to carry out this review
and will inform the provider of the appropriate corrective steps that should be taken if
necessary.
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Commissioning - Use of Independent Sector, Waiting List Initiative
An Internal Audit was completed on the area of contracts with Independent Sector (IS) providers,
specifically those providing non-emergency (Elective) treatments for patients on waiting lists.
Recommendations were made by the Internal Auditor as follows:
•

•

•

The procurement process should be reviewed, considering upcoming changes to EU
procurement regulations. While the HSCB view is that current procurement procedures are
consistent with current regulations, a review will be undertaken with BSO Procurement and
Logistics Service and the Directorate of Legal Services in the context of impending changes.
Documentation relating to the selection and monitoring of IS contractors should be reviewed
and updated and all documentation should be retained relating to essential criteria checks
when developing the Eligible Providers List, including regular monitoring undertaken to
ensure maintenance of these standards. Management will review procedures to ensure
completeness.
The HSCB should explore the potential for further improvements to existing guidance on
reporting, managing and monitoring complaints relating to providers. Management will
engage with both the Independent Sector providers and HSC Trusts to ensure clarity of roles
and that the regional guidance is both robust and being followed.

External Audit
In the Report to Those Charged with Governance (RTTCWG) for the year ended 31 March 2013,
the NI Comptroller and Auditor General gave an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
statements and the regularity opinion of the HSCB’s accounts, with four priority 1 issues being
raised.
The four priority 1 recommendations related to:
•
•
•
•

Reliance on third party organisations (BSO).
Business Services Transformation Project (BSTP) – Human, Resources, Payroll and Travel
System (HRPTS).
BSTP – Finance, Procurement and Logistics System.
Procurement of Contracts.

The first three recommendations were interlinked and related to the services provided by the
Business Services Organisation under a Service Level Agreement and significant post
implementation issues. External Audit noted that ‘the HSCB had invested significant time
investigating the information provided by BSO to identify errors’, which were either corrected or
identified to BSO for correction.
The recommendations relating to the post implementation issues of the BSTP systems were subject
to local and regional corrective action plans which are discussed in more detail in section 10 a.
The recommendation on Procurement of Contracts related to 2 legacy Board contracts, managed by
BSO, for private circuits which had not been retendered by BSO after the end of the contracts. The
HSCB has worked with BSO to understand the issues surrounding this breach and has been given
assurances that a new contract has been put in place during 2013/14, and that all procurement
processes are being followed.
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All recommendations made were actively progressed, monitored by the Director of Finance and
progress towards implementation reported to each meeting of the Audit Committee during 2013/14.
The majority, including minor recommendations, have been fully implemented, with residual BSTP
issues and Reliance on Third Party Organisations requiring on-going monitoring.
Regulation Quality Improvement Authority
During the reporting period the HSCB/PHA has introduced a system via the Safety and Quality
Alerts Team (SQAT) to provide the appropriate assurance mechanism that all HSCB/PHA actions
contained within RQIA reports are implemented.
This system of assurance takes the form of a six monthly report which details the progress on
implementation of RQIA recommendations.
The first report detailing the position as at 1 November 2013 was approved by SMT on 7 January
2014 and noted by Governance Committee on 30 January 2014.
RQIA published 8 reports in this reporting year:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

A Baseline Assessment and Review of Community Services for Adults with a Learning
Disability
A Baseline Assessment of Community Services for Children with a Disability
NICE Guidance: Baseline Review of the Implementation Process in Health and Social Care
(HSC) Organisations
RQIA Review of Hospitals at Nights and Weekends
Independent Review of the Management of Controlled Drug Use in Trust Hospitals
RQIA Review of Fostering Services
Review of Specialist Sexual Health Services in Northern Ireland
RQIA Report on Implementation of the Respiratory Service Framework

A similar system is being introduced for the Guidelines and Audit Implementation Network (GAIN)
and National Confidential Inquiries which will be in place for 2014/15.
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9.

Review of Effectiveness of the System of Internal Governance
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for the review of effectiveness of the system of
internal governance. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal governance is
informed by the work of the internal auditors and the executive managers within the HSCB
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control
framework, and comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other
reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control by the Audit and Governance Committees, and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement to the system is in place.

84

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
10.
Internal Governance Divergences
(a) Update on prior year control issues which have now been resolved and are no longer
considered to be control issues
Healthcare Acquired Infection (HCAI) -C.Difficile
Regionally the 2013/14 target to have no more than 324 C. Difficile infections has been achieved –
there have been 310 C. Difficile infections during 2013/14. Two Trusts exceeded their target
maximum number of cases for 2013/14 - Northern Trust had 64 cases of C. Difficile against a target
to have no more than 56 cases and South Eastern Trust had 56 cases against a target to have no
more than 55 cases.
Co-operation and Working Together (CAWT)
Internal audit reports in 2011 and 2013 highlighted issues in relation to the effectiveness of CAWT
governance arrangements. The HSCB has worked with other members of the CAWT Management
Board to ensure appropriate action is taken to strengthen existing arrangements, consistent with
Internal Audit’s recommendations.
Actions relating to Internal Audit have been resolved and this issue has been removed from the
Corporate Risk Register in September 2013. This is therefore no-longer considered a control issue.
(b) An update on prior year control issues which continue to be considered control issues
Business Services Transformation Project
During 2012/13 two new computer systems, were to be introduced by the Business Services
Organisation (BSO) across all Health and Social Care (HSC) organisations as part of the Business
Services Transformation Program (BSTP). These were Finance, Procurement and Logistics (FPL)
and Human Resources, Payroll and Travel (HRPTS).
Post implementation, significant system difficulties had been encountered over a range of areas,
which resulted in the Internal Auditor providing limited assurance and the External Auditor
providing priority 1 recommendations in relation to the associated financial processes. In 2012/13 a
detailed corrective action plan had been developed locally, in conjunction with BSO, and regionally
by the BSTP team in order to resolve the issues identified. These action plans have now been
sufficiently progressed to a ‘business as usual’ status within the HSCB, with residual issues being
managed by the Finance Directorate and BSO. Therefore due to the improvements observed during
2013/14, the BSTP risk has been downgraded from high to medium within the HSCB corporate risk
register.
However, the HSCB is aware of significant issues being experienced elsewhere within HSC
organisations relating to the BSTP, particularly with respect to payroll and supplier payments, these
issues have been exacerbated by the implementation of shared services during 2013/14. The HSCB
is therefore concerned that these issues could have an adverse impact on the HSCB, and therefore
will continue to monitor progress and developments in this area.
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Quality, Quantity and Financial Controls
This issue reflects the continued and increasing difficulty faced by the HSCB in fully
commissioning and supporting levels of health and social care services provided to the population
of Northern Ireland by HSC Trusts, providers of Primary Care services and other independent
health and social care providers.
In 2013/14 the financial constraints within Health and Social Care in Northern Ireland continued to
be rigorously monitored and managed by the HSCB. Nevertheless the financial constraints faced by
Trusts in 2013/14 impacted on the commissioning and performance agendas within the HSC sector.
Throughout the year the HSCB worked closely and pro-actively with all HSC Trusts in order to
address the difficulties faced. However in order to maintain the quality of services required and to
absorb the increased demand presenting, a number of Trusts were unable to achieve financial breakeven in 2013/14.
At the start of 2013/14, HSC Trusts were reporting a relatively small overall deficit of some £7m in
their Trust Delivery Plans. However, during the summer of 2013, the Trusts began to report
significant deficits (initially £30m, but subsequently rising to some £62m), which were attributable
to increases in cost pressures and slippages in Trusts’ savings plans.
The most significant additional pressures facing the Trusts included Utility Costs, Domiciliary Care,
Children’s Services, Medical Locums, Nurse Staffing Levels (to Normative standards); and
Unscheduled Admissions
The Department and HSCB sought to manage these pressures through a range of measures,
including:
•
•

•

Allocation of HSCB Funding to Trusts;
Implementation of Low Impact Contingency Measures, namely those which were
considered to have a limited impact on patient care, including recruitment and overtime
moratoriums and constraining other non-essential, non-patient related expenditure (eg
travel); and
Obtaining additional resources through the in-year monitoring rounds.

Whilst it has not been possible to completely address the projected deficit, these measures have
resulted in a closing overspend across HSC Trusts of £14m.
Looking forward for 2014/15, it is anticipated that the difficulties faced within HSC will accelerate
further. The HSCB continues to proactively work with HSC Trusts and the DHSSPS in order to
review and develop financially effective solutions which will maintain the integrity of services to
the public and continue to drive forward the transition necessary to deliver the long term reforms
required under TYC.
Furthermore the HSCB, in conjunction with the regional Counter Fraud and Probity Service
(CFPS), will continue to work proactively in order to effectively manage reported cases of
suspected or actual fraud. This will include mitigating as far as possible, the risk of losses
occurring due to all types of fraud and erroneous primary care practitioner claims and patient
exemption claims.
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Actions taken during 2013/14 with respect to financial planning and associated efficiency plans for
2014/15, will contribute towards mitigating the qualitative risks associated with managing services
within a constrained budget.
Elective care
Regionally, the 70% (80% by March 2014) standards for outpatient and for inpatient/daycase
services have not been maintained during 2013/14. At the end of March 2014, 69% of patients
were waiting less than nine weeks for a first outpatient appointment and 67% of patients were
waiting less than 13 weeks for inpatient or daycase treatment.
At the end of March 2014, 19,174 patients were waiting longer than the March 2014 target waiting
time of 15 weeks for a first outpatient appointment and 4,312 patients were waiting longer than the
inpatient/daycase maximum waiting time target of 26 weeks.
As in previous years, the Board has provided additional funding to Trusts during 2013/14 to
undertake additional activity – both in-house and in the independent sector – to meet any gaps in
capacity and/or reduce the number of patients waiting. The increase in waiting times during the
second half of the year was partly as a result of the delay in undertaking additional activity (inhouse of in the independent sector) pending confirmation of additional elective care funding from
the January monitoring round. In order to ensure that the end of March 2014 elective care waiting
time position does not deteriorate during quarter one as in previous years, the Board has confirmed
the volumes of additional activity to be undertaken by Trusts (in-house and, where appropriate, in
the independent sector) during quarters one and two, of 2014/15 taking account of increased
demand. The need for Trusts to fully deliver the agreed volumes of core elective activity across all
specialties has also been stressed.
A major factor in the deterioration in the waiting time position during 2013/14 has been the under
delivery of core capacity by Trusts across a number of elective specialties. In any specialties where
there is a continued material under delivery of core capacity, the Board has arrangements in place to
withdraw an element of funding pending demonstration by the Trusts that specialties are delivering
in full the required volumes of activity.
Given the end of year waiting time position, the Board has written to all Trusts requiring them to
have plans in place to reduce, by no later than end of September 2014, the waiting times in any
specialties with patients currently waiting beyond 15/26 weeks.
The Board will continue with the existing performance management arrangements to monitor
Trusts’ progress in reducing waiting times and also to ensure that the agreed volumes of core
activity are delivered.
A&E (4 and 12 hour performance standards)
There has been a significant reduction in the number of patients who have waited longer than 12
hours in Emergency Departments (ED) during 2013/14 compared to 2012/13 – a total of 3,130
patients waited longer than 12 hours during 2013/14 compared to 5,560 in 2012/13, a reduction of
2,430 (44%). Notwithstanding this improvement, it is unacceptable for any patients to wait longer
than 12 hours and addressing this has been, and will continue to be, a top priority for the Board.
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The majority of the breaches of the 12-hour standard during 2013/14 were in South Eastern (39%)
and Northern (33%) Trusts however, most of these occurred within the first six months of 2013/14.
As a result of the position in South Eastern Trust, enhanced monitoring arrangements were
introduced in August resulting in a series of meetings at Chief Executive level however, given the
improved position in the second half of the year, monitoring arrangements have now returned to
normal business. Following the increase in the number of breaches in Belfast and Northern Trusts
in December/January, Chief Executive level meetings have been held to ensure all necessary steps
are taken to ensure improved performance.
Regionally, during 2013/14, 78% of patients have been treated and discharged, or admitted within
four hours of their arrival in ED. The Board continues to meet regularly with all Trusts in relation
to ED performance. Discussion at these meetings focuses on the range of issues which support the
effective and timely flow of patients and improved 4-hour performance. These include effective
discharge planning from day of admission, timely discharge on the day of discharge, improving the
level of weekend discharges and robust outcome focused management plans.
During 2013/14, the Board has also undertaken audits of Trusts’ implementation of key actions to
improve the unscheduled care pathway. The findings from these audits will inform future
performance management meetings with Trusts.
A review of SAIs from 2011 to 2013 has identified a number of cases where delay in ED may have
been a possible contributory factor in a patient’s death, and therefore there will continue to be
specific focus on improving flow through inpatient settings and thereby ED.
Cancer services
Trusts should ensure that at least 95% of patients urgently referred with a suspected cancer begin
their first definitive treatment within 62 days.
Performance has been below the 95% standard in all Trusts during 2013/14 - regionally, 82% of
patients urgently referred with a suspected cancer began their first definitive treatment within 62
days.
During 2013/14, there has been a 17% increase in the number of people referred as a red flag
suspect cancer compared to 2012/13 and this has resulted in challenges in providing timely
outpatient access and the ability to improve performance against the 62-day standard.
Given the limited progress towards achievement of the 62-day standard, the Board has introduced
enhanced monitoring arrangements and, from April 2014, waiting times and actions to address the
increase in red flag referrals will be the focus of monthly cancer performance meetings with all
Trusts.
Improving performance in this important area in line with the Minister’s standard will continue to
be a priority in 2014/15.
Children’s Services (Unallocated Cases)
The HSCB continues to monitor the trend in unallocated cases on a monthly basis. There has been
further reduction in those Trusts with the higher number of unallocated cases and improvement
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plans are in place. This is however an area which is quite volatile and staff absences through
sickness, maternity leave and delays in recruitment will have immediate impact.
There are also assurances in place that child protection referrals are receiving an immediate
response and the further development of Family Support Hubs has resulted in professionals
signposting families for assistance at an earlier stage and whilst social work intervention is awaited.
As work progresses on the roll out of the Family Support Hubs and the promotion of the Early
Intervention agenda it is anticipated that more families will be able to receive the necessary
supports. It is however currently the position that Trust Gateway Services are receiving significant
numbers of referrals and pressures further into the system has resulted in some delay with moving
cases, this is evidenced through the significant increase in the looked after population. The HSCB
will continue to work with Trusts through the Children’s Services Improvement Board and within
the CYPSP to address these issues.
Northern HSC Trust performance
In May 2013 the Minister announced new management arrangements in the Northern Trust to take
forward the next stage of the turnaround process in the Trust, and to secure improvements in key
performance issues. This resulted in the secondment of the HSCB Director of Finance to the Trust
for a period of up to 12 months.
The HSCB has participated in joint meetings between DHSSPS and the Trust as part of the process
for taking forward the recommendations of the Turnaround Team, who were accountable to
DHSSPS.
The involvement of the external Turnaround Team has now concluded and any remaining issues are
being taken forward under normal business arrangements.
Interruption of ICT services
The stability of the ICT services provided by BSO continues to improve with fewer interruptions to
the service. The ‘Gartner Project Board’ set up by the BSO Chief Executive to implement the
recommendations from the Gartner report (referred to in last year’s Mid-Year Assurance Statement)
continues to meet and the project is making progress. Most of the technical recommendations in the
Gartner Report have been implemented, and the work around planning the restructuring the BSO
ITS workforce is on-going. BSO has now signed a Service Level Agreement with Belfast Trust
Estates Department aimed at improving the robustness of the physical environment in the Data
Centres, but Estates issues related to the electricity supply to the datacentres continues to cause
occasional interruptions to the service.
BSO has a Business Case with DHSSPS making a case to move their ICT operations from the
Belfast Trust Data Centres to the planned new DFP Public Sector Data Centres. These new Data
Centres will provide a much more reliable environment for the BSO ICT operations. The new Data
Centres are planned to come on-stream in around two years.
Paediatric Congenital Cardiac Services (PCCS)
Following an external review of PCCS in 2012, the Board, at the request of the Department,
established a working group to take forward a public consultation to inform the Minister’s decision
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on the future provision of paediatric cardiac surgery and interventional cardiology for the
population of Northern Ireland. The consultation process ran for a 12-week period ending in
December 2012.
A preferred option document recommending that services be commissioned primarily from Dublin
was submitted for Ministerial approval in April 2013.
Subsequently, an external assessment of services on the island of Ireland was commissioned by the
two Health Ministers in December 2013. This review is due to report in summer 2014.
In
parallel, a PCCS Contingency Planning Group was established by the HSCB in November 2013 and
includes representation from HSCB, PHA, Belfast Trust and DHSSPS. The planning group has
overseen the establishment of interim arrangements for surgery and cardiac catheterisation to
continue in Belfast, supported by paediatric cardiac surgeons from Dublin, during the period of the
external assessment. In light of the continued vulnerability of service delivery in Belfast pending a
decision on the future commissioning arrangements for the services, monthly monitoring
arrangements are in place with Belfast Trust and ongoing updates are provided to the HSCB Board.
Resettlement
By March 2014, Trusts are required to resettle 75 of the remaining long-stay patients in learning
disability hospitals and 23 of the remaining long-stay patients in psychiatric hospitals to appropriate
places in the community. Regionally, during 2013/14, 74 learning disability patients and 29 mental
health patients have been resettled.
A Mental Health and Learning Disability Resettlement workshop with all Trusts has been arranged
for May 2014 to review performance to date, discuss the issues and confirm that plans are in place
to ensure that all Learning Disability and Mental Health long stay patients, some with very complex
needs, are resettled by 31 March 2015 in line with the Ministerial target.
Mental Health Access-child and adolescent/adult (9 and 13 weeks)
Trusts are required to ensure that from April 2013 no patient waits longer than nine weeks to access
child and adolescent (CAMHS) or adult mental health services and that no patient waits longer than
13 weeks for psychological therapies.
Regionally, at the end of March 2014, 104 patients were waiting longer than nine weeks to access
adult mental health services. The majority (71%) of patients waiting longer than nine weeks at the
end of March 2014 were in the Southern Trust (74). The Trust was allocated non-recurrent funding
in the second half of 2013/14 and has delivered a significant reduction in the number of patients
waiting longer than nine weeks since the end of December 2013 (-170). The Board is working with
the Trust to review demand and capacity to identify what further improvement can be addressed
through service improvement / productivity and if any gap remains to be addressed by recurrent
investment.
At the end of March 2014, 113 patients were waiting longer than nine weeks to access child and
adolescent mental health services – an increase of 84 compared to the end of March 2013. It
should be noted however, that almost all of patients waiting at end of March 2014 (112 out of 113)
were in the Northern Trust. The Northern Trust has advised that performance has been impacted by
staff vacancies/sickness absence and that a number of measures, including overtime and
recruitment, are being taken forward to secure improved performance.
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In relation to psychological therapies, regionally at the end of March 2014, 426 patients were
waiting longer than 13 weeks from referral to assessment and commencement of treatment. The
majority (82%) of patients waiting longer than 13 weeks to access psychological therapies at the
end of March 2014 were in South Eastern (200) and Belfast (148) Trusts.
All Trusts were allocated non-recurrent funding in-year to ensure achievement of the 13-week
maximum waiting time standard by end of March 2014 however, Northern and South Eastern
Trusts have reported a continuing increase in demand and as a result have not achieved the 13-week
maximum waiting time at year-end. As previously reported, the Board is working with the Trusts to
understand the reported demand increases and to establish the available capacity. Both Trusts are in
the process of modelling the impact of identified service improvement actions and it is anticipated
these actions will have a positive impact on the waiting time position in 2014/15. Performance in
Belfast Trust has improved during quarter four and is expected to continue to improve from April
2014.
Securing TYC Transitional Funding
In the 2013/14 year, it was anticipated that the TYC reforms would be supported through
Transitional Funding. £28m was sought through the Monitoring rounds and funding of £9.4m was
secured as follows:
ICPs
Service change
VR/VER
Implementation costs
Total

£2.0m
£3.7m
£0.0m
£3.7m
£9.4m

A significant element of the funding invested in 2013/14 has a recurrent requirement into 2014/15
and 2015/16. We continue to engage with the DHSSPS and DFP to seek to secure the most
appropriate source of funding for the next two years. The level of funding will impact on the pace
of implementation.
A Business Case for “Implementation Support for Transforming Your Care” with a detailed
analysis of full transitional funding requirements was submitted to DHSSPS and DFP for approval
in August 2013. This was conditionally approved by DFP on 28 November 2013, subject to the
provision of a supporting paper detailing the outcomes and benefits realised from the 2012/13
Invest to Save funds made available for Transforming Your Care, which has been provided.
Implementation of TYC
The implementation of TYC has continued in this year with progress on a range of projects in
particular Integrated Care Partnerships, Reablement and consultation on the criteria to be used in
assessing the future of Statutory Residential Homes. Progress in terms of the shift left of resources
has been slower than anticipated.
There continues to be a risk that a lack of consensus on the implementation of TYC may impede
delivery of the reforms. This has been mitigated through regular dialogue and collaboration across
a range of stakeholders within and out with HSC organisations.
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This has included the first of a two part consultation process in relation to the future provision of
Statutory Residential Homes. The HSCB is engaging with a range of stakeholders and working
with the Human Rights Commission and the Consultation Institute to ensure that any process of
reform follows best practice and Human Rights based approach.
Additionally Day Opportunities has been subject to a regional consultation process in 2013/14.
Arrangements are in place for on-going communications and engagement planning and execution,
working closely with the DHSSPS and across the HSC organisations, to further mitigate this issue
as we move forward with implementation and local consultation for the service changes.
Statutory Residential Homes
In taking forward one aspect of the TYC proposals, the Minister has asked the HSCB to lead the coordination in respect of the future of statutory residential homes, which will be subject to a 2 stage
consultation process. Stage 1 consultation on the criteria to be used to assess each home closed on
7 March 2014. An analysis of the responses and proposed criteria will be considered by the Health
and Social Care Board at a meeting of the Board in early 2014.

(c) Identification of new issues in the current year (including issues identified in the mid-year
assurance statement) and anticipated future issues.
Child Sexual Exploitation
Further to a review of notifications of children missing from care (absenting themselves from
Children’s Homes) the PSNI conducted an internal exercise where it became apparent that some of
the young people were involved in activities and had associations which gave rise for concern. A
number of complaints and investigations had progressed but these were reviewed in light of some
additional information and the benefit of a regional perspective.
There is a risk that the Health and Social Care Sector could be perceived as not having adequately
discharged its duty as corporate parent to these children.
The Health and Social Care Board and Trusts continue working jointly with the PSNI to take this
matter forward. The matter is being progressed in line with the Protocol for Joint Investigation by
Social Workers and Police Officers of alleged and suspected cases of child abuse. The PSNI leads
in this matter as there is an operational investigation, and there is a Gold Command (Strategy
Group) with HSCB representation and an Operational Group (jointly chaired by PSNI/HSCB) in
place. A call for evidence to the independent inquiry has been issued A thematic review of these
cases undertaken by the Safeguarding Board for Northern Ireland is progressing using an
assessment tool and guidance agreed with the HSCB. This review group has set up meetings with
the Trusts.
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Allied Health Professionals (AHP) (9 weeks)
Trusts are required to ensure that from April 2013 no patient waits longer than nine weeks from
referral to commencement of AHP treatment.
There has been a considerable increase in the number of patients waiting longer than nine weeks
from referral to commencement of AHP during 2013/14 compared to 2012/13. At the end of March
2014, 4,321 patients were waiting longer than nine weeks.
A number of Trusts have reported an increase in demand as a contributing factor to the increased
waiting times and a regional review of AHP demand and capacity has been undertaken by the PHA
and HSC Board. The initial findings demonstrate that there is a variance between the funded and
actual staffing levels in each Trust and, as a result of Trusts not recruiting in a timely manner to
vacant posts, waiting times have been increasing.
While it is acknowledged that there has been an increase in referrals within some of the services,
this alone does not account for the significant increase in waiting times. The HSC Board and
Agency continue to work closely with Trust Lead Directors to gain a better understanding.
Work has been completed on reviewing the data definitions and the Board/Agency are finalising the
information systems and processes required to gather consistent and accurate demand and activity
data for monitoring purposes.
RVH ED Major Incident
The Minister has commissioned the RQIA to undertake a review of a major incident declared at the
RVH ED on 8 January 2014. The HSCB is participating fully in that Review and is providing a
wide range of information and analysis to the RQIA to inform the review.
At the request of the Department, the HSCB working with PHA has undertaken a review of all EDrelated Serious Adverse Incidents since 2011, and has identified those cases where delay may have
been a possible contributory factor in a patient’s death. This review identified that families had not
been appropriately involved in all cases as required by the SAI procedure, and the HSCB has taken
steps to address this and to require more details of family involvement to be recorded in SAI
Investigation Reports.
Healthcare Acquired Infection-MRSA
Regionally, the 2013/14 target to have no more than 46 cases of MRSA has not been achieved –
there have been 57 cases of MRSA during 2013/14. With the exception of Belfast Trust, all Trusts
have exceeded their target levels for 2013/14.

93

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Breast Cancer Services
Regionally during 2013/14, 84% of urgent breast cancer referrals have been seen within 14 days. In
particular, performance has deteriorated significantly in Northern, South Eastern and Southern
Trusts and is largely as a result of a reported increase in demand.
Given the seriousness of this issue, the Chief Executive wrote to all Trusts to ask them to confirm
the steps being taken to return performance to 100% and the timescale for doing so, and also to
provide an assurance that the 2012 PHA/HSCB guidance “Downgrading of Red Flag Referrals:
Protocol for referrals which do not meet NICE Suspect Cancer Guidance” (2012) is being applied.
Responses have been received from the majority of Trusts and the Board is planning to facilitate a
regional discussion, involving Trust senior managers and clinicians, to consider actions to secure
improved performance.
GP Out of Hours Services
GP Out of Hours services are required to triage 90% of urgent calls within 20 minutes and 90% of
all other calls within 1 hour. Through review of the performance metrics and engagement with Out
of Hours providers, (in local Governance and Performance Management meetings), it is evident that
the GP Out of Hours services have been experiencing a sustained increase in service demand. This
increase in demand for the service is set in the context of a flat budget of approximately £20.5m
core funding. Approximately 97% of this revenue budget is spent on staffing costs. The
consequence of demand exceeding clinical staffing capacity is that there are increasing delays in
delivery of the service, at times of peak demand, introducing increased clinical risk. A financial
review was completed and HSCB has reallocated resources based on demand. The GP Out of Hours
baseline budget set at £18.5 million in 2004/5 has been stabilised to £20.5 million. The HSCB made
available an additional £1 million investment regionally for the service during 2013/2014 £550,000 of which is recurrent and £500,000 non recurrent for winter pressures. The budget for GP
Out of Hours is currently set for 2014/15 at a baseline of £21,050,000.
The HSCB is also currently giving consideration to a bid for an additional £1.952 million as one of
a number of service pressures for 2014/15 which are being discussed with DHSSPS.
This would enable additional resources and increased skill mix to be put in place at times of peak
demand in order to increase capacity to enhance response times.
Service and Budget Agreements
Trusts have identified a range of issues which may delay the agreement of the 2014/15 Service and
Budget Agreements (SBAs). These issues fall into two broad categories:
1. Disagreement with the Board’s position on the level of activity that should be delivered for
the resources available.
2. Lack of consensus on the contract currencies and/or indicators that should be used in nonacute programmes to define and monitor SBA delivery.
LCGs have worked to identify and address a number of issues at local level by 31 March 2014. A
small number of issues have not been resolved at local level and these issues have been escalated to
the Director of Commissioning with the aim of reaching an agreed position at Trust Director level
meetings early in 2014/15.
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The transformation agenda has changed the nature of services being commissioned. New currencies
need to be developed in order to ensure these changes are captured within the SBA. In tandem with
the process outlined above, the HSCB has established a Community Information Project to review,
in cooperation with Trusts, currencies and currency definitions used in the SBA to ensure that they
accurately and appropriately reflect the commissioned activity.
Regular updates on both processes are being provided to the Director of Commissioning.
Health Visiting
Trusts are not fully providing the DHSSPS Universal Child Health Promotion Programme (CHP),
comprising of nine universal Health Visitor contacts that must be offered to all families with preschool children. On average approximately 70% of the CHP is delivered, however as the
programme is DHSSPS policy, any decrease in delivery creates significant risks to families and
children. This has been included within the HSCB Corporate Risk Register.
The HSCB Chief Executive wrote to Trusts in June 2013 indicating they must deliver the full CHP.
A follow up letter issued in March 2014, requested submission of Trust plans in order to ensure full
delivery of the programme.
Conclusion
The HSCB has a rigorous system of accountability which I can rely on as Accounting Officer to
form an opinion on the probity and use of public funds, as detailed in Managing Public Money NI.
Further to considering the accountability framework within the Body and in conjunction with
assurances given to me by the Head of Internal audit, I am content that the HSCB has operated a
sound system of internal governance during the period 2013/14.

Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew
Interim Accounting Officer and Chief Executive

Date
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HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
STATEMENT of COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE for the period ended 31 March 2014
2014

2013

£000s

£000s

3.1
4.3
4.0

(25,721)
(2,498)
(913,702)
(941,921)

(23,572)
(2,388)
(937,477)
(963,437)

5.1
5.2
5.3

51,651
1,368
0
53,019

46,861
1,223
0
48,084

(888,902)

(915,353)

Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) issued (to)
Belfast HSC Trust
South Eastern HSC Trust
Southern HSC Trust
Northern HSC Trust
Western HSC Trust
NIAS HSC Trust
NIMDTA
RQIA
Total RRL issued

(1,117,045)
(494,270)
(502,657)
(558,892)
(489,703)
(60,155)
(1,179)
(44)
(3,223,945)

(1,079,274)
(474,470)
(488,506)
(547,898)
(473,531)
(57,449)
(1,160)
0
(3,122,288)

Total Commissioner resources utilised

(4,112,847)

(4,037,641)

4,113,044

4,037,873

197

232

2014
£000s

2013
£000s

NOTE
Expenditure
Staff costs
Depreciation
Other Expenditure

Income
Income from activities
Other Income
Deferred income

Net Expenditure

RRL received from DHSSPS

25.1

Surplus against RRL

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE
NOTE
Items that will not be reclassified to net operating costs:
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of Property, Plant
and Equipment
6.1/10/6.2/10

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE
for year ended 31 March 2014

38

(888,864)

The notes on pages 101 to 138 form part of these accounts.
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(916,335)

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
STATEMENT of FINANCIAL POSITION as at 31 March 2014
2014
NOTE
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

6/1.2/6.2
7.1/7.2
8
12
12

£000s

2013
£000s

15,334
1,072
0
0
0

£000s
15,730
903
0
0
0

16,406

Total Non Current Assets
Current Assets
Assets classified as held for sale
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

9
11
12
12
8
13

£000s

0
0
7,562
27
0
3,402

16,633

0
1
10,437
31
0
3,859

Total Current Assets

10,991

14,328

Total Assets

27,397

30,961

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities

14
14

(145,491)
0

(189,885)
0

Provisions

16

(6,534)

(14,546)

Total Current Liabilities

(152,025)

(204,431)

Non Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets /
Liabilities

(124,628)

(173,470)

Non Current Liabilities
Provisions
Other payables > 1 yr
Financial liabilities

16
14
8

(37,722)
0
0

Total Non Current Liabilities
Assets less Liabilities

Taxpayers' Equity
Revaluation reserve
SoCNE Reserve

(40,305)
0
0
(37,722)

(40,305)

(162,350)

(213,775)

6,895
(169,245)

6,857
(220,632)

(162,350)

(213,775)

The notes on pages 101 to 138 form part of these accounts.
Signed

Ian Clements

Signed

Fionnuala McAndrew

(Chairman)

Date

(Interim Chief Executive)

Date
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STATEMENT of CASH FLOWS for the period ended 31 March 2014
2014

2013

NOTE

£000s

£000s

4
12
11
14

(888,902)
6,481
2,879
1
(44,394)

(915,353)
18,420
(2,716)
6
(27,260)

14
14
16

42
(192)
(14,058)

359
0
(8,130)

(938,143)

(934,674)

(2,287)
(250)
(2,537)

(2,226)
(17)
(2,243)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net expenditure after interest
Adjustments for non cash costs
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade payables
Less movements in payables relating to items not passing
through the NEA
Movements in payables relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Movements in payables relating to the purchase of intangibles
Use of provisions
Net cash outflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
(Purchase of property, plant & equipment)
(Purchase of intangible assets)
Net cash outflow from investing activities

6
7

Cash flows from financing activities
Grant in aid
Net financing

940,223
940,223
(457)

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents in the period

937,474
937,474
557

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

13

3,859

3,302

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the period

13

3,402

3,859

The notes on pages 101 to 138 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT of CHANGES in TAXPAYERS' EQUITY for the period ended 31 March 2014

SoCNE Reserve
£000s

Revaluation
Reserve
£000s

Total
£000s

Balance at 31 March 2012

(242,810)

7,839

(234,971)

Restated balance at 1 April 2012

(242,810)

7,839

(234,971)

NOTE

Changes in Taxpayers Equity 2012/13
Grant from DHSSPS
Transfers between reserves
(Comprehensive expenditure for the year)

0

937,474

0

0

0

(915,353)

Transfer of asset ownership
Non cash charges - auditors remuneration

937,474

0
4

Balance at 31 March 2013

(982)
0

57

0

(220,632)

6,857

(916,335)
0
57
(213,775)

Changes in Taxpayers Equity 2013/14
Grant from DHSSPS
Transfers between reserves
(Comprehensive expenditure for the year)

0

940,223

0

0

0

(888,902)

Transfer of asset ownership
Non cash charges - auditors remuneration

940,223

4

Balance at 31 March 2014

100

(888,864)

0

0

0

66

0

66

(169,245)

The notes on pages 101 to 138 form part of these accounts.

38

6,895

(162,350)

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.0

Authority

These accounts have been prepared in a form determined by the Department of Health, Social Services
and Public Safety based on guidance from the Department of Finance and Personnel’s Financial
Reporting manual (FReM) and in accordance with the requirements of the Health and Social Care
(Reform) Act (Northern Ireland) 2009.
The accounting policies follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the extent that
it is meaningful and appropriate to the Health and Social Care Board. Where a choice of accounting
policy is permitted, the accounting policy which has been judged to be most appropriate to the
particular circumstances of the HSCB for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been
selected. The HSCB’s accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items
considered material in relation to the accounts, unless otherwise stated.
1.1

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
1.2

Currency and Rounding

These accounts are presented in UK Pounds sterling. The figures in the accounts are shown to the
nearest £1,000.
1.3

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets comprise Land, Buildings, Dwellings, Transport Equipment,
Plant & Machinery, Information Technology, Furniture & Fittings, and Assets under construction.
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment must be capitalised if:
it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to,
the HSCB;
it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
the item has cost of at least £5,000; or
Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of
more than £1,000, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous
purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial
control; or
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Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new unit, irrespective of their
individual or collective cost.
On initial recognition property, plant and equipment are measured at cost including any expenditure
such as installation, directly attributable to bringing them into working condition. Items classified as
“under construction” are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position to the extent that money
has been paid or a liability has been incurred.
Valuation of Land and Buildings
The last valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2012 by Land and Property Services (LPS) which is
an independent executive body within the Department of Finance and Personnel. The valuers are
qualified to meet the ‘Member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ (MRICS) standard.
Land and buildings used for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Fair values are determined as follows:
Land and non-specialised buildings – open market value for existing use;
Properties surplus to requirements – the lower of open market value less any material directly
attributable selling costs, or book value at date of moving to non-current assets.
Modern Equivalent Asset
DFP has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern
equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an
alternative site can be valued. Land and Property Services (LPS) have included this requirement
within the latest valuation.
Assets Under Construction
The HSCB had no Assets Under Construction in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.

Short Life Assets
Short life assets are not indexed. Short life is defined as a useful life of up to and including 5 years.
Short life assets are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially
different from fair value and are depreciated over their useful life.
Where estimated life of fixtures and equipment exceed 5 years, suitable indices will be applied each
year and depreciation will be based on indexed amount.
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Revaluation Reserve
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses
impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease is
recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance
on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.
1.4

Depreciation

No depreciation is provided on freehold land since land has unlimited or a very long established
useful life. Items under construction are not depreciated until they are commissioned. Properties
that are surplus to requirements and which meet the definition of “non-current assets held for sale”
are also not depreciated.
Otherwise, depreciation is charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful
lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the
assets. Assets held under finance leases are also depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the HSCB expects to obtain economic
benefits or service potential from the asset. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed
each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. The following asset
lives have been used

Asset Type
Freehold Buildings
IT Assets
Intangible assets
Other Equipment

1.5

Asset Life
25-60 years
3-10 years
3-10 years
3 – 15 years

Impairment loss

If there has been an impairment loss due to a general change in prices, the asset is written down to
its recoverable amount, with the loss charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a
balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure within the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure (SoCNE). If the impairment is due to the consumption of
economic benefits the full amount of the impairment is charged to the SoCNE and an amount up to
the value of the impairment in the revaluation reserve is transferred to the SoCNE. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of the recoverable amount, but capped at the amount that would have been determined had
there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the SoCNE
to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.
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1.6

Subsequent Expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification the directly
attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure which meets the definition of capital
restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing
carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.
The overall useful life of the HSCB’s buildings takes account of the fact that different components
of those buildings have different useful lives. This ensures that depreciation is charged on those
assets at the same rate as if separate components had been identified and depreciated at different
rates.
1.7

Intangible assets

Intangible assets includes any of the following held - software, licences, trademarks, websites,
development expenditure, Patents, Goodwill and Intangible Assets under Construction. Software
that is integral to the operating of hardware, for example an operating system is capitalised as part
of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation
of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in
which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use;
the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it;
the ability to sell or use the intangible asset;
how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service
potential;
the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
intangible asset and sell or use it;
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale
separately from the rest of the HSCB’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal
rights. Intangible assets are considered to have a finite life. They are recognised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the HSCB;
where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All single items over £5,000 in value must be
capitalised, while intangible assets which fall within the grouped asset definition must be capitalised
if their individual value is at least £1,000 each and the group is at least £5,000 in value.
The amount recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date of commencement of the intangible asset, until it is complete and ready for
use.

104

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE BOARD
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, and as no
active market currently exits depreciated replacement cost has been used as fair value.
1.8

Donated Assets

The HSCB had no donated assets in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.9

Non-current assets held for sale

The HSCB has no non-current assets held for sale in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.10

Inventories

The HSCB has no inventories as at 31st March 2014.
1.11

Income

Operating Income relates directly to the operating activities of the HSCB and is recognised when,
and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration
receivable.
Grant in aid
Funding received from other entities, including the Department is accounted for as grant in aid and
reflected through the Statement of Comprehensive net Expenditure Reserve.
1.12

Investments

The HSCB did not have any investments in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.13

Other expenses

Other operating expenses for goods or services are recognised when, and to the extent that, they
have been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.
1.14

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice
of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from
the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant
risk of change in value.
1.15

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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The HSCB as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of
the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a
matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the HSCB’s
surplus or deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated. Leased
land may be either an operating lease or a finance lease depending on the conditions in the lease
agreement and following the general guidance set out in IAS 17. Leased buildings are assessed as
to whether they are operating or finance leases.
The HSCB as lessor
The HSCB did not have any lessor agreements in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.16

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

The HSCB had no PFI transactions in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.17

Financial instruments

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the HSCB becomes
party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or
services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have
expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the HSCB becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when
the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability
has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired. Financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value.
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Financial risk management
IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in
creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the relationship
with the DHSSPS, and the manner in which they are funded, financial instruments play a more
limited role within HSC bodies in creating risk than would apply to a non-public sector body of a
similar size, therefore the HSCB is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business
entities. The HSCB has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks
facing the HSCB in undertaking activities. Therefore the HSCB is exposed to limited credit, liquidity
or market risk.
Currency risk
The HSCB is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and
liabilities being in the UK and Sterling based. The HSCB has no overseas operations. The HSCB
therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Interest rate risk
The HSCB has limited powers to borrow or invest and therefore has low exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
Credit and Liquidity risk
Since the HSCB receives the majority of its funding from the Department of Health Social Services
and Public Safety, it has low exposure to credit risk and is not exposed to significant liquidity risks.
1.18

Provisions

In accordance with IAS 37, Provisions are recognised when the HSCB has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the HSCB will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows using Department of Finance and Personnel’s discount rates
of -1.9% (1-5 years), -0.65% (>5-10 years), 2.2%(>10 years) or 2.35% in the case of pensions
provisions, in real terms.
The HSCB has also disclosed the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period, additional
provisions made, amounts used during the period, unused amounts reversed during the period and
increases in the discounted amount arising from the passage of time and the effect of any change in
the discount rate.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the HSCB has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the HSCB has developed a detailed formal plan for
the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by
it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from
the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and
not associated with on-going activities of the entity.
1.19

Contingencies

Under IAS 37, the HSCB discloses contingent liabilities where there is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the HSCB, or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the HSCB. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.
1.20

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Under the requirements of IAS 19: Employee Benefits, staff costs must be recorded as an expense
as soon as the organisation is obligated to pay them. This includes the cost of any untaken leave
that has been earned at the year end. This cost has been has been calculated based on the balance
remaining in the computerised leave system for all staff as at 31 March 2014. It is not anticipated
that the level of untaken leave will vary significantly from year to year. Untaken flexi leave is
estimated to be immaterial to the HSCB and has not been included.
Retirement benefit costs
The HSCB participates in the HSC Superannuation Scheme. Under this multi-employer defined
benefit scheme both the Board and employees pay specified percentages of pay into the scheme and
the liability to pay benefit falls to the DHSSPS. The Board is unable to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities in the scheme on a consistent and reliable basis. Further information
regarding the HSC Superannuation Scheme can be found in the HSC Superannuation Scheme
Statement in the Departmental Resource Account for the Department of Health, Social Services and
Public Safety.
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The costs of early retirements are met by the HSCB and charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure at the time the HSCB commits itself to the retirement.
As per the requirements of IAS 19, full actuarial valuations by a professionally qualified actuary are
required at intervals not exceeding four years. The actuary reviews the most recent actuarial
valuation at the Statement of Financial Position date and updates it to reflect current conditions. A
full valuation for Resource Accounts purposes as at 31 March 2012 was completed in 2014 and will
be used in the 2013/14 accounts.
1.21 Reserves
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure Reserve
Accumulated surpluses are accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reserve.
Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve reflects the unrealised balance of cumulative indexation and revaluation
adjustments.
1.22

Value Added Tax (VAT)

Where output VAT is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised
purchase cost of Property Plant and Equipment.
1.23

Third Party Assets

The Board had no third party assets in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.24

Government Grants

The Board had no Government grants in either 2013/14 or 2012/13.
1.25

Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that the Assembly would not have contemplated when it
agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally
should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the
generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that
individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an
accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the
HSCB not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal
revenue expenditure). However, the note on losses and special payments is compiled directly from
the losses and compensations register which reports amounts on an accruals basis with the
exception of provisions for future losses.
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1.26

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

Under IAS 8 there is a requirement to disclose those standards issued but not yet adopted.
The International Accounting Standards Board have issued new and amended standards (IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 & IFRS 12) that affect the consolidation and reporting of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures. These standards have an effective date of January 2013, and EU adoption is due from 1
January 2014.
Accounting boundary IFRS' are currently adapted in the FReM so that the Westminster
departmental accounting boundary is based on Office of National Statistics control criteria, as
designated by Treasury. A review of the NI financial process is currently under discussion with the
Executive, which will bring NI departments under the same adaptation. Should this go ahead, the
impact on DHSSPS and its Arm’s length bodies is expected to focus around the disclosure
requirements under IFRS 12 (Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities).
The impact on the consolidation boundary of Non Departmental Public Bodies and trading funds
will be subject to review, in particular, where control could be determined to exist due to exposure
to variable returns (IFRS 10), and where joint arrangements need reassessing
Management consider that any other new accounting policies issued but not yet adopted are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the accounts in the period of the initial application.
1.27

Changes in Accounting Policy/Prior Year Restatement

There were no changes in Accounting Policy during the year ending 31st March 2014.
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NOTE 2. ANALYSIS of NET EXPENDITURE by SEGMENT
The HSCB has identified 3 segments: Commissioning, Family Health Services (FHS) and
Administration. Net expenditure is reported by segment as detailed below:
Summary
Note
Net Expenditure
Commissioning
FHS
Board Administration
Total Commissioner Resources utilised

2.1
2.2
2.3

2014
£'000s
3,260,426
782,684
69,737
4,112,847

2013
£'000s
3,155,218
804,756
77,667
4,037,641

1,117,045
494,270
502,657
558,892
489,703
60,155
1,179
44
65,857
3,289,802

1,079,274
474,470
488,506
547,898
473,531
57,449
1,160
0
59,273
3,181,561

29,376
29,376

26,343
26,343

3,260,426

3,155,218

2.1 Commissioning
Expenditure
Belfast HSC Trust
South Eastern HSC Trust
Southern HSC Trust
Northern HSC Trust
Western HSC Trust
NIAS HSC Trust
NIMDTA
RQIA
Other providers

SoCNE
SoCNE
SoCNE
SoCNE
SoCNE
SoCNE
SoCNE
SoCNE
4.1

Income
Income from activities

5.1

Commissioning Net Expenditure
2.2 FHS
Expenditure
General Medical Services
General Dental Services
General Pharmaceutical Services
General Ophthalmic Services

4.1
4.1
4.1
4.1

234,109
124,055
424,696
22,099
804,959

221,750
120,277
461,427
21,820
825,274

Income
FHS Receipts & Recovery of Charges

5.1

22,275

20,518

782,684

804,756

FHS Net Expenditure
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NOTE 2. ANALYSIS of NET EXPENDITURE by SEGMENT (cont'd)

2.3 Board administration
Note

2014
£'000s

2013
£'000s

Expenditure
Salaries and Wages
Operating Expenditure
Non Cash Costs
Depreciation

3.1
4.2
4.3
4.3

25,721
38,903
3,552
2,929
71,105

23,572
36,898
15,548
2,872
78,890

Income
Staff Secondment Recoveries
Operating Income

3.1
5.2

503
865
1,368

367
856
1,223

69,737

77,667

Board Administration Net Expenditure
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NOTE 3. STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

3.1 Staff Costs
Staff costs comprise:

2013

2014

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Sub-Total
Capitalised staff costs
Total staff costs reported in Statement of
Comprehensive Expenditure

Permanently
employed staff

Others

Total

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

19,654
1,733
2,439
23,826
0

1,563
138
194
1,895
0

21,217
1,871
2,633
25,721
0

19,443
1,692
2,437
23,572
0

23,826

1,895

25,721

23,572

503

367

25,218

23,205

Less recoveries in respect of outward secondments
Total net costs

Staff Costs exclude £Nil charged to capital projects during the year (2013 £Nil)
The HSCB participates in the HSC Superannuation Scheme. Under this multi-employer defined benefit scheme
both the HSCB and employees pay specified percentages of pay into the scheme and the liability to pay benefit
falls to the DHSSPS. The HSCB is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the
scheme on a consistent and reliable basis.

3.2
Average number of persons employed
The average number of whole time equivalent persons employed during the year was as follows;

2013

2014
Permanently
employed
staff
No.
Commissioning of Health and Social Care
Less average staff number in respect of outward
secondments
Total net average number of persons employed
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Others
No.

Total
No.

Total
No.

501

56

557

489

8

0

8

6

493

56

549

483

Senior Employees' Remuneration

(2)

(1)

-

110-115

75-80

-

500

1,600

0

300

85-90

70-75

500

500

400

300

100

400
200
0
300
300
600
0
0
0

100-105

115-120

80-85

15-20

145-150

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
0

Salary
£000s

-

5,000

-

22,000

63,000

6,000

(1,000)

6,000

-

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

-

115-120

75-80

95-100

150-155

110-115

115-120

90-95

15-20

145-150

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
0

60-65

-

-

65-70

80-85

100-105

115-120

80-85

105 - 110

145-150

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
0
0-5

Salary
£000s

100

-

-

0

0

800

900

0

1,100

0

200
100
100
200
100
300
0
0
0

-

-

-

-

14,000

23,000

(7,000)

5,000

5,000

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Benefits in
Pension
Kind
Benefits (to
(Rounded to
nearest
nearest £100)
£1000)

2012/13

60-65

-

-

65-70

95-100

125-130

110-115

85-90

115-120

145-150

30-35
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
0
0-5

Total £'000

40-45 pension
120-125 lump sum

0-2.5 pension
0-2.5 lump sum

-

40-45 pension

2.5-5.0 pension

-

5-10 pension

30-35 pension
90-95 lump sum

2.5-5.0 pension
5.0-10.0 lump sum
0-2.5 pension

40-45 pension

0-2.5 pension

15-20 pension
55-60 lump sum
45-50 pension
135-140 lump sum

0-2.5 pension
0-2.5 lump sum
0-2.5 pension
0-2.5 lump sum

-

741

419

42

390

-

793

488

59

484

494

884

815
462

430

-

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

391

-

0

70-75 pension
200-205 lump sum
-

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

-

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

-

52

69

17

94

32

69

39

-

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Real increase in
Total accrued
Real
pension and related pension at age 60 CETV at CETV at increase in
lump sum at age 60 and related lump 31/03/13 31/03/14
CETV
£000s
sum
£000s £000s
£000s
£000s

2013/14

No Bonus/Performance Related Payments were made to any Executive or Non-Executive Director in 2013/14 or 2012/13. A circular on the 2013/14 Senior Executive pay award was received from the DHSSPS on 14 May 2014, related payments have not
been made to Executive Directors and are therefore not included in the table above.
As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.
The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20, plus the real increase in any lump sum, less the contributions made by the individual.
The real increases exclude increases due to inflation or any increase or decreases due to a transfer of pension rights.
(1) Contributions ceased in 2010/11, therefore there is no Pension Benefit, Real Increase in Pension or CETV after 31/03/11.
(2) No pension benefit or real increase shown as these are annual calculation and postholder was employed by NHSCT at 31/03/14.
(3) Additional service was added to HSC scheme in 2013/14.
(4) The pension benefit shown for 2013/14 is a combination of the postholder's substantive Director post and a temporary acting up benefit, which will be shown as a negative value in the year after the temporary acting up ceases.
(5) Prior year figures for pension benefit are not applicable as postholder commenced during 2012/13.
(6) This is a temporary acting up post, therefore the annual calculation of pension benefit would not be applicable.
(7) Prior year figures for Pension Benefit are not available as postholder was on secondment.
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L McMahon (01/04/12-31/10/12 - seconded to the
Leadership Centre from 01/11/12)

(7)

(6)

O Harkin (Acting Director from 22/05/13)

S Donaghy (Commenced 13 May 2013)

(5)

P McCready (Appointed 01/05/12)

D Sullivan
(3)
M Bloomfield (Head of Corporate Services & Acting
Director of PMSI since 19/11/12)
(4)

S Harper

F E McAndrew

P Cummings
(Seconded to NHSCT on 22nd May 2013)

J Compton

Name
Non-Executive Members
I Clements
S J Leach
M McCullough
R Gilmore
B McKeever
J Mone
W R Thompson
Stephanie Lowry (Started 15/4/2013)
E Kerr (left 19/7/2012)
Executive Members

Benefits in
Pension
Kind
Benefits (to
(Rounded to
nearest
nearest £100)
£1000)
Total £'000

2013/14

The salary, pension entitlements and the value of any taxable benefits in kind of the most senior members of the HSCB were as follows:
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3.3

Senior Employees' Remuneration (continued)

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued
by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent
spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure
pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the
disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in another
scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the HSS pension scheme. They also include any additional
pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at
their own cost.

CETVs are calculated within the guidelines prescribed by the institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV - this reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (Including the value of any benefits
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of
the period.

3.4

Reporting of early retirement and other compensation scheme - exit packages

Exit package cost band
£25,001 - £50,000

Number of
compulsory
Number of other
redundancies
departures agreed
2014
2013
2014
2013
0
0
0
1

Total number of exit packages by
type

0
£000s

Total resource cost

0
£000s

0

0
£000s

0

1
£000s

0

Total number of
exit packages by
cost band
2014
2013
0
1

25

0
£000s

1
£000s

0

25

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the HSC Pension Scheme
Regulations and the Compensation for Premature Retirement Regulations, statutory provisions made under the
Superannuation Act 1972. Exit costs are accounted for in full in the year in which the exit package is approved and agreed
and are included as operating expenses at note 4. Where early retirements have been agreed, the additional costs are met by
the employing authority and not by the HSC pension scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the pension scheme and
are not included in the table.
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3.5 Staff Benefits
The HSCB had no staff benefits in 2013/14 or 2012/13

3.6 HSCB Management Costs
HSCB Management Costs
Income:
RRL
Less non cash RRL excluding element to cover clinical
negligence provision
Income per Note 5
Less interest receivable

2014
£000s
32,383
4,113,044
(6,481)
53,019
0
4,159,582

Total Income

% of total income

0.78%

2013
£000s
29,489
4,037,873
(18,420)
48,084
0
4,067,537

0.72%

The Management Costs have been prepared on consistent basis from previous years and have
been based on the appropriate HSCB elements contained in the circular HSS (THR) 2/99.
3.7

Retirements due to ill-health

During 2013/14 there were no early retirements from the HSCB, agreed on the grounds of illhealth. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £0 pa.
These costs would be borne by the HSC Pension Scheme.
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2014
£000
234,109
124,055
424,696
22,099
22,719
43,138
870,816

2013
£000
221,750
120,277
461,427
21,820
20,487
38,786
884,547

603
36,021
6
2,273
0
0
38,903

610
33,904
10
2,316
3
55
36,898

Depreciation
Amortisation

2,498
431

2,388
484

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment (including land)
Provisions provided for in year
Cost of borrowing of provisions (unwinding of discount on
provisions)
Auditors remuneration
Total non cash items

23
3,229

173
14,137

234
66
6,481

1,181
57
18,420

916,200

939,865

4.1 Commissioning
General Medical Services
General Dental Services
General Pharmaceutical Services
General Ophthalmic Services
NHS Trusts
Other providers of healthcare and personal social services
Total Commissioning
4.2 Operating Expenses are as follows:
Supplies and services - General
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Bad debts
Rentals under operating leases
Total Operating Expenses
4.3 Non cash items

Total

During the year the HSCB purchased no non-audit services from its external auditor (NIAO).
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5.1 Income from Activities
2014
£000s
25,116
3,378
22,275
882
51,651

2013
£000s
22,499
3,060
20,518
784
46,861

Accommodation
Canteen
Seconded staff
Total

2014
£000s
658
207
503
1,368

2013
£000s
670
186
367
1,223

5.3 Deferred income

2014
£000s

2013
£000s

Income from Department of Education
CAWT
Family Health Services Receipts
Other Income
Total

5.2 Other Operating Income

Total

TOTAL INCOME
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
NOTE 6.1 Property, plant & equipment - period ended 31 March 2014

Buildings
Plant and Information
(excluding
Machinery Technology
(IT)
Land dwellings) (Equipment)
£000s
£000s
£000s
£000s
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2013
Indexation
Additions
Donations / Government grant / Lottery
funding
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation
reserve
Reversal of impairments (indexation)
(Disposals)
At 31 March 2014
Depreciation
At 1 April 2013
Indexation
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation
reserve
Reversal of impairments (indexation)
(Disposals)
Provided during the year

Furniture
and
Fittings
£000s

16,850
0
2,069

2,722
0
0

6,981
52
175

6
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
(157)
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
(157)
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
(251)

0
0
0

0
0
(251)

2,722

7,208

6

18,511

164

28,611

0
0
0
0
0
0

688
14
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0
0

10,138
0
0
0
0
0

161
0
0
0
0
0

10,993
14
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
232

0
0
0
0

0
0
(228)
2,263

164
0
0

Total
£000s

0
0
0
3

26,723
52
2,244

0
0
(228)
2,498

At 31 March 2014
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014

0

934

6

12,173

164

13,277

2,722

6,274

0

6,338

0

15,334

At 31 March 2013

2,722

6,293

0

6,712

3

15,730

2,722

6,274

0

6,338

0

15,334

2,722

6,274

0

6,338

0

15,334

Asset financing
Owned
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014

Any fall in value through negative indexation or revaluation is shown as an impairment
The total amount of depreciation charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure Account in
respect of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts is £Nil (2013 £Nil).
The fair value of assets funded from Donations, Government Grants or Lottery was £Nil.
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Buildings
Plant and Information
(excluding
Machinery Technology Furniture
(IT) and Fittings
Land dwellings) (Equipment)
£000s
£000s
£000s
£000s
£000s
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2012
Indexation
Additions
Donations / Government grant / Lottery
funding
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation
reserve
Reversal of impairments (indexation)
(Disposals)

Total
£000s

3,026
0
0

7,639
0
66

6
0
0

17,609
0
1,800

164
0
0

28,444
0
1,866

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0

(1,028)

0
0

0
(2,559)

(304)

(724)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
(2,559)

2,722

6,981

6

16,850

164

26,723

0
0
0
0
0
0

511
0
0
0
0
0

6
0
0
0
0
0

10,360
0
0
0
0
0

158
0
0
0
0
0

11,035
0
0
0
0
0

0

(45)

0

0

0

(45)

0
0
0
0

0
0
222
688

0
0
0
6

0
(2,385)
2,163
10,138

0
0
3
161

0
(2,385)
2,388
10,993

At 31st March 2013

2,722

6,293

0

6,712

3

15,730

At 1st April 2012

3,026

7,128

0

7,249

6

17,409

3,026

7,128

0

7,249

6

17,409

3,026

7,128

0

7,249

6

17,409

2,722

6,293

0

6,712

3

15,730

2,722

6,293

0

6,712

3

15,730

At 31 March 2013
Depreciation
At 1 April 2012
Indexation
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation
reserve
Reversal of impairments (indexation)
(Disposals)
Provided during the year
At 31 March 2013
Carrying Amount

Asset financing
Owned
Carrying Amount
At 1st April 2012

Asset financing
Owned
Carrying Amount
At 31st March 2013

The fair value of assets funded from Donations, Government Grants or Lottery was £Nil.
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NOTE 7.1 Intangible assets - period ended 31 March 2014

Software
Licenses
£000s

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2013
Indexation
Additions
Donations / Government grant / Lottery funding
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve

1,208
0
117
0

Information
Technology
£000s

Total
£000s

18
0
0
0

3,270
0
326
0
0
138
0
0
0

4,478
0
443
0
0
156
0
0
0

0

0

0

1,343

3,734

5,077

688
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
165
853

2,887
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
265
3,152

3,575
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
430
4,005

At 31 March 2014

490

582

1,072

At 31 March 2013

520

383

903

490

582

1,072

490

582

1,072

(Disposals)
At 31 March 2014
Amortisation
At 1 April 2013
Indexation
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve
(Disposals)
Provided during the year
At 31 March 2014
Carrying Amount

Asset financing
Owned
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014

Any fall in value through negative indexation or revaluation is shown as an impairment
The fair value of assets funded from Donations, Government Grants or Lottery was £Nil.
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NOTE 7.2 Intangible assets - year ended 31 March 2013
Software
Licenses

Information
Technology

Total

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2012
Indexation
Additions
Donations / Government grant / Lottery funding
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve
(Disposals)

£000s
1,201
0
7
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

£000s
3,625
0
10
0
0
0
0
0
0
(365)

£000s
4,826
0
17
0
0
0
0
0
0
(365)

At 31 March 2013

1,208

3,270

4,478

528
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
160

2,929
0
0
0
0
0
0
(365)
323

3,457
0
0
0
0
0
0
(365)
483

At 31 March 2013
Carrying Amount

688

2,887

3,575

At 31 March 2013

520

383

903

At 1st April 2012

673

696

1,369

520

383

903

520

383

903

673

696

1,369

673

696

1,369

Amortisation
At 1 April 2012
Indexation
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
Impairments charged to the SoCNE
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve
(Disposals)
Provided during the year

Asset financing
Owned
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2013
Asset financing
Owned
Carrying Amount
At 31st March 2013

The fair value of assets funded from Donations, Government Grants or Lottery was £Nil.
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NOTE 8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Due to the relationships with HSC Commissioners, and the manner in which they are funded, financial
instruments play a more limited role within the HSCB in creating risk than would apply to a non public
sector body of a similar size, therefore the HSCB is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
business entities. The HSCB has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets
and liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks
facing the HSCB in undertaking activities. Therefore the HSCB is exposed to little credit, liquidity or
market risk.

NOTE 9. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Non current assets held for sale comprise of non current assets which are held for resale, rather than for
continuing use within the business.
The HSCB did not hold any assets classified as held for sale in 2013/14 or 2012/13.
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NOTE 10. IMPAIRMENTS
2014
Property, plant
& equipment
£000s

Intangibles
£000s

Total
£000s

Total value of impairments for the period

0

0

0

Impairments which revaluation reserve covers (shown in Other
Comprehensive Expenditure Statement)

0

0

0

Impairments charged / (credited) to Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure

0

0

0

2013

Total value of impairments for the period
Impairments which revaluation reserve covers (shown in Other
Comprehensive Expenditure Statement)
Impairments charged / (credited) to Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure

Property, plant
& equipment

Intangibles

Total

£000s
982

£000s
0

£000s
982

982

0

982

0

0

0

2012

Total value of impairments for the period
Impairments which revaluation reserve covers (shown in Other
Comprehensive Expenditure Statement)
Impairments charged / (credited) to Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure

Property, plant
& equipment
£000s
4,188

Total
£000s
4,188

4,188

0

4,188

0

0

0

NOTE 11. INVENTORIES
The HSCB dif not hold any inventories as at 31st March 2014, £1k at 31 March 2013.
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Intangibles
£000s
0
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NOTE 12. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
12.1 Trade receivables and other current assets

2014
£000s

2013
£000s

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables
VAT receivable
Other receivables - not relating to fixed assets

6,940
526
96

7,995
566
1,876

Trade and other receivables

7,562

10,437

Prepayments and accrued income

27

31

Other current assets

27

31

0

0

Trade and other receivables

0

0

Other current assets falling due after more than one year

0

0

7,562

10,437

27

31

7,589

10,468

Intangible current assets
Amounts falling due after more than one year

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The balances are net of a provision for bad debts of £Nil (2013 £Nil).
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NOTE 12. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
12.2 Trade receivables and other current assets: Intra-Government balances

Amounts
Amounts
falling due
falling due
within 1 year within 1 year
2013/14
2012/13
£000s
£000s
Balances with other central government bodies
Balances with local authorities
Balances with NHS /HSC Trusts
Intra-Government Balances
Balances with bodies external to government
Total Receivables and other Current Assets at 31 March
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2,179
1,732
479
4,390
3,199
7,589

2,018
2,329
466
4,813
5,655
10,468

Amounts
falling due
after more
than 1 year
2013/14
£000s
0
0
0
0
0
0

Amounts
falling due
after more
than 1 year
2012/13
£000s
0
0
0
0
0
0
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NOTE 13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2014
£000s
3,859
(457)
3,402

2013
£000s
3,302
557
3,859

The following balances at 31 March were held at

2014
£000s

2013
£000s

Commercial banks and cash in hand

3,402
3,402

3,859
3,859

Balance at 1st April
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Balance at 31 March

Balance at 31 March
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NOTE 14. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
14.1 Trade payables and other current liabilites
2014
£000s
Amounts falling due within one year
Other taxation and social security
Trade capital payables - property, plant and equipment
Trade capital payables - intangibles
Trade revenue payables
Payroll payables
BSO payables
Other payables
Accruals and deferred income
Trade and other payables
Other current liabilities
Intangible current assets
Total payables falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Total non current other payables

TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIES
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2013
£000s

577
720
192
46,797
1,390
9,440
2,561
83,814
145,491

507
762
0
51,567
1,099
9,654
1,814
124,482
189,885

0
0

0
0

145,491

189,885

0

0

145,491

189,885
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NOTE 14. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
14.2 Trade payables and other current liabilities - Intra-government balances

Balances with other central government bodies
Balances with local authorities
Balances with NHS /HSC Trusts
Balances with public corporations and trading funds
Intra-Government Balances
Balances with bodies external to government
Total Payables and other liabilities at 31 March

Amounts
Amounts falling due
falling due
within 1
within 1
year
year 2013/14
2012/13
£000s
£000s
3,502
6,553
8
10
18,506
9,826
0
69
22,016
16,458
123,475
173,427
145,491
189,885
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Amounts
falling due
after more
than 1 year
2013/14
£000s
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Amounts
falling due
after more
than 1 year
2012/13
£000s
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
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NOTE 15. PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY
15.1 Public Sector Payment Policy - Measure of Compliance
The Department requires that the HSCB pay their non HSC trade creditors in accordance with the Better Payments
Practice Code and Government Accounting Rules. The HSCB's payment policy is consistent with the Better
Payments Practice Code and Government Accounting rules and its measure of compliance is:

2014

2014

2013

2013

Number

Value

Number

Value

£000s
Total bills paid
Total bills paid within 30 days of receipt of an undisputed
invoice*
% of bills paid within 30 days of receipt of an undisputed
invoice

£000s

18,875

44,753

15,018

46,155

15,930

36,091

12,794

40,736

84.4%

80.6%

85.2%

88.3%

Total bills paid within 10 day target

11,181

24,663

2,427

10,161

% of bills paid within 10 day target

59.24%

55.11%

52.34%

58.24%

For 2012/13 10 day information available from 01/11/12

From 16 March 2013 EU Directive 2011/7/EU on Combating Late Payment in Commercial Transactions was
implemented through the Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013. These regulations apply to all
contracts made from 16 March 2013. They require all public bodies to pay suppliers for goods/services received
within 30 days of receiving an undisputed invoice. The impact of this directive will take effect 30 days from 16
March 2013 (which is payment to be received by 14 April 2013) and the performance against the EU directive will
be shown in the 2013/14 financial year accounts.

15.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2002
£
Amount of Compensation paid for payment(s) being late

0

Amount of Interest paid for payment(s) being late

0
0
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NOTE 16. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES - 2014
Pensions
relating
to other
staff
£000s
Balance at 1 April 2013

Other
£000s

2014
£000s

17,584

28,491

8,776

54,851

341

6,904

456

7,701

(468)

(3,982)

(22)

(4,472)

(1,170)

(12,353)

(535)

(14,058)

Provided in year
(Provisions not required written back)
(Provisions utilised in the year)
Cost of borrowing (unwinding of discount)
At 31 March 2014

Clinical
negligence
£000s

434
16,721

(403)
18,657
2014

203

234

8,878

44,256

2,013

Comprehensive Net Expenditure Account charges
£000s

£'000

Arising during the year
Reversed unused
Cost of borrowing (unwinding of discount)

7,701
(4,472)
234

15,668
(1,531)
1,181

Total charge within Operating expenses

3,463

15,318

Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows
Pensions
relating
to other
staff
£000s

Clinical
negligence
£000s

Other
£000s

2014
£000s

Not later than one year

1,192

4,787

555

6,534

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,985

5,386

1,739

12,110

Later than five years

10,544

8,484

6,584

25,612

At 31 March 2014

16,721

18,657

8,878

44,256
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NOTE 16. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES - 2013
Pensions
relating to
other staff
£000s
Balance at 1 April 2012
Provided in year
(Provisions not required written back)
(Provisions utilised in the year)
Cost of borrowing (unwinding of discount)
At 31 March 2013

Clinical
negligence
£000s

Other
£000s

2013
£000s

15,340

25,359

6,964

47,663

3,283

10,135

2,250

15,668

(312)

(1,122)

(97)

(1,531)

(1,156)

(6,439)

(535)

(8,130)

429

558

194

1,181

17,584

28,491

8,776

54,851

Provisions have been made for 5 types of potential liability: Clinical Negligence, Employer's and Occupier's
Liability, Early Retirement and Injury Benefit. The provision for Early Retirement and Injury Benefit relates to the
future liabilities for the HSCB based on information provided by the HSC Superannuation Branch. For Clinical
Negligence, Employer's and Occupier's claims and Employment Law the HSCB has estimated an appropriate level
of provision based on professional legal advice.
Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows
Pensions
relating to
other staff
£000s

Clinical
negligence
£000s

Other
£000s

2013
£000s

Not later than one year

1,121

12,865

560

14,546

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,806

10,978

2,278

18,062

Later than five years

11,657

4,648

5,938

22,243

At 31 March 2013

17,584

28,491

8,776

54,851
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NOTE 17. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The HSCB did not have any capital commitments at 31 March 2014 or 31 March 2013.

NOTE 18. COMMITMENTS UNDER LEASES

18.1 Operating Leases
Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given in the table below
for each of the following periods.
2014
2013
Obligations under operating leases comprise

£000s

Buildings
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

0
0
0
0

18.2 Finance Leases
The HSCB had no finance leases in 2013/14 or 2012/13

18.3 Operating Leases
The HSCB had no lessor obligations in either 2013/14 or 2012/13
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£000s

55
14
0
69
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NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS UNDER PFI AND OTHER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENT CONTRACTS
The HSCB had no commitments under PFI or other service concession arrangement contracts in
2013/14 or 2012/13.

NOTE 20. OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
The HSCB did not have any other financial commitments at either 31 March 2014 or 31 March 2013.

NOTE 21. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES, INDEMNITIES AND LETTERS OF COMFORT
Because of the relationships with HSC Commissioners, and the manner in which the HSCB is funded,
financial instruments play a more limited role within the HSCB in creating risk than would apply to a
non public sector body of a similar size, therefore the HSCB is not exposed to the degree of financial
risk faced by business entities. The HSCB has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held
to change the risks facing the HSCB in undertaking activities. Therefore the HSCB is exposed to little
credit, liquidity or market risk.
The HSCB did not have any financial instruments at either 31 March 2014 or 31 March 2013.
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NOTE 22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Clinical negligence
2014
£000s
Total estimate of contingent clinical negligence liabilities
Amount recoverable through non cash RRL
Net Contingent Liability

762
(762)
0

2013
£000s

£000s

1,449 2,667
(1,449) (2,667)
0

0

In addition to the above contingent liability, provision for clinical negligence is given in Note 16. Other
clinical litigation claims could arise in the future due to incidents which have already occurred. The
expenditure which may arise from such claims cannot be determined as yet.
Contingencies not relating to clinical negligence are as follows:
2014
£000s
3
(3)
0

Employers' liability
Amount recoverable through non cash RRL
Total

2013
£000s £000s
3
35
0 (2,667)
3
35

NOTE 23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The HSCB is an arms length body of the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety and as
such the Department is a related party with which the HSCB has had various material transactions
during the year. In addition, the HSCB has had various material transactions with the Business Services
Organisation for which the Department is regarded as the parent.
Mrs Fionnuala McAndrew (Director of Social Care and Children and Interim Chief Executive, HSCB) is a
member of the Board of Directors of the registered charity, Children in Northern Ireland (CiNI), which may
be likely to do business with the HSC in the future.
Mr Sheelin McKeagney (Chairman of the Southern LCG) is a Board Member of Community Development
& Health Network, which may be likely to do business with the HSC in future.

NOTE 24. THIRD PARTY ASSETS
The HSCB held £Nil cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2014, or 31 March 2013, relating to third
parties.
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NOTE 25. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS
25.1 Revenue Resource Limit
The HSCB is given a Revenue Resource Limit which it is not permitted to overspend.

DHSSPS (excludes non cash)
Non cash RRL (from DHSSPS)
Total Agreed RRL
Total Revenue Resource Limit to Statement Comprehensive Net
Expenditure

2014
Total
£000s
4,106,563
6,481
4,113,044

2013
Total
£000s
4,019,453
18,420
4,037,873

4,113,044

4,037,873

25.2 Capital Resource Limit
The HSCB is given a Capital Resource Limit (CRL) which it is not permitted to overspend.

Gross capital expenditure
Net capital expenditure
Capital Resource Limit
Underspend against CRL

2014
Total

2013
Total

£000s
2,687
2,687
2,689
(2)

£000s
1,884
1,884
1,884
0

NOTE 25.3 Financial Performance Targets
The HSCB is required to ensure that it breaks even on an annual basis by containing its net expenditure to within 0.25% of
RRL limits.
2014
2013
£000s
£000s
Net Expenditure
(4,112,847)
(4,037,641)
RRL
4,113,044
4,037,873
Surplus against RRL
197
232
Break Even cumulative position (opening)
563
331
Break Even cumulative position (closing)
760
563

Materiality Test:

2013/14
%
0.00%
0.02%

Break Even in year position as % of RRL
Break Even cumulative position as % of RRL

2012/13
%
0.01%
0.01%

The HSCB has met its requirements to contain Net Resource Outturn to within + / - 0.25% of its agreed Revenue Resource
Limit (RRL), as per DHSSPS Circular HSC (F) 21/2012.
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NOTE 26. LOSSES & SPECIAL PAYMENTS
26 Losses and Special Payments

Cash losses

Cash Losses - Theft, fraud etc

Claims abandoned

Waived or abandoned claims

Administrative write-offs

Bad debts

Fruitless payments

Stores losses

Special Payments

2012/13

2013/14

Type of loss and special payment

Number of Cases
2
2

Late Payment of Commercial Debt
Other fruitless payments and constructive
losses
Losses of accountable stores through any
deliberate act

Compensation payments
- Clinical Negligence
TOTAL

£

£
55
55

30
30

2
2

8,860
8,860

15,875
15,875

0

0

3,000
3,000

0

0

81

0
0

0
0

52
133

1
1

265
265

0

7
7

10,492,268
10,492,268

5,958,444
5,958,444

12

10,501,448

5,977,482

26.1 Special Payments
There were no other special payments or gifts made during the year.
26.2 Other Payments and Estimates
There were no other payments made during the year.
Estimate of patient exemption fraud.
The calculation was carried out by the Business Services Organisation (BSO) Information and Registration Unit on the following
basis:
1. The BSO on behalf of the HSCB, handles payments to contractors providing family practitioner services. The Counter Fraud and
Probity Service within the BSO is responsible for checking patient exemption entitlement and for taking follow-up action where a
patient's claim to exemption from statutory charges has not been confirmed.
2. Given the volume of Dental and Ophthalmic claims each year, sampling is used to establish an estimate of the total annual
potential loss due to fraud. Patients aged 80 and over are excluded from the population from which the sample is drawn. The
sample data is passed to the Department for Works and Pensions and the Business Services Authority to provide independent
verification of entitlement across a number of exemption categories. Where entitlement to exemptions claimed is not confirmed for
individual patients as part of this process, such instances are referred as cases to EPES case management system for further
investigation.
3. To estimate the total annual loss in the population the BSO applies the estimate rate of loss for each exemption category in the
sample to the volumetric and average liability for that category in the population.
The Total loss for the NI region 2013/14 has been estimated as £3.32m (£2.66m Dental, £0.66m Ophthalmic). Comparative figures
for 2012/13 when uplifted to 2013/14 activity levels, are: Dental £2.49m and Ophthalmic £0.66m.
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26.3 Losses and Special Payments over £250,000
Number
of Cases

Losses and Special Payments over £250,000

2013/14
£

2012/13
£

Special Payments
Clinical Negligence £1.81- Birth Complications
Clinical Negligence £1.90m - Birth Complications

1
1

1,806,204
1,900,395

Clinical Negligence £1.88m - Failure/Delay in treatment

1

1,877,605

Clinical Negligence £1.72m - Birth Complications

1

1,722,985

Clinical Negligence £1.90m - Birth Complications

1

1,899,021

Clinical Negligence £0.90m - Birth Complications

1

899,717

Clinical Negligence £0.31- Failure/Delay in treatment
Prior year total for comparison (3 cases)

1

386,341
5,462,587

7

TOTAL

10,492,268

NOTE 27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There are no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts.
NOTE 28. DATE AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE
The Accounting Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 2 July 2014.
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